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1 P R O C E E D I N G S 

2 {Whereupon, at 10:00 A.M., the 

3 proceedings were commenced.) 

4 ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE MICHAEL A. NEMEC: This 

5 morning, we have a f u r t h e r hearing i n the case captioned 

6 B a l l a versus Redstone Water Company at numerous docket 

7 numbers. The lead docket number i s C-00992270. Does 

8 counsel have any p r e l i m i n a r y matters? 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: No, I don't, Your Honor. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: O.C.A. may proceed. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: O.C.A. c a l l s Terry Fought. 

12 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

13 O.C.A. Statement No. 1 and O.C.A. E x h i b i t 

14 No. 1 f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

15 (Witness sworn.) 

16 TERRY L. FOUGHT, a witness herein, c a l l e d 

17 on behalf of the Complainants, having f i r s t been duly 

18 sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

19 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

2 0 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

21 Q. Mr. Fought, s t a t e your address, please. 

22 A. 78 0 Cardinal Drive, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, 

23 17111. 

24 Q. And do you have before you, Mr. Fought, a copy 

25 what has been premarked O.C.A. Statement No. 1, Di r e c t 



204 

1 Testimony of Terry L. Fought on behalf of the Pennsylvania 

2 O f f i c e of Consumer Advocate? 

3 A. Yes, I do. 

4 Q. And attached t h e r e t o i s Appendix A, which 

5 includes a d e t a i l of your background and q u a l i f i c a t i o n s , 

6 does i t not? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. And f o l l o w i n g Appendix A, we have O.C.A. 

9 E x h i b i t 1 which consists of Schedule TLF-1 through TLF-2 t o 

10 your D i r e c t Testimony, i s t h a t correct? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Was t h i s D i r e c t Testimony prepared by you? 

13 A. Yes, i t was. 

14 Q. Do you have any c o r r e c t i o n s t o t h i s D i r e c t 

15 Testimony t h i s morning? 

16 A. Yes, I do. On Page 12, the l a s t l i n e on Page 12 

17 now reads, was emptied due t o water main breaks. I would 

18 l i k e t o change t h a t t o read, was low or empty, period. 

19 Q. And do you have a minor c o r r e c t i o n t o your 

20 Schedule TLF-1 i n O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1? 

21 A. Yes, I do. At the top of the t a b u l a t i o n i s a 

22 t i t l e c a l l e d Laboratory Testing w i t h a s i n g l e a s t e r i s k . I 

23 would l i k e t o make t h a t a double a s t e r i s k . And at the 

24 bottom where i t says Summary of Laboratory Tests, 

25 et cetera, I would l i k e t o make t h a t t o be the double 



205 

1 a s t e r i s k . I used a s i n g l e a s t e r i s k i n the t h i r d column to 

2 d i s t i n g u i s h between primary and secondary maximum 

3 contaminant l e v e l s . 

4 Q. Are there any other a d d i t i o n s or c o r r e c t i o n s - - o r 

5 c o r r e c t i o n s t o your w r i t t e n D i r e c t Testimony? 

6 A. Yes. There were four pages l e f t out i n the 

7 Schedule TLF. 

8 Q. I t ' s O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1. 

9 A. O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1, which are the f i r s t four pages 

10 which document the f i r s t two t e s t s shown on the t a b u l a t i o n 

11 t h a t we j u s t corrected w i t h the a s t e r i s k s . 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, i f I could have a 

13 moment, I believe I have the copies of those a d d i t i o n a l 

14 e x h i b i t s handy. 

15 ( B r i e f pause.) 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I apologize. I must 

17 have l e f t the copies of those a d d i t i o n a l pages behind. 

18 However--

19 THE WITNESS: I have o r i g i n a l s here, i f you want t o 

2 0 pass them around f o r now. 

21 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Can I show them to opposing 

22 counsel? 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: Has he seen them before? 

24 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Not t o my knowledge. 

2 5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: No. They were obtained from the 
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1 Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n . 

2 JUDGE NEMEC: So, we can make copies of them very 

3 q u i c k l y . Do you want t o do that? 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Well, they are not r e a l l y c r i t i c a l 

5 t o the testimony. They are backup m a t e r i a l s t o 

6 Schedule TLF-1. 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Well--

8 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I'm sorry. Here they are. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: You have them? 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Yes. I apologize. May t h i s be 

11 marked O.C.A. E x h i b i t l-S as a supplemental e x h i b i t ? 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

13 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

14 O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. l-S f o r 

15 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, two copies of the 

17 D i r e c t Testimony and O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1 have p r e v i o u s l y been 

18 c i r c u l a t e d and have been provided t o the court r e p o r t e r . 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

20 Q. Now, Mr. Fought, i f I were t o ask you the 

21 questions contained i n your testimony t h i s morning as you 

22 s i t here under oath, would your answers be the same? 

2 3 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And would those answers be as corrected t r u e and 

25 c o r r e c t , t o the best of your knowledge and b e l i e f ? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Now, Your Honor, I have some b r i e f 

3 supplement D i r e c t Testimony t h a t I would l i k e t o go t h r o u g h 

4 a t t h i s t i m e w i t h your p e r m i s s i o n . 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: Sure. Go ahead. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor p l e a s e s , I'm not 

7 sure what t h e a t t e m p t o f supplemental t e s t i m o n y from t h e 

8 e x p e r t i s a t t h i s p o i n t . 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: W e l l , we w i l l f i n d o u t . 

10 ATTORNEY NIESEN: But i t ' s a l i t t l e more c r i t i c a l 

11 t h a n t h a t . I have had a d i s c o v e r y r e q u e s t o u t s t a n d i n g 

12 s i n c e January 2 6 t h f o r t h e e x p e r t t e s t i m o n y . I t was always 

13 u n d e r s t o o d t h a t t h e e x p e r t ' s t e s t i m o n y was t o be s u b m i t t e d 

14 i n w r i t i n g . And, i n f a c t , a t our s c h e d u l i n g conference 

15 w i t h you, t h e r e was a date s e t f o r t h e d i s t r i b u t i o n o f 

16 t e s t i m o n y . I n f a c t , Your Honor, t h e reason t h a t I went 

17 t h r o u g h t h e d i s c o v e r y was j u s t so t h i s would not occur, we 

18 would come i n today a t t h e h e a r i n g and t h e r e would be 

19 something p r e s e n t e d i n a d d i t i o n t o what had been p r e s e n t e d 

20 i n w r i t i n g e a r l i e r . I t i s t r u l y wrong t o do t h i s and i t 

21 i s , i n e f f e c t , a d e n i a l o f my a b i l i t y t o prepar e f o r t he 

22 h e a r i n g . T h i s i s something t h a t has been d i s c u s s e d , 

23 su b m i s s i o n o f t e s t i m o n y , f o r many weeks and i t s h o u l d not 

24 be done. 

2 5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor--
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: What's the testimony dealing with? 

2 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Well, f i r s t of a l l , I would l i k e 

3 t o say t h a t we r o u t i n e l y reserve the r i g h t t o supplement 

4 our testimony i n a r a t e case or any other s o r t of case i n 

5 the event t h a t we receive new i n f o r m a t i o n . And i t ' s been 

6 my experience t h a t companies and the O.C.A. have 

7 supplemented D i r e c t Testimony where the evidence i s 

8 re l e v a n t and w i l l add t o the record i n the case. The 

9 purpose of the D i r e c t Testimony--supplemental D i r e c t 

10 Testimony i s t o mark f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n so t h a t Your Honor 

11 can see what the company's system maps are. These were not 

12 e a s i l y attachable t o D i r e c t Testimony. Mr. Fought has also 

13 prepared a map himself t h a t i s based upon these documents. 

14 So, I would l i k e t o make t h a t c l e a r . Because I do believe 

15 t h a t a topographical map of the system w i l l a s s i s t 

16 Your Honor i n deciding t h i s case and w i l l f a c i l i t a t e 

17 f u r t h e r testimony and streamline Cross-examination at a 

18 l a t e r time. I n a d d i t i o n , although we made an e f f o r t t o 

19 t a l k t o many of the customers i n the service t e r r i t o r y 

20 i n f o r m a l l y , we only yesterday had the b e n e f i t of t h e i r 

21 sworn testimony about t h e i r complaints and supporting t h e i r 

22 complaints against Redstone Water. There are j ust I guess 

2 3 three items t h a t I wanted t o request t h a t Mr. Fought 

24 address t o e l i m i n a t e any confusion on the record and to 

25 f u r t h e r e l u c i d a t e the f a c t s . I expect i t t o take a l l of 
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1 10 minutes. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, they have had--if I 

3 might address t h i s , the Consumer Advocate has had up to 

4 almost a year t o t a l k t o Complainants, t o get t h e i r views, 

5 and then t o present t h e i r expert testimony i n w r i t i n g . I 

6 be l i e v e t h a t Mr. Fought, i n f a c t , he says i n h i s testimony, 

7 he has t a l k e d t o Complainants. To now suggest t h a t they 

8 learned something yesterday which r e q u i r e s the presentation 

9 of supplemental testimony i s r e a l l y a r i d i c u l o u s 

10 statement. I f t h a t ' s occurred, i t ' s t h e i r own f a u l t . I t ' s 

11 not t o my detriment t h a t they are now i n a p o s i t i o n they 

12 b e l i e v e they have t o present something i n a d d i t i o n t o where 

13 was presented i n w r i t i n g and which I am prepared t o proceed 

14 t o Cross-examine Mr. Fought about. 

15 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would j u s t l i k e t o 

16 make a comment. 

17 ATTORNEY NIESEN: There are some r u l e s here, and the 

18 Commission 1s r e g u l a t i o n s c l e a r l y c l e a r l y provide f o r the 

19 discovery of expert testimony. There i s a procedure f o r 

20 i t . I followed i t . I asked them to give i t t o me. They 

21 provided the w r i t t e n testimony on the date which you 

22 designated. And t h a t ' s what we should deal w i t h here t h i s 

2 3 morning. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: I appreciate your p o s i t i o n , okay, but 

25 based on the o f f e r by counsel of what the supplemental 
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1 testimony i s going t o deal w i t h , I'm going t o permit i t . 

2 Your obj e c t i o n i s overruled. Please proceed. 

3 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Thank you. Your Honor, may I have 

4 these three maps marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n ? I t ' s O.C.A. 

5 E x h i b i t 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C. 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: They may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

7 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

8 O.C.A. E x h i b i t Nos. 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C f o r 

9 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: Do you have duplicates? 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I'm marking these f o r 

12 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n r e a l l y as demonstrative e x h i b i t s , because 

13 they are k i n d of unwieldy. So, I don't plan t o move them 

14 i n t o the record. However, I would l i k e Mr. Fought t o 

15 describe them. 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: Would you s t a t e the source of the 

17 maps? 

18 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Yes. Yes. We w i l l l a y a 

19 foundation f o r the use of them. 

2 0 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

21 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

22 Q. Mr. Fought, would you please i d e n t i f y what's now 

23 been marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as O.C.A. E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, 

24 and 1-C, t a k i n g them one at a time? 

25 A. Can I say where they came from altogether? 
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1 Q. Sure. 

2 A. These were the maps t h a t were furnished us --

3 these are the maps or drawings or plans t h a t were furnished 

4 t o us i n response t o our discovery request requesting a 

5 d i s t r i b u t i o n system map of Redstone's system. Okay? And I 

6 would l i k e t o t a l k about the back one, s i r , i f I could, a 

7 l i t t l e b i t . E x h i b i t 1-B i s a drawing w i t h the t i t l e 

8 P i t t s b u r g h Coal Company on i t dated October l l t h , 1939, and 

9 there i s a note of a r e v i s i o n of 3/17/45 on i t . And 

10 b a s i c a l l y , t h i s E x h i b i t 1-B shows the Crescent Heights 

11 area. 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: Let Mr. Yablonski and counsel see i t . 

13 {Document handed t o counsel.) 

14 A. I f I may note, I d i d some s c r i b b l i n g i n blue ink 

15 up i n the middle t o the l e f t of t h a t drawing, which was not 

16 p a r t of what the company gave us. I d i d n ' t r e a l i z e I had 

17 the only copy t h a t was furnished. 

18 MR. TERRY YABLONSKI: And what's t h i s blue here? 

19 THE WITNESS: That's what I j u s t mentioned. That 

20 was my s c r i b b l i n g t h a t I put on while I was t h i n k i n g . 

21 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

22 Q. Would you describe the O.C.A. 1-C? 

23 A. That i s a drawing t i t l e d Daisytown Plan of Lots 

24 l a i d out by the Jones 5c Laughlin Steel Corporation dated 

25 June 7th, 1949 and revised J u l y 15th, 1949. And b a s i c a l l y , 
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1 t h i s shows a p o r t i o n of the water supply system t h a t 

2 accompanies the Daisytown area which would be the lower 

3 p a r t of the system. 

4 Q. And f i n a l l y , O.C.A. 1-A, would you describe that 

5 e x h i b i t ? 

6 A. This looks l i k e i t i s a xeroxed copy of a 

7 s a n i t a r y sewer drawing plan i n which somebody has also 

8 drawn on the l o c a t i o n of water l i n e s , and i t shows water 

9 l i n e s serving the Walkertown H i l l area. There i s no date 

10 on t h i s . 

11 Q. When you say somebody drew on t h a t , do you know 

12 who the somebody was? 

13 A. No, I don't. I t was furnished t o us t h i s way. 

14 Q. Okay. Now, are these maps the same as the maps 

15 t h a t the company showed to you when you f i r s t went to t h e i r 

16 o f f i c e s ? 

17 A. No. When I f i r s t went t o t h e i r o f f i c e and 

18 v i s i t e d them, I asked them i f they had copies of the 

19 d i s t r i b u t i o n system map, and I r e c a l l them saying t h a t they 

20 had some o l d maps but I do not r e c a l l whether or not they 

21 showed anything t o me as f a r as the d i s t r i b u t i o n system 

22 maps. 

23 Q. So, when we f i r s t got these i n discovery, i t was 

24 the f i r s t time you had seen anything on paper t h a t showed--

2 5 A. They may have shown me something at t h a t 
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1 meeting. I know we discussed i t and they had mentioned 

2 t h a t there were some o l d maps. I f they showed me any, i t 

3 would have been maybe one. I would have remembered three. 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I have marked f o r 

5 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n a document t h a t was prepared by Mr. Fought 

6 as O.C.A. E x h i b i t 2? 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

8 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

9 O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 2 f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

10 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

11 Q. Mr. Fought, would you please i d e n t i f y t h a t 

12 document and t e l l us what i t is? 

13 A. This b a s i c a l l y i s an enlargement of a U.S.G.S. 

14 topographic map covering the Daisytown area where I have, 

15 t o the best of my a b i l i t y , t r a n s f e r r e d the i n f o r m a t i o n on 

16 the previous three maps t h a t were provided us showing the 

17 water l i n e s . The water l i n e s are shown i n red encompassing 

18 the Crescent Heights area. That was the f i r s t drawing that 

19 I had t a l k e d about, and I t h i n k t h a t was number B or l e t t e r 

20 B. The next one was the Daisytown area, which i s a lower 

21 area down along the extreme, and I t h i n k t h a t was C, 

22 E x h i b i t C. And the t h i r d i s the sewer map t h a t the 

23 w a t e r l i n e was drawn on, and t h a t encompasses the Walkertown 

24 H i l l area. Also shown on t h i s , j u s t so t h a t people get a 

25 general i n d i c a t i o n of where things are, the source of the 
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1 water supply system i s shown i n the upper p a r t of the 

2 drawing. The l o c a t i o n of the 180,000 g a l l o n tank on 

3 Crescent Heights H i l l i s shown. And the pump s t a t i o n i s 

4 shown. When I met w i t h the company the f i r s t time, 

5 Mr. Yablonski's son, I believe h i s f i r s t name i s Greg, I'm 

6 not p o s i t i v e on t h a t , showed me what the service area of 

7 the company was at the time on the r e a l scale U.S.G.S. topo 

8 map, and I had to the best of my a b i l i t i e s shown i t on 

9 here. I t ' s i n black. I t ' s k i n d of hard t o f o l l o w . I wish 

10 I would have made i t bigger or wider going around the top 

11 there, or going around the service area. 

12 Q. Okay. 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would l i k e t o move 

14 O.C.A. E x h i b i t 2 i n t o evidence. 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: We w i l l do t h a t f o l l o w i n g 

16 Cross-examination. 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: Reserve your motion t o admit u n t i l 

19 counsel has had a chance t o Cross. 

2 0 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. 

21 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

22 Q. Mr. Fought, I have a few questions f o r you 

2 3 r e l a t e d t o the customer testimony t h a t we heard yesterday. 

24 F i r s t of a l l , I t h i n k there were q u i t e a number of customer 

2 5 witnesses who described the water as being c o r r o s i v e . 
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1 Would you please address the use of t h a t word i n de s c r i b i n g 

2 the Redstone water? Could you e x p l a i n i t ? 

3 A. The customer 1s use of the word c o r r o s i v e i s not 

4 a c o r r e c t t e c h n i c a l term. Technically, t h i s water i s not 

5 c o r r o s i v e . I t i s scale forming water. I n other words, 

6 minerals p r e c i p i t a t e out of the water. The water does not 

7 d i s s o l v e metals or heating elements t h a t are i n the water. 

8 So, the customers using the word c o r r o s i v e i s not 

9 t e c h n i c a l l y c o r r e c t . I t ' s understandable because what they 

10 are l o o k i n g at i s rough and i t looks l i k e i t ' s p i t t e d and 

11 so on, but t h a t ' s a c t u a l l y the minerals p r e c i p i t a t i n g onto 

12 the objects t h a t they had. 

13 Q. Okay. Now, we also heard several witnesses 

14 describe the water as i t comes out of the tap, and 

15 p a r t i c u l a r l y when you put i c e cubes i n i t , t h a t i t has t h i s 

16 white f l o a t i n g matter i n i t . Did you p e r s o n a l l y observe 

17 water coming from the tap and t h a t c h a r a c t e r i s t i c ? 

18 A. Yes, I d i d . I had p e r s o n a l l y observed people 

19 drawing water from the cool water taps. I made sure t h a t 

20 the water was not f i l t e r e d , t h a t they d i d not have a f i l t e r 

21 system from the cold water taps, and there were some l i t t l e 

2 2 white f l o a t i n g t h i n g s i n i t . A f t e r i c e cubes were dropped 

23 i n t o i t , i t became much more pronounced, t h a t there were 

24 many more of these l i t t l e white f l o a t i n g t h i n g s i n i t . 

25 Q. And as the glass of water sat there, what 
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1 changed over time? 

2 A. Some of these f l o a t i n g things s e t t l e d t o the 

3 bottom. One p a r t i c u l a r glass I had had a f a i r l y large 

4 piece i n i t . I'm loolcing f o r something t o describe i t . 

5 Q. Did i t look almost l i k e a s a l t c r y s t a l ? 

6 A. Yes. Yes. 

7 Q. On how many occasions d i d you observe water 

8 being drawn from the tap w i t h t h i s c h a r a c t e r i s t i c ? 

9 A. Two other times a f t e r i c e had been put i n . The 

10 f i r s t two times I observed i t , I d i d not attempt t o observe 

11 the f l o a t i n g o bjects before the ice was put i n . 

12 Q. Okay. Now, from your testimony, you have 

13 observed t h a t there are secondary maximum contaminant l e v e l 

14 exceedances, both r e c e n t l y and i n the D.E.P. records t h a t 

15 we looked at from past years, have you not? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And those maximum contaminant l e v e l exceedances 

18 r e l a t e t o the t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s and the s u l f a t e s , do 

19 they not? 

20 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, I renew my o b j e c t i o n . 

21 I don't t h i n k t h i s has anything t o do w i t h the customer 

22 testimony yesterday. 

23 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: These are j u s t leading questions. 

24 I w i l l t i e i t up, Your Honor. 

25 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, he has i n h i s prepared 
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1 testimony what he chose t o present concerning TDS and 

2 s u l f a t e s and so f o r t h . 

3 JUDGE NEMEC: I agree. But the question r e a l l y , i t 

4 sounds l i k e i t ' s summarizing what's already i n the Di r e c t 

5 Testimony. 

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That's c o r r e c t , Your Honor. 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Why do we need t o go through 

8 t h i s ? 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: I don't know, but we w i l l see. I t ' s 

10 overruled. Go ahead. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Thank you. 

12 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

13 Q. Did you hear a number of customers yesterday 

14 t e s t i f y t h a t the water does not t a s t e good t o them? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. I s t h a t complaint consistent w i t h MCL 

17 exceedances f o r t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s and sul f a t e s ? 

18 A. Yes. Both exceedances a f f e c t the t a s t e . 

19 Q. Likewise, you heard a number of customers 

20 t e s t i f y about the bad odor, and they described i t i n 

21 various ways, d i d they not? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. And i s t h a t complaint consistent w i t h - -

24 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I w i l l use MCL f o r 

25 maximum contaminant l e v e l . 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: That's f i n e . 

2 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

3 Q. I s tha t complaint consistent w i t h secondary MCL 

4 exceedances? 

5 A. The complaints about the Clorox or the c h l o r i n e 

6 smell, no, t h a t ' s not consistent w i t h the MCLs. There was 

7 some testimony about a s u l f u r smell, and t h a t i s consistent 

8 w i t h exceeding the s u l f u r maximum contaminant l e v e l , MCL. 

9 Q. Thank you f o r c l a r i f y i n g t h a t . There was also 

10 some testimony on Cross-examination concerning the age of 

11 the homes, the sizes of the service l i n e s , the age of the 

12 service l i n e s . As those f a c t o r s may r e l a t e t o pressure 

13 complaints, d i d you hear t h a t testimony yesterday? 

14 A. Yes, I d i d . 

15 Q. I n the course of your i n v e s t i g a t i o n , have you 

16 become f a m i l i a r enough w i t h the system and the operation of 

17 the system and the design of the system t o draw a 

18 conclusion whether those f a c t o r s c o n t r i b u t e or cause the 

19 pressure complaints? 

20 A. Would you please reword the question, or can I 

21 answer what I t h i n k you want t o here? 

22 Q. You are not allowed t o ask me t o reword the 

23 questions because you are my witness. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: A c t u a l l y , i t sounds l i k e a 

25 Cross-examination question. Why don't you leave j u s t leave 
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1 that? Go ahead, t r y again. 

2 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

3 Q. Would you discuss any r e l a t i o n s h i p between the 

4 age and size of the service l i n e and the pressure 

5 complaints? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, I obje c t t o t h a t , any 

8 r e l a t i o n s h i p about the size of the l i n e and pressure. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: The o b j e c t i o n i s over r u l e d because, 

10 r e a l l y , they are asking you--never mind. I t ' s overruled. 

11 Go ahead. 

12 A. Yes. Those customers t h a t came i n and 

13 complained and said t h a t t h e i r pressure was so low th a t 

14 they could not run two appliances at the same time and i t 

15 was consistent t h a t they couldn't run two appliances at the 

16 same time, t h a t problem could be r e l a t e d t o the age and the 

17 siz e of t h e i r house plumbing and the service l i n e , or i t 

18 could be r e l a t e d t o the c o n d i t i o n of the company's main 

19 serving them. Those customers t h a t came i n and said they 

20 had good pressure one day, bad pressure the next day, good 

21 pressure the next day, t h a t ' s a very c l e a r i n d i c a t i o n t h a t 

22 any pressure problem t h a t they have i s not r e l a t e d t o the 

23 age, the length, the size of t h e i r domestic plumbing or 

24 t h e i r service l i n e because the c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of t h e i r 

25 service l i n e and t h e i r house plumbing does not f l u c t u a t e on 
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1 a day-by-day basis. Only the water company's system 

2 f l u c t u a t e s on a day-by-day basis. 

3 Q. There was also testimony about the f i r e hydrants 

4 not working or being removed. Would you address t h a t issue 

5 as i t r e l a t e s t o the service? 

6 (Whereupon, a f i r e d r i l l recess was taken 

7 from 9:25 A.M. t o 9:29 A.M.) 

8 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

9 Q. Do you remember the l a s t question? 

10 THE WITNESS: Would you read t h a t back? 

11 (Whereupon, the court r e p o r t e r read from 

12 the record as requested.) 

13 A. The D.E.P. has re g u l a t i o n s t h a t i n d i c a t e t h a t 

14 s t a t e f i r e hydrants s h a l l not be conducted t o any mains 

15 smaller than s i x - i n c h . There are a number of f i r e hydrants 

16 i n the Redstone system t h a t are connected t o f o u r - i n c h 

17 mains. 

18 Q. Anything f u r t h e r on t h a t issue? 

19 A. One of the reasons t h a t a s i x - i n c h main i s 

20 re q u i r e d instead of a f o u r - i n c h main i s th a t i t takes 

21 s l i g h t l y over seven f o u r - i n c h l i n e s t o pass the same amount 

2 2 of flow as one s i x - i n c h l i n e , a l l other c o n d i t i o n s being 

2 3 the same. 

24 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: With t h a t , Your Honor, we have no 

25 f u r t h e r testimony. And I would move O.C.A. Statement 
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1 No. 1, O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 1, O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 2, and 

2 O.C.A. E x h i b i t l-S i n t o the record subj ect t o any ti m e l y 

3 motions and Cross-examination. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: O.C.A. Statement 1, E x h i b i t 1, 

5 E x h i b i t l-S, and O.C.A. E x h i b i t 2 are admitted subject t o 

6 l a t e r o b j e c t i o n and/or motion by counsel f o r Redstone. 

7 (Whereupon, the documents marked as 

8 O.C.A. Statement No. 1, O.C.A. E x h i b i t 

9 No. 1, O.C.A. E x h i b i t l-S, and O.C.A. 

10 E x h i b i t No. 2 were admitted i n t o 

11 evidence.) 

12 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Dianne, what i s E x h i b i t 1? 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: E x h i b i t 1 i s the set of schedules 

14 t h a t ' s attached t o the D i r e c t Testimony. 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That i s a separate e x h i b i t ? 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: We marked i t t h a t way f o r 

17 reference. 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: And 2 i s the drawing? 

19 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: E x h i b i t 2 i s the topographical 

2 0 map. 

21 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

22 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

23 Q. Good morning, Mr. Fought. My name i s Tom 

24 Niesen. I'm the attorney f o r Redstone Water Company. I 

25 have a few questions f o r you. F i r s t , l e t ' s deal w i t h these 
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1 maps, E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, 1-C. But before I ask you about 

2 those, you i n d i c a t e d i n your questioning i n response t o 

3 Ms. Dusman1s questioning t h a t you had a couple meetings 

4 w i t h the water company i n which maps were discussed? 

5 A. One meeting. 

6 Q. When was that? 

7 A. I t was sometime i n May '99. I could give you 

8 the exact date i f I had a chance, but I don't have i t on 

9 hand. 

10 Q. May 1999? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And during t h a t meeting, as I understand i t , 

13 maps were discussed and you were t o l d t h a t there were o l d 

14 maps avail a b l e ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And you seem t o r e c o l l e c t t h a t perhaps one or 

17 more of E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C were shown t o you at 

18 t h a t time? 

19 A. Maybe one of them. I'm not even sure about one 

20 of them. I know t h a t i t was discussed about o l d maps, and 

21 I don't know i f we took the time t o d i g them out of the 

22 f i l e s and look at them at t h a t time or not. But i f we d i d , 

23 i t was only one map t h a t was shown t o me. 

24 Q. Okay. But you were t o l d t h a t maps existed? You 

2 5 do remember th a t ? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Did you ask t o see the maps? 

3 A. Yes. That's what brought the--no, not a f t e r 

4 they t o l d me t h a t they were o l d and they d i d n ' t know 

5 whether they could produce them e a s i l y at t h a t time. 

6 Q. So, you weren't denied access t o maps? 

7 A. No. 

8 Q. Now, you also i n d i c a t e d during one of your 

9 answers t o a topographical map? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And you received t h a t from the water company? 

12 A. No. I brought t h i s as p a r t of my i n s p e c t i o n 

13 because i t shows the area, and I would use t h i s so t h a t I 

14 could see the topography and d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n so I 

15 could determine the highest p a r t of the system and the 

16 lowest p a r t , and also have the service area put on i t , have 

17 somebody mark the service area on i t , which they d i d at 

18 t h a t meeting. 

19 Q. I s the May 1999 meeting? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. Thank you. And you remember, then, when you 

22 f i r s t saw the maps, E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C? 

23 A. That was given t o us as a response t o a 

24 discovery question, and I do not know the date of t h a t . 

25 Q. You don't r e c a l l - - d o you r e c a l l when you saw 
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1 them, when you were provided them? 

2 A. Oh, they came t o me, not t o the O.C.A. As part 

3 of the discovery, I t h i n k the company's response was tha t 

4 the maps were furnished t o me. So, they came d i r e c t l y t o 

5 me i n response t o I n t e r r o g a t o r y I and i t was Question 1. 

6 Q. I n t e r r o g a t o r y I , Question 1? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Sometime e a r l i e r t h i s year? 

9 A. Maybe l a s t year. 

10 Q. Maybe l a s t year? 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: No. I t was t h i s year. 

12 A. I t w a s t h i s year. 

13 Q. I s t h a t your r e c o l l e c t i o n or Ms. Dusman's 

14 r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

15 A. I t ' s Ms. Dusman's r e c o l l e c t i o n . 

16 Q. I s your r e c o l l e c t i o n t h i s year or l a t e l a s t 

17 year? 

18 A. I have no r e c o l l e c t i o n . 

19 Q. Let me j u s t ask you t h i s . You then used 

20 E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C as w e l l as your topographical 

21 map t o create O.C.A. E x h i b i t 2? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Just l e t me ask you t h i s . I s there any reason 

24 why t h i s O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 2 could not have been produced 

25 p r i o r t o today? 
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1 A. No. I t could have been prepared p r i o r t o 

2 today. 

3 Q. Thank you. Now, you spoke, also, about t a k i n g 

4 water from customer taps when you v i s i t e d the service 

5 t e r r i t o r y . Do you r e c a l l that? 

6 A. I d i d not take water from customer's taps. I 

7 went i n t o a couple of houses where the customers drew water 

8 from the tap i n t o a glass. 

9 Q. Okay. And when was that? 

10 A. That occurred on the May '99 t r i p i n . I t 

11 occurred maybe two months ago or so when Dianne and I 

12 v i s i t e d the area, Ms. Dusman and I v i s i t e d the area. And 

13 i t occurred the day before yesterday when we came t o the 

14 area. 

15 Q. How many times d i d you v i s i t the Redstone 

16 service area? 

17 A. Maybe f i v e or s i x . Many of these were I came 

18 out--I'm from Harrisburg. I came out to the P i t t s b u r g h 

19 area on d i f f e r e n t matters. And every time I came out, I 

20 would swing by and I would d r i v e the service area j u s t t o 

21 see i f I could see any roads broken up t h a t might r e l a t e t o 

22 a water main break, checked the e l e v a t i o n of the water i n 

23 the tank. There i s a gauge on the tank t h a t I could check 

24 t h a t . And I would j u s t d r i v e the service area t o see i f I 

25 could spot something t h a t might be of i n t e r e s t . 
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1 Q. On how many times, on how many of your v i s i t s 

2 d i d you go i n t o a customer's home and have customers draw 

3 water from a tap? 

4 A. Three. On three d i f f e r e n t dates. 

5 Q. Three d i f f e r e n t dates? 

6 A. I thought t h a t ' s what I said p r i o r . 

7 Q. How many customers d i d t h a t f o r you? 

8 A. E i t h e r three or four. I t h i n k i t was three, but 

9 I'm not sure. 

10 Q. Do you remember which customers i t was? 

11 A. B a l l a . Susan B a l l a was one. I have t r o u b l e 

12 pronouncing t h i s lady's name. She was the lady w i t h the 

13 white h a i r . Caeti. 

14 Q. Caeti? 

15 A. Caeti. And i t ' s 491 Pike Run Drive. I don't 

16 know her name r i g h t offhand. We took a sample there. The 

17 name i s n ' t on there. I t ' s j ust the address. I n f a c t , the 

18 one at 491 Pike Run Drive, she d i d i t twice. So, i t was 

19 f o u r times. She d i d i t twice, and then the other two. 

20 Q. I n each of those occurrences, you saw white 

21 m a t e r i a l f l o a t i n g i n the water? 

22 A. A f t e r the ice was added. And the f i r s t three 

23 times, I d i d not pay a t t e n t i o n p r i o r t o the ice being 

24 added. Because once the i c e was put i n , apparently i t 

2 5 becomes much more pronounced, and t h a t was the po i n t they 
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1 were t r y i n g t o make. But the one time we d i d look at the 

2 water p r i o r t o the i c e being put i n , and we saw the 

3 f l o a t i n g p a r t i c l e s , yes. 

4 Q. Do you remember i n whose house t h a t was? 

5 A. Mrs. Caeti. I might be mispronouncing her 

6 name. That was the lady's house t h a t t h a t occurred. 

7 Q. You t a l k e d about a D.E.P. r e g u l a t i o n t h a t 

8 requires--maybe t h a t ' s not your word, re q u i r e s f i r e 

9 hydrants t o be hooked t o a s i x - i n c h l i n e ? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Could you c i t e t h a t r e g u l a t i o n , please? 

12 A. Yes, I can. I t ' s p a r t of the Public Water 

13 Supply Manual, Part I I . Public Water Supply Manual, 

14 Part I I . That's a Roman numeral I I , Community Design 

15 Standards. I t ' s Section 8.1.2. 

16 Q . I ' m sorry. One more time. 

17 A. Section 8.1.2. 

18 Q. Of what? 

19 A. Of Chapter 8, D i s t r i b u t i o n Systems of the Public 

20 Water Supply Manual, Part I I , Community System Design 

21 Standards. 

22 Q. Are you saying t h a t ' s a D.E.P. enforced 

2 3 requirement? 

24 A. I do not know i f i t ' s an enforced requirement, 

2 5 but i t does say s h a l l . And i n acceptable engineering 
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1 p r a c t i c e , when a D.E.P. Manual or the Public Water Supply 

2 Manual says s h a l l , t h a t k i n d of s p e c i f i e s good engineering 

3 p r a c t i c e , good design p r a c t i c e . 

4 Q. Do you know other s i t u a t i o n s i n the 

5 Commonwealth, i n your experience, where f i r e hydrants are 

6 connected t o a l i n e of less than s i x inches? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. To your knowledge, i s D.E.P. going around and 

9 r e q u i r i n g t h a t those pipes be removed and replaced w i t h 

10 s i x - i n c h pipes? 

11 A . I am f a m i l i a r i n one case t h a t we were involved 

12 w i t h i n perhaps the past year and a h a l f or so where D.E.P. 

13 made the water company remove the f i r e hydrants because--I 

14 don't know i f i t was because of the l i n e size or because 

15 they d i d n ' t have s u f f i c i e n t storage f o r f i g h t i n g a f i r e . 

16 Q. So, i n t h a t s i t u a t i o n , the r e s u l t was there were 

17 no f i r e hydrants? 

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. Now, back t o the drawing of the water from the 

20 tap and your review of t h a t , you said t h a t the one sample I 

21 guess t h a t ' s i n the Caeti house, you saw a p a r t i c l e t h a t 

22 resembled you believed a s a l t c r y s t a l ? I s t h a t your words? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. Could t h a t have been scale from the pipe? 

25 A. I t could have been. 
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1 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, I'm t u r n i n g 

2 t o Mr. Fought's D i r e c t Testimony. I t ' s O.C.A. Statement 

3 No. 1. And the bottom of Pages 7--the bottom of Page 7 and 

4 the top of Page 8, we move to s t r i k e the sentence t h a t 

5 begins on the bottom of Page 7 which begins w i t h , I also 

6 contacted PA D.E.P. and was advised, through the remainder 

7 of t h a t sentence over t o 680 mi l l i g r a m s per l i t e r . That's 

8 hearsay testimony which i s not proper i n Mr. Fought 1s 

9 D i r e c t Testimony. 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I respond, Your Honor? 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Under the r u l e s of evidence i n 

13 Pennsylvania, expert witnesses are e n t i t l e d t o draw on a l l 

14 s o r t s of i n f o r m a t i o n t o draw t h e i r conclusions and express 

15 t h e i r opinions on matters t h a t are committed t o expert 

16 testimony. Mr. Fought d i d contact the PA D.E.P., and hi s 

17 testimony does say t h a t he was advised o r a l l y what the 

18 hardness l e v e l s were. However, f o l l o w i n g the submission of 

19 t h i s testimony, we d i d - -

20 ATTORNEY NIESEN: No, Your Honor. I object t o 

21 t h a t . Now, we are dealing w i t h h i s testimony and what he 

22 has sai d i n i t . I t i s c l e a r l y hearsay and he i s not 

23 e n t i t l e d t o r e l y on hearsay. You may not make any f i n d i n g s 

24 based on hearsay. 

25 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That's j u s t not c o r r e c t , 
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1 Your Honor. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I t should be el i m i n a t e d r i g h t at 

3 the get go. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. Respond. 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: What I was going t o say was tha t 

6 f o l l o w i n g submission of the D i r e c t Testimony, I cautioned 

7 Mr. Fought t h a t we shouldn't r e l y s o l e l y on hearsay and 

8 t h a t we should request documentation from the D.E.P. 

9 concerning those hardness l e v e l s i n the Appalachian case, 

10 which Mr. Fought d i d . He subsequently obtained a document 

11 which corroborates the o r a l statement t h a t was made. I f 

12 Your Honor would l i k e us t o , we can submit t h a t t o 

13 supplement the testimony. I t ' s backup--

14 JUDGE NEMEC: Can tha t document be authenticated 

15 today? 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I take a moment t o review i t ? 

17 Because I'm not sure what i t looks l i k e . 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

19 THE WITNESS: May I say something, Judge? 

2 0 JUDGE NEMEC: Hold on a second. 

21 THE WITNESS: I n regard t o - -

22 JUDGE NEMEC: I s t h i s something t h a t you might b r i n g 

23 up w i t h the witness from D.E.P.? 

24 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I could b r i n g i t up w i t h him, 

2 5 Your Honor. I don't know t h a t he would be able t o 
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1 recognize i t . I can authenti c a t e i t t o an extent through 

2 Redirect of Mr. Fought, i f t h a t would be permissible. 

3 THE WITNESS: May I have a moment w i t h Ms. Dusman, 

4 counsel? 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: Sure. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, we are i n the middle 

7 of Cross-examination. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: That's r i g h t . That's f i n e . Let's 

9 f i n i s h Cross and then--at t h i s p o i n t , I'm going t o reserve 

10 r u l i n g on the motion t o s t r i k e . I understand the 

11 o b j e c t i o n . I n general, i t ' s proper. On the other hand, 

12 the sentence i s somewhat ambiguous i n terms of how the 

13 witness obtained the i n f o r m a t i o n from D.E.P. We don 11 know 

14 the extent of the c o n s u l t a t i o n s . Oftentimes, experts 

15 engage i n extensive c o n s u l t a t i o n and oftentimes t h a t type 

16 of i n f o r m a t i o n obtained from the c o n s u l t a t i o n i s 

17 pe r m i t t e d . So, i t ' s not a cl e a r area. I w i l l p o i n t t h a t 

18 out t o counsel. I n any event, I w i l l take t h a t under 

19 advisement. Let's continue w i t h Cross-examination. 

20 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor--if Your Honor pleases, 

21 we would also move t o s t r i k e a p o r t i o n of Mr. Fought 1s 

22 testimony on Page 9. I t ' s i n the t h i r d f u l l question and 

23 answer on Page 9. The question i s , are there any f i n a n c i a l 

24 assistance programs a v a i l a b l e f o r funding such a main. We 

25 object t o the--
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: According t o Tri-County 

2 representatives? 

3 ATTORNEY NIESEN: From there, Your Honor, t o the end 

4 of the paragraph, the end of the answer. 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: Again, I note t h a t t h a t i s hearsay, 

6 and the obj e c t i o n appears t o be proper. I w i l l take t h a t 

7 motion under advisement, also. Obviously, objected t o 

8 hearsay cannot form a basis f o r a f i n d i n g . I agree w i t h 

9 counsel's statement on t h a t p o i n t . Yes, ma'am? 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I j u s t wanted t o add, Your Honor, 

11 t h a t although i t ' s not st a t e d i n the testimony, I believe 

12 t h a t statement was backed up b y — I ' m marking the map tha t a 

13 Tri-County r e p r e s e n t a t i v e had a v a i l a b l e as w e l l , which we 

14 d i d not have t o include i n the testimony. 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I don't see how t h a t cures the 

16 problem, Your Honor. 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I n any event, I w i l l proceed. 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

20 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

21 Q. Continuing along these l i n e s , Mr. Fought, i f you 

22 could look at the bottom of Page 8 of your testimony, at 

23 the very bottom of the page of the sentence t h a t reads, i t 

24 i s my understanding t h a t Tri-County i s i n a p o s i t i o n t o 

2 5 s e l l the company s u f f i c i e n t was on long-term basis. Can 
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1 you t e l l me the source of your understanding? 

2 A. Mr. J e f f Kovach, who i s I bel i e v e the D i r e c t o r 

3 of the Tri-County J o i n t Municipal A u t h o r i t y . 

4 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, we would 

5 also move t o s t r i k e t h a t p o r t i o n of Mr. Fought 1s testimony 

6 at the bottom of Page 8, which begins w i t h the sentence, i t 

7 i s my understanding, i t ' s j u s t t h a t sentence, Your Honor, 

8 f o r the same reason, t h a t i t i s based on hearsay. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: And, Your Honor, I would j u s t 

11 respond again t h a t - - i n f a c t , there i s even a r u l e t h a t 

12 s t a t e s t h a t hearsay i s permissible and admissible i n 

13 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e proceedings. We are not working under the 

14 Rules of C i v i l Procedure w i t h s t r i c t adherence t o hearsay. 

15 And again, once witnesses are q u a l i f i e d t o provide expert 

16 o p i n i o n testimony, i t seems r o u t i n e t o me t h a t i n P.U.C. 

17 p r a c t i c e , witnesses are permitted t o r e l y upon hearsay 

18 where i t i s r e l i a b l e and subj ect t o c o r r o b o r a t i o n i n other 

19 ways. 

2 0 JUDGE NEMEC: Yeah. I n many respects, you are both 

21 r i g h t . Okay? The p o i n t , though, t h a t I be l i e v e counsel 

2 2 f o r Redstone i s making i s t h a t the Commission could not i n 

23 r e l i a n c e on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r sentence d i r e c t the water 

24 company t o purchase water from Tri-County. Let's go on. 

2 5 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 
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1 Q. Mr. Fought, I want t o j u s t address one more of 

2 these matters w i t h you before I have a d d i t i o n a l questions. 

3 On the bottom of Page 9 of your testimony and also o n - - t h i s 

4 i s a thought t h a t also appears on Page 14, at the very 

5 bottom of Page 9, you s t a t e , the pressure gradient of 

6 Tri-County's system and so f o r t h . Can you e x p l a i n f o r me 

7 the basis f o r your understanding about the pressure 

8 gradients? 

9 A. Mr. Kovach of the Tri-County J o i n t Municipal 

10 A u t h o r i t y faxed me a--

11 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Thank you. With t h a t , Your Honor, 

12 I move t o s t r i k e . 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: Excuse me. I want t o hear the end of 

14 your answer. 

15 A. Faxed me a t a b u l a t i o n of t h e i r tanks and the 

16 h y d r a u l i c gradients of the tanks from which I could 

17 determine t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: What do you mean by h y d r a u l i c 

19 gradients? 

20 THE WITNESS: The e l e v a t i o n of the water l e v e l . 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: Above sea l e v e l . 

22 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: And your opinion, i t was based on the 

24 i n f o r m a t i o n you obtained from that? 

25 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Objection i s overruled. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I j u s t want t o make sure my 

3 o b j e c t i o n i s on the record. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: I t i s . 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I t r e l a t e s t o the bottom of 

6 Page 9, the sentence t h a t appears there, and i t also 

7 r e l a t e s , Your Honor, over t o Page 14. We would move t o 

8 s t r i k e the second f u l l answer on Page 14, the t h i r d 

9 sentence beginning w i t h Tri-County's system, t h a t sentence, 

10 and also the next sentence which begins w i t h the word 

11 t h e r e f o r e . 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: Yes, s i r . That motion i s denied. 

13 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

14 Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Fought, at the beginning of your 

15 testimony on Page 2, you give a h i s t o r y of the Redstone 

16 system? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Now, t h a t d e s c r i p t i o n i s taken from f i l e s t h a t - -

19 w e l l , from PA D.E.P. f i l e s , i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

2 0 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. That's not based on your personal knowledge? 

22 A. No. That's based on my personal knowledge. 

23 Q. What you d i d was you reviewed f i l e s and 

24 paraphrased--you created a paraphrase t h a t was i n the f i l e s 

2 5 and you presented i t here? 
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1 A. Yes. This i n f o r m a t i o n came from a p p l i c a t i o n s t o 

2 use the Crescent Mine water, a permit from D.E.P. f o r the 

3 use of t h a t f o r a p u b l i c water supply source. 

4 Q. And t h a t ' s what you d i d on page i n the f i r s t 

5 question and answer on Page 2 and con t i n u i n g over t o the 

6 top of Page 3, i s t h a t r i g h t ? You paraphrased m a t e r i a l 

7 from the PA D.E.P. f i l e s ? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. What I would l i k e t o ask you about i s , on 

10 Page 3, you describe the Redstone present water source as a 

11 stream of mine drainage from the o l d working of the 

12 Crescent Mine. Does t h a t language appear, t o your 

13 r e c o l l e c t i o n , i n any of the PA D.E.P. f i l e s t h a t you 

14 reviewed? 

15 A. Yes, i t does. I have a copy r i g h t here i f you 

16 would l i k e t o see i t . 

17 Q. I would l i k e t o see i t . How o l d i s t h a t , by the 

18 way? 

19 A. Again, i t was the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the source. I 

20 be l i e v e i t ' s 1930, 1929, somewhere i n t h a t area. I t ' s at 

21 the bottom of the paper c l i p p e d sheet. 

22 (Document handed t o counsel.) 

23 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t . You have been t o the Hoods Hollow 

25 water source, have you? 
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1 A. No, I have not. 

2 Q. You have never been there? 

3 A. No, I have not. 

4 Q. Why haven't you ever gone t o the Hoods Hollow 

5 water source? I t would seem t o me t h a t would be something 

6 you would be i n t e r e s t e d t o see. 

7 A. Well, when I v i s i t e d the company's f a c i l i t i e s , 

8 we went to the pumping s t a t i o n , which i s a couple thousand 

9 f e e t maybe downstream of there. And while I was there, I 

10 asked the company people t o describe i t t o me, and at th a t 

11 time, I d i d not t h i n k - - a f t e r hearing t h e i r d e s c r i p t i o n , I 

12 d i d not t h i n k there was anything remarkable t o see about 

13 the source i t s e l f t h a t would t e l l me anything about i t s 

14 q u a l i t y . 

15 Q. Did they describe i t as a stream of mine 

16 drainage t o you? 

17 A. No, they d i d not. But i n the company o f f i c e 

18 when we had a meeting there, the D.E.P. f e l l o w s were there, 

19 and b a s i c a l l y I asked what the source of the water was, and 

20 they s a i d i t came from a mine. They d i d n ' t say mine 

21 drainage. 

22 Q. Okay. Let's continue on Page 3. I w i l l give 

23 you back your pages. I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n your use of the 

24 phrase potable water i n the t h i r d l i n e of the second answer 

25 on the page. What do you mean by potable water? What i s 



238 

1 potable water? 

2 A. Drinkable. 

3 Q. So, the water from the i n d i v i d u a l w e l l s i n 

4 Daisytown was potable? That's what you are saying there, 

5 i s i t not? 

6 A. What I'm saying there i s t h a t the people t h a t 

7 l i v e d i n Daisytown at t h a t time had i n d i v i d u a l w e l l s , and 

8 t h a t was water t h a t was used to d r i n k . 

9 Q. Would you expect the chemical composition of 

10 those w e l l s t o be any d i f f e r e n t than the water from the 

11 Hoods Hollow water source? 

12 A. I r e a l l y don't know. A review of the D.E.P. 

13 f i l e s doesn't i n d i c a t e any water q u a l i t y on those w e l l s , 

14 except t o say t h a t during the 1935 f l o o d , t h a t they were 

15 a l l contaminated and t h a t ' s why a p u b l i c water supply 

16 system went i n . 

17 Q. Now, continu i n g t o Page 4 of your testimony, you 

18 are discussing primary and secondary maximum contaminant 

19 l e v e l s . You say t h a t - - I t h i n k you say t h a t the Redstone 

20 water meets a l l the primary maximum contaminant 

21 requirements, i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

22 A. I saw no evidence t h a t the water d i d not. I 

23 can't say i t w i t h 100 percent surety t h a t the water does 

24 meet them, but I saw no evidence i n any lab r e p o r t s t h a t 

25 i n d i c a t e t h a t the water does not meet the primary MCLs. 
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1 Q. So, the water i s , t h e r e f o r e , safe t o drink? We 

2 can a l l agree on that? 

3 A. I can't say f o r 100 percent sure, but I have no 

4 evidence i n d i c a t i n g t o the contrary. I have seen nothing 

5 t o i n d i c a t e t o the contrary. 

6 Q. Also on Page 4 on the t h i r d l i n e of your f i r s t 

7 answer on the page, you use the word some. Backing up, the 

8 company's water c o n s i s t e n t l y exceeds some of the secondary 

9 MCLs. Some i s two, i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And you also i n t h a t answer reference data t h a t 

12 you obtained and reviewed. Now, t h a t data i s what you have 

13 i n y o u r - - I guess i t ' s what has been marked as O.C.A. 

14 E x h i b i t No. 1. I s t h a t the data you are r e f e r r i n g to? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 1 i s a c t u a l l y documents 

17 t h a t 1 s marked or i d e n t i f i e d i n w r i t i n g as Schedule TLF-1, 

18 i s t h a t r i g h t ? Just so we are sure we are t a l k i n g about 

19 the same t h i n g . 

20 A. Yes. Schedule TLF-1. Schedule TLF-1, Pages 

21 blank of 31. 

22 Q. Would you t u r n t o Page 1 of 31, please? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And the footnote, the double a s t e r i s k footnote--

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. --you i n d i c a t e or you say t h a t the l a b o r a t o r y 

2 t e s t i n g i s a summary of l a b o r a t o r y t e s t r e s u l t s procured by 

3 O.C.A. from PA D.E.P. f i l e s , not comprehensive, and 

4 company's responses t o O.C.A. Set 1, Question 7. What do 

5 you mean by r e f e r r i n g t o i t as a summary? I n what sense i s 

6 i t a summary? 

7 A. Well, i t puts a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n i n the 

8 f o l l o w i n g 31 pages, the f o l l o w i n g 30 pages, on t h i s page. 

9 Q. Okay. 

10 A. That makes i t a summary. 

11 Q. I t 1 s a t a b u l a t i o n of what appears i n the 

12 f o l l o w i n g 30 or so pages? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. And what i s meant by the phrase not 

15 comprehensive? 

16 A. That i t ' s my understanding t h a t when 0.C.A. 

17 v i s i t e d DEP's f i l e s and obtained t h i s data, t h a t they d i d 

18 not believe- - t h e y had no assurance t h a t they obtained a l l 

19 the data f o r the t e s t s t h a t are shown on t h i s sheet. 

2 0 Q. I don't understand t h a t . 

21 A. There may have been some other t e s t s having 

22 d i f f e r e n t dates or maybe even the same dates t h a t they d i d 

23 not make copies of and give t o me. 

24 Q. So, they saw other t e s t r e s u l t s - -

25 A. No. They d i d n ' t know i f they saw any others. 
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1 They d i d not know i f there were other t e s t s a v a i l a b l e t o 

2 them t h a t they d i d n ' t copy. I had asked them t o j u s t get a 

3 sampling of the water t e s t s from D.E.P. so t h a t we could 

4 form a t a b u l a t i o n j u s t t o see the consistency of the 

5 Redstone water over a per i o d of time. I asked them t o go 

6 back as e a r l y as they could, and they got back t o '28 and 

7 '29. And I asked them t o get as recent as they could and 

8 f i l l i n some of the spaces i n between. But I d i d n 1 t ask 

9 them t o make sure t h a t they got a copy of every l a b o r a t o r y 

10 t e s t a v a i l a b l e . 

11 Q. So, you di d n ' t a c t u a l l y go t o the Department of 

12 Environmental P r o t e c t i o n and p u l l these records? 

13 A. No, I d i d not. 

14 Q. Do you know whether there are D.E.P. t e s t 

15 r e s u l t s t h a t show t e s t r e s u l t s w i t h i n the secondary MCL 

16 thresholds t h a t you said the company i s i n v i o l a t i o n w i t h 

17 i n your testimony? 

18 A. Would you repeat that? 

19 Q. Yeah. Are there other t e s t r e s u l t s t h a t were 

20 ignored or not copied and brought t o your a t t e n t i o n t h a t 

21 show t h a t the company i s i n compliance w i t h s u l f a t e s or 

22 TDS? 

23 A. There could be those t h a t weren 1t copied. I 

24 would not say ignored, because the person who got these d i d 

25 not r e a l l y know what I was looki n g f o r . 
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Q. You d i d n ' t i n s t r u c t them to b r i n g a c e r t a i n type 

o f - -

A. I i n s t r u c t e d them t o get hardness t e s t s . 

Q. Hardness? 

A. Only hardness at the time. 

Q. And when d i d you present t h e s e - - l e t me ask you 

who you presented the i n s t r u c t i o n s to? 

A. Dianne. Ms. Dusman. 

Q. And what were the i n s t r u c t i o n s , t o the best of 

your r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

A. My i n s t r u c t i o n s , t o the best of my r e c o l l e c t i o n , 

was t h a t she should v i s i t D.E.P. f i l e s and get as many 

la b o r a t o r y t e s t r e s u l t s t h a t she could on Redstone water 

showing hardness and t h a t she should t r y t o go back as 

e a r l y as she could and get some very e a r l y ones, get some 

very l a t e ones, and t r y t o f i l l i n some of the areas i n 

between. 

Q. Did you suggest t h a t she also b r i n g you t e s t 

r e s u l t s t h a t showed t h a t the company's water i s not hard? 

Did you suggest to Ms. Dusman t h a t she b r i n g you t e s t 

r e s u l t s t h a t showed t h a t the company's water i s not hard? 

A. Maybe I misspoke. I d i d n ' t say j u s t b r i n g me 

t e s t s t o show the water was hard. I t o l d her t o get me 

t e s t s of water hardness, t h a t i n d i c a t e d water hardness, the 

water hardness t e s t . I d i d n ' t care i f i t passed or 
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1 f a i l e d . I j u s t wanted--there i s no pass or f a i l f o r water 

2 hardness. I d i d n ' t care i f the r e s u l t s were high or they 

3 were low. I was i n t e r e s t e d i n what was the value of the 

4 hardness on the t e s t . 

5 Q. Do you t h i n k she cared whether the r e s u l t s were 

6 high or low? 

7 A . I don't know. 

8 Q. Now, are a l l of these t a b u l a t i o n s on E x h i b i t 1 

9 D.E.P. t e s t r e s u l t s ? 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. Which ones are, f i r s t of a l l ? 

12 A. The f i r s t two which were j u s t presented today as 

13 those e x t r a sheets, they were r e p o r t s submitted as p a r t of 

14 an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the use of the source back i n '29 and 

15 '31, and I don't know i f D.E.P. took those t e s t s or not. 

16 The p e r m i t t i n g process back then was much d i f f e r e n t than i t 

17 i s today. So, I don't know i f D.E.P. took the t e s t s or i f 

18 l o c a l engineers took the t e s t s . Up through 9/30/91, those 

19 t e s t s were taken--except f o r the f i r s t two which I j u s t 

2 0 mentioned, those others I believe were sampled and tested 

21 by D.E.P. 

22 Q. Just l e t me make sure t h a t I understand. When 

23 you say sampled and tested, you mean a D.E.P. 

24 rep r e s e n t a t i v e took the sample and D.E.P. d i d the tes t i n g ? 

25 A. The paperwork i n d i c a t e s t h a t t o be the case. 
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1 Q. Okay. 

2 A. The next two t e s t s , which are 2/21/95 and 

3 3/14/95, the paperwork i n d i c a t e s t h a t the Redstone Water 

4 Company took the samples and had them t e s t e d by a D.E.P. 

5 c e r t i f i e d l a b o r a t o r y . 

6 Q. By a D.E.P. c e r t i f i e d laboratory? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Okay. Not D.E.P.? You are drawing a 

9 d i s t i n c t i o n there between D.E.P. and a D.E.P. c e r t i f i e d 

10 laboratory? 

11 A. Yes. I believe the D.E.P. t e s t s were conducted 

12 i n t h e i r own la b o r a t o r y , but I'm not 100 percent sure of 

13 t h a t . The paperwork ki n d of i n d i c a t e s t h a t t o me. The 

14 next two t e s t s appear t o be sampled and t e s t e d by D.E.P. 

15 Q. The next two meaning the March l l t h ? 

16 A. Yes. March l l t h . The two t e s t s taken on 

17 March l l t h . 

18 Q. Okay. 

19 A. The next three t e s t s were sampled and tested by 

2 0 a D.E.P. l a b o r a t o r y r e t a i n e d by me. 

21 Q. You h i r e d a D.E.P. c e r t i f i e d l a b o r a t o r y t o take 

22 the samples and do the tests? 

23 A. And I also t o l d them t o make sure t h a t they kept 

24 a chain of custody of t h e i r documents j u s t i n case 

25 something l i k e today would happen. 
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1 Q. Did you pay them? Just t e l l me t h a t . 

2 A. Yes, I paid them. 

3 Q. You paid them? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. You wrote a check from your personal account, 

6 from your consultant's account--

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. - - t o pay the b i l l f o r t h a t t e s t i n g ? 

9 A. Yes, I d i d . And I was present when the water 

10 was sampled. 

11 Q. You saw them take the water? 

12 A. Yes, I d i d . And I made sure t h a t the water t h a t 

13 was sampled came out of col d water taps and t h a t there were 

14 no f i l t e r s on the house system t h a t would a f f e c t the 

15 sampling. 

16 Q. Did you see the t e s t i n g procedure? 

17 A. No, I d i d not. 

18 Q. I j u s t want t o ask you something about Page 4 of 

19 your testimony along these l i n e s . I f you look at the l a s t 

20 answer on the page, i t reads, the company1s water exceeds 

21 the MCLs f o r t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s and s u l f a t e according 

22 t o the l a b o r a t o r y t e s t data t h a t I received from the PA 

23 D.E.P.'s f i l e s , the company, and an independent PA D.E.P. 

24 c e r t i f i e d laboratory? 

2 5 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Now, the independent PA D.E.P. c e r t i f i e d 

2 l a b o r a t o r y i s the lab th a t you h i r e d t o conduct the test? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Conduct the t e s t s of the samples which were 

5 taken on October 21, i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. What's the name of t h a t l a b , by the way? 

8 A. Microbac Laboratories, Inc. 

9 Q. I'm j u s t curious about your use of the word 

10 independent i n t h a t answer. You are attempting t o draw a 

11 d i s t i n c t i o n between your lab which you h i r e d and paid and 

12 the PA D.E.P. lab and the company's lab? 

13 A. No. No, I'm not. 

14 Q. Can you e x p l a i n t h a t t o me? 

15 A. By independent, I could have l e f t t h a t word out. 

16 Q . I would say so, yes. 

17 A. I j u s t r o l l e d out while I was doing the 

18 wording. I could have l e f t t h a t word out. 

19 Q. Do you t h i n k t h a t word should come out? 

2 0 A. I f you want to b r i n g t h a t word out, i t ' s 

21 a l l r i g h t w i t h me, j u s t as long as i t says PA D.E.P. 

22 c e r t i f i e d l a b o r a t o r y . Independent could mean t h a t i t 1 s not 

23 p a r t of my business. I'm a one-man o u t f i t . Maybe 

24 independent means t h a t . I don't know. You can leave i t i n 

25 f o r t h a t respect. 
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1 Q. S i r - -

2 A. But i f you have some s i n i s t e r meaning t o the 

3 word independent, we can take i t out. 

4 Q. I t ' s your word, and I was wondering what 

5 s i n i s t e r meaning you have. 

6 A . I have no s i n i s t e r . I t ' s j u s t f o r some reason, 

7 i t j u s t came out. 

8 Q. Okay. Do you want t o s t r i k e the word? 

9 A. No. Independent--maybe independent t o me means 

10 I don't own them, I don't do business w i t h them. 

11 Q. But you don't mean t o suggest t h a t they are any 

12 more independent, c e r t a i n l y , than the Pennsylvania 

13 Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n , do you? 

14 A. No. Nor Mr. Yablonski's or the Redstone's 

15 independent lab. To me, t h a t ' s an independent D.E.P. 

16 c e r t i f i e d l a b , too, unless he owns i t . Then i t wouldn't be 

17 independent. 

18 Q. Let's go back t o E x h i b i t 1. I'm going t o focus 

19 f o r the moment on the l i n e f o r s u l f a t e , S04. 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q . I t h i n k i n the record copies, i t appears as a 

22 blue l i n e . I s i t blue i n yours? I t s t a r t s out as blue. 

2 3 A. There are some of these t a b u l a t i o n s t h a t have 

24 blue and red c o l o r i n g , and there are some t h a t are black 

25 and white. Mine has c o l o r i n g . 
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1 Q. Yours has the coloring? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Mine does, t o . To the extent someone i s looking 

4 at a colored v e r s i o n , as I understand i t , the blue 

5 i n d i c a t e s a t e s t r e s u l t w i t h i n the secondary maximum TLF 

6 l e v e l f o r s u l f a t e , i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

7 A. Yes. I f we are look i n g at the l i n e f o r s u l f a t e , 

8 except f o r the f i r s t blue number, which i s 250 w i t h an 

9 a s t e r i s k , and t h a t i s the MCL f o r s u l f a t e - -

10 Q. Right. 

11 A. --the other blues represent those t e s t s t h a t are 

12 less than t h a t MCL. 

13 Q. What I w i l l c a l l the Fought t e s t r e s u l t s are a l l 

14 i n the range of about 360 mi l l i g r a m s per l i t e r , r i g h t ? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And those t e s t s were taken on October 21, 1999, 

17 r i g h t ? 

18 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. I f you look t o the l e f t of t h a t , the two D.E.P. 

20 t e s t s f o r March l l t h , you get reading r e s u l t s of 206 and 

21 208, which are w i t h i n the s u l f a t e MCL, true? 

22 A. Yes. And looki n g at others t h a t were taken by 

23 D.E.P., you can see t h a t they were above t h a t . So, i t ' s 

24 ki n d of an i n d i c a t i o n t o me, anyway, t h a t the s u l f a t e l e v e l 

25 f l u c t u a t e s above and below the MCL f o r reasons t h a t I can't 
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1 r e a l l y say w i t h any great surety why. 

2 Q. But ( i n f a c t , w i t h the exception of the 

3 September 30, 1991 reading, there are no D.E.P. s u l f a t e 

4 t e s t r e s u l t s t h a t are more than--around 280? Well, l e t ' s 

5 say 300. There are none higher than 3 00, and there are 

6 several 25 mi l l i g r a m s and so f o r t h less than 300? 

7 A. That's t r u e . The s u l f a t e consistency of t h i s 

8 water appears t o f l u c t u a t e above and below the MCL f o r 

9 reasons t h a t I can't a c c u r a t e l y s t a t e why. 

10 Q. Okay. Now, l e t ' s look at the other Fought t e s t 

11 r e s u l t s . I n f a c t , the Fought t e s t r e s u l t s f o r not only 

12 s u l f a t e but f o r calcium carbonate and TDS are a l l higher 

13 than the--with maybe one or two exceptions, I will agree to 

14 t h a t , are a l l higher than the D.E.P. t e s t r e s u l t s ? 

15 A. Yes. And again, i t i n d i c a t e s t h a t , f o r reasons 

16 t h a t I cannot 100 percent s t a t e , t h a t the c o n s t i t u e n t s i n 

17 t h i s water f l u c t u a t e . 

18 Q. There i s no MCL thr e s h o l d l e v e l f o r hardness? 

19 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. E i t h e r primary or secondary? 

21 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. So, hardness, then, you would agree, i s not 

23 recognized as e i t h e r a h e a l t h hazard or an ae s t h e t i c 

24 problem? 

25 A. Well, as some people--as the people who have 
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1 d efined the secondary standards define a e s t h e t i c , t h a t i s 

2 c o r r e c t . There are people t h a t might disagree w i t h t h a t 

3 d e f i n i t i o n . 

4 Q. Let's go back t o Page 4 of your testimony. I'm 

5 lo o k i n g a t the second f u l l answer on Page 4 where you are 

6 t a l k i n g about--you are d e f i n i n g MCLs and you are t a l k i n g 

7 about enforceable standards and such? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Your f i r s t sentence reads, MCL i s the maximum 

10 permissible l e v e l of a contaminant i n water. I s th a t a 

11 word f o r word restatement of the d e f i n i t i o n of MCL? 

12 A. I don't know. 

13 Q. I s the word permissible i n the d e f i n i t i o n , t o 

14 your r e c o l l e c t i o n ? I s t h a t the way i t ' s defined? 

15 A. I don't know. 

16 Q. Now, the l a s t sentence of t h a t answer, your 

17 testimony i s , both primary and secondary are enforceable 

18 standards i n Pennsylvania. Now, j u s t t e l l me what you mean 

19 by enforceable i n t h a t sentence. 

2 0 A. The O.C.A. has advised me t h a t both of those are 

21 enforceable, and tha t i f D.E.P. would e l e c t t o enforce the 

22 s u l f a t e or the t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s standards, t h a t a 

2 3 company would have t o comply. 

24 Q. Okay. 

25 A. That's my understanding. I t may not be the 
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1 l e g a l understanding, but t h a t ' s my engineering 

2 understanding. 

3 Q. So, enforceable i s not the same as enforced? 

4 A. I don't understand the t e c h n i c a l terms. But i f 

5 I'm d r i v i n g down the road and I go 65 miles an hour i n an 

6 45 mile an hour zone and I go past a cop and he doesn't 

7 stop me, I guess t h a t ' s not enforced, but he could have 

8 enforced i t . I s t h a t the d i s t i n c t i o n you are t r y i n g t o 

9 make? 

10 Q. To your knowledge, D.E.P. does not i n every 

11 circumstance enforce standards, secondary standards, f o r 

12 TDS and/or s u l f a t e ? 

13 A. The D.E.P. f e l l o w s probably answer t h a t b e t t e r 

14 than me, but i t ' s my understanding t h a t they have elected 

15 not t o enforce c e r t a i n of these standards, and those might 

16 be them. 

17 Q. Let's move on, and on Page 8 of your testimony, 

18 you present two suggested a l t e r n a t i v e s f o r t r e a t i n g 

19 secondary MCLs f o r TDS and s u l f a t e . One of them i s t o 

20 s o f t e n the water. Can you e x p l a i n how t h a t process would 

21 work? 

22 A. Well, the company can construct a water 

23 treatment p l a n t which softens water. 

24 Q. And i s i t - -

25 A. There i s various processes. One i s adding lime 
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1 and so on. I r e a l l y d i d n ' t i n v e s t i g a t e i t t h a t much, 

2 because I d i d not t h i n k i t was a p r a c t i c a l s o l u t i o n . 

3 Q. The s o f t e n i n g - -

4 A. The company b u i l d i n g a treatment p l a n t . The 

5 l a s t time I looked i n t o a s o f t e n i n g p l a n t was about 1985, 

6 and i t was very expensive. Now, i t i s possible things have 

7 become cheaper since then, but I doubt i t very much. Plus, 

8 there i s a problem w i t h a water treatment p l a n t p r o v i d i n g 

9 s o f t e n i n g . 

10 Q. What's the problem? 

11 A. Of g e t t i n g r i d of i t s backwash water. They have 

12 t h a t as an added expense. So, I r e a l l y do not t h i n k t h a t 

13 i s a v a l i d - - ! shouldn't say v a l i d . I t ' s c e r t a i n l y 

14 something t o consider, but I don't t h i n k i t i s something 

15 t h a t would pan out t o be a reasonable a l t e r n a t i v e . 

16 Q. Because there are p r a c t i c a l problems w i t h i t , 

17 and also you f e e l t h a t the cost i s too high? 

18 A. Yes. Yes. 

19 Q. Okay. I s there a cost associated w i t h your 

20 other a l t e r n a t i v e , which i s a proposed i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n w i t h 

21 Tri-County? There would be a cost w i t h t h a t , too? 

22 A. Yes. I t would be a cost of at l e a s t - - t h e cost 

23 of a main i n t e r c o n n e c t i n g w i t h them i s about a h a l f mile 

24 main. And, you know, i f the company elec t e d t o use a l l 

25 Tri-County water, t h a t ' s a l l the main t h a t they would have 
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1 t o b u i l d , and t h a t would solve the MCL problems and i t 

2 would solve the s o f t water problems. There wouldn't be 

3 people here complaining about hard water i f t h a t was the 

4 case. I f the company decided they wanted t o mix t h i s water 

5 w i t h t h e i r own water, then i t would be another mile and a 

6 h a l f maybe, by Mr. Yablonski's testimony, but maybe there 

7 are other pipes out there t h a t I'm not aware of t h a t could 

8 be used. 

9 Q. Well, l e t me ask you about the cost of 

10 purchasing water. How i s that--have you f i g u r e d t h a t i n t o 

11 t h i s a t a l l ? 

12 A. No. That's why I have asked f o r the study. The 

13 present source of t h i s water was selected as the most 

14 reasonable a l t e r n a t i v e t o provide water i n t h i s area i n 

15 1929, '30, i n t h a t area, and at t h a t time, they looked i n t o 

16 three a l t e r n a t i v e s . One was going t o t h i s r i v e r t h a t I 

17 can't pronounce, the Monongahela, the Monongahela River, 

18 and they said i t was several miles of pipe t o get there. 

19 The other a l t e r n a t i v e was to go t o Pike Run, which i s the 

20 creek t h a t goes down through Daisytown, and they said that 

21 d r i e d up many times and d i d not have s u f f i c i e n t water. So, 

22 they e l e c t e d not to take t h a t . The t h i r d a l t e r n a t i v e was 

23 t h i s Crescent Mine water, and i t was approved and permitted 

24 i n '29 and '30, 1929 and '30, as being the most reasonable 

2 5 source of safe d r i n k i n g water, according t o the 192 9 and 
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1 '30 standards. What I am t r y i n g t o get at i n recommending 

2 t h a t these other a l t e r n a t i v e s be considered i s t h i s i s 70 

3 years l a t e r and maybe i t 1 s time t o reevaluate t h a t . So 

4 t h a t a b e t t e r source of water i s now a h a l f a mile away, 

5 maybe even a l i t t l e less than h a l f a mile away, and maybe 

6 t h a t should be reevaluated. 

7 Q. Would t h a t r e e v a l u a t i o n have t o address 

8 p o t e n t i a l flow problems associated w i t h an i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n 

9 and purchasing of a d d i t i o n a l volumes of water? 

10 A. C e r t a i n l y . I would t h i n k t h a t - - t h e study t h a t I 

11 recommended by my testimony, I would t h i n k t h a t the company 

12 would h i r e a competent engineer--I guess a l l engineers are 

13 competent --but have a l l a l t e r n a t i v e s evaluated w i t h , you 

14 know, f e a s i b i l i t y study accurate cost estimates put on them 

15 so t h a t somebody could look at those and determine i f - - f o r 

16 one t h i n g , the company can look at i t and make a reasonable 

17 d e c i s i o n , and so t h a t somebody l i k e O.C.A. could look at i t 

18 and see i f the company i s making a reasonable decisi o n . 

19 Q. Would you expect t o f i n d pipe problems i f such 

2 0 an i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n were established? 

21 A. No. 

2 2 Q. Breakage, t h a t k i n d of t h i n g w i t h the water 

23 f l o w i n g i n d i f f e r e n t d i r e c t i o n s and so f o r t h ? 

24 A. Well, i t i s possible t h a t i f the in t e r c o n n e c t i o n 

25 i s made where I'm recommending i t at the end of West Maiden 
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1 Drive, t h a t much water w i l l be f l o w i n g i n a d i f f e r e n t 

2 d i r e c t i o n i n the pipe and i t would create some d i r t y water 

3 which would be flushed out. As f a r as pressure, there are 

4 pressure reducing valves. There are a l l s o r t s of valves 

5 and equipment t h a t can be i n s t a l l e d t o prevent breakage due 

6 t o high pressure, f o r example. 

7 Q. And those have yet to be determined but would be 

8 p a r t of the--

9 A. Of the study, c e r t a i n l y . 

10 Q. Let's go on to the water pressure s e c t i o n of 

11 your testimony. Now, I'm on page--it s t a r t s on Page 10. 

12 And then over on Page 12, you s t a t e t h a t , pressure i s 23.8 

13 p s i t o 34.2 p s i at the main, depending on the water l e v e l 

14 i n the tank? 

15 A. Yeah. This i s my best guess. 

16 Q. And i t ' s based on mathematical c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

17 A. Well--

18 Q. I'm a lawyer. I'm not very good at math, but I 

19 t h i n k t h a t I - -

20 A. These maps t h a t we passed out, these blown up 

21 topographical maps th a t we passed out, have l i n e s drawn on 

22 them which are 20 f e e t apart i n e l e v a t i o n . So, you can 

23 roughly determine what the e l e v a t i o n i s by lo o k i n g at these 

24 drawings. They are known t o be accurate to w i t h i n 

25 10 f e e t . So, you might look at a l i n e t h a t says 1,000 and 
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1 i t could be 1,010 or i t could be 990, but at l e a s t i t puts 

2 you i n the b a l l park. And 10 f e e t i s 4.3 p s i . So, I went 

3 through an analysis of t r y i n g t o determine what the 

4 pressure would be by look i n g at t h i s map, and I came up 

5 w i t h some. Then I compared t h a t t o the pressure reading 

6 t h a t I took when I v i s i t e d the system i n May of '99 and 

7 t r i e d t o determine i f an adjustment should be made to what 

8 I had determined by look i n g a t t h i s map. And I made an 

9 adjustment, and I f o r g e t what i t was. I t may have been 3 

10 p s i . 3 p s i , a l l r i g h t , but the proper way t o do t h i s i s 

11 f o r the company to have taken pressure surveys annually, as 

12 they are supposed t o do according t o the P.U.C. regs, so 

13 t h a t I wouldn't have had to go through t h i s and I would 

14 have known what the pressure was and the low pressure--the 

15 area t h a t has--that the customers are complaining about 

16 having low pressure. 

17 Q. Let me ask you t h i s . You are able t o st a t e i n 

18 your testimony what I read t o you, t h a t the pressure i s 

19 approximately 23.8 p s i t o 34.2 p s i at the main i n the high 

20 p o i n t of the d i s t r i b u t i o n system, r i g h t ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. And t h a t ' s depending on the water l e v e l i n the 

2 3 tank? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. The 34.2 p s i i s when the tank i s f u l l ? 



257 

1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. And the 23.8 i s at what tank l e v e l ? 

3 A. Empty. 

4 Q. Empty? 

5 A. Or at bottom. There might be--I don't know i f 

6 the tank can be emptied. Most of these tanks have a l i t t l e 

7 pipe t h a t comes out s i x inches or a f o o t t o c o l l e c t 

8 sediment. So, the tank may not even be able t o be emptied. 

9 Q. And how high i s the tank? 

10 A. 32 f e e t . 

11 Q. Now, down on the bottom p a r t of t h a t page, you 

12 t e s t i f i e d t h a t , s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n i s not a v a i l a b l e t o 

13 determine i f the normal operating pressure i n the higher 

14 areas f a l l s below 25 psi? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. But you know t h a t at the high p o i n t , the s t a t i c 

17 pressure, anyway, i s between 23.8 and 34.2? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. How many pressure t e s t s d i d you take i n your 

2 0 various times? 

21 A . I took pressure three places, and t h a t was on 

22 the f i r s t t r i p . 

23 Q. And where d i d you take the pressure tests? 

24 A . I took i t at the highest house on Main Street, 

25 the next t o the highest house on Walkertown H i l l , and I 
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1 also took i t at a f a i r l y high house on Main S t r e e t . I 

2 t h i n k i t ' s the Jones residence. I t ' s one of the houses 

3 t h a t s i t s up high on the right-hand side and there i s a 

4 number of steps t h a t go up. 

5 Q. And what were those readings? 

6 A. I don't have them a v a i l a b l e . 

7 Q. Were they less than 25 psi? 

8 A. No. But they were not taken at a time of high 

9 usage. 

10 Q. When i s the time of high usage? 

11 A. Well, the time of high usage probably f l u c t u a t e s 

12 from system t o system, depending on i f t h i s i s a 

13 r e s i d e n t i a l system. I would say high usage might occur on 

14 Monday i f there i s a l o t of stay at home mom's, or i t might 

15 occur on a weekend i n the summer where people are watering 

16 the lawns and washing the car or the dog or whatever. 

17 Q. Okay. 

18 A. And these c e r t a i n l y weren't taken at t h a t time. 

19 Q. You were provided w i t h a reading from a 

20 continuous recording pressure gauge, were you not? 

21 A. Yes, I was. 

2 2 Q. And i s i t your testimony t h a t t h a t gauge was 

23 n o t - - t h a t t h a t gauge d i d not read during a time of peak 

24 usage? 

25 A. D a i l y peak, yes. But seasonal peak, no. I 
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don't t h i n k a gauge i n s t a l l e d i n January, f o r example, 

would h i t the seasonal peak where people are washing t h e i r 

cars or watering t h e i r lawns and so on. I t would be very 

u n t y p i c a l of a system t o have a seasonal peak i n January. 

Q. But i t does read the d a i l y f l u c t u a t i o n s ? 

A. D a i l y f l u c t u a t i o n s , yes. 

Q. And d i d t h a t gauge i n d i c a t e t h a t pressure was 

gre a t e r than 25 pounds per square inch d u r i n g the peak 

d a i l y usage period? 

A. At the place where the gauge was i n s t a l l e d , i t 

d i d . 

Q. Where was the gauge i n s t a l l e d ? 

A. 95 Main Stre e t . 

Q. I s t h a t at a high p o i n t i n the system? 

A. Not at the highest p o i n t i n the system. 

Q. I s i t at a high p o i n t i n the system? 

A. I t i s i n one of the higher areas of the system. 

Q. How many p o i n t s of usage are higher than 95 Main 

Street? 

A. Well, we d i d n ' t count the houses, but I suspect 

there was--I suspect there may be 20. 

Q. Twenty houses higher than 95 Main Street? 

A. I'm guessing, but yes. Some of those houses are 

double houses. The 20 I'm guessing at would include two 

f o r every duplex. 
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1 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor please, I would l i k e 

2 t o have t h i s marked as Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1. This i s our 

3 I n t e r r o g a t o r y response which bears the continuous pressure 

4 gauge reading f o r the p e r i o d of January 13th through 

5 January 19th, 2000. Could t h a t be so i d e n t i f i e d ? 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

7 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

8 Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1 f o r 

9 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

10 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I have two copies f o r the 

11 r e p o r t e r . 

12 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

13 Q. I w i l l show you t h a t , Mr. Fought. That's the 

14 company's response t o an O.C.A. I n t e r r o g a t o r y I I I - 2 . Have 

15 you seen t h a t response p r i o r t o today? 

16 A. Yes, I have. 

17 Q. And i s t h a t not the reading from the continuous 

18 recording pressure gauge? 

19 A. Yes, i t i s . 

20 Q. Can you read the gauge r e s u l t s ? 

21 A. Let me look at my copy, which i s a l i t t l e b i t 

22 b e t t e r copy. 

23 Q. Sure. We have the o r i g i n a l . 

24 A. I found my copy. I t looks l i k e i t ' s g e n e r a l l y 

25 between 40 and 43 p s i , w i t h downward spikes of perhaps 35 
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1 p s i . 

2 Q. Down t o 35 psi? 

3 A. Yes. Yes. 

4 Q. Okay. 

5 A. I would l i k e t o note t h a t was an incomplete 

6 response t o our I n t e r r o g a t o r y , because we wanted 

7 i n f o r m a t i o n t o adjust these pressures t o the highest p o i n t 

8 i n the d i s t r i b u t i o n system, and t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was not 

9 fur n i s h e d t o us by the company. 

10 Q. Well, you don't dispute t h a t you were given a 

11 continuous recording pressure gauge reading a t a high p o i n t 

12 i n the d i s t r i b u t i o n system f o r a six-day p e r i o d i n January 

13 of 2000, do you? 

14 A. I do not dispute t h a t . 

15 Q. Now, on Page 16 of your testimony, you have a 

16 statement i n the second complete answer i n response t o the 

17 question, what are your comments regarding the company1s 

18 pressure surveys. The second sentence reads, at O.C.A.'s 

19 request, the company d i d record pressures near the high 

20 p o i n t of i t s d i s t r i b u t i o n system, but these readings were 

21 not taken during the p e r i o d of maximum usage. Now, we j u s t 

2 2 discussed t h i s ( but i t was taken during a p e r i o d of maximum 

23 d a i l y usage, was i t not? 

24 A. Max ma'am d a i l y usage, but not maximum peak 

25 seasonal usage. 
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1 Q. And th a t ' s a d i s t i n c t i o n t h a t you intended t o 

2 draw w i t h t h i s wording i n your testimony? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. How would I reading your testimony understand 

5 that? 

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Objection, Your Honor. 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Overruled. 

8 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: A witness can't know how 

9 Mr. Niesen would i n t e r p r e t something. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: The witness may answer the question. 

11 A. You know, I don't know how you would i n t e r p r e t 

12 t h i s . I f I was a lawyer and not an engineer, I would 

13 probably get out the P.U.C. reg t h a t covers t h i s and look 

14 at i t and then determine t h a t instead of what an engineer-' 

15 how an engineer has phrased i t . 

16 Q. So, an engineer reading the phrase but these 

17 pressure readings were not taken during the period of 

18 maximum usage would understand t h a t you intended t o say i n 

19 t h a t phrase t h a t you were r e f e r r i n g t o a per i o d of maximum 

20 seasonal usage? 

21 A. To me, maximum seasonal usage i s higher than a 

22 maximum d a i l y usage. So, yes, t h a t would seem t o make 

23 sense t o me. 

24 Q. Okay. Now, a l i t t l e b i t on f i r e flows, 

25 Mr. Fought. On Page 13 of your testimony, there i s a 
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1 question t h a t reads, do the pressures i n the company's 

2 d i s t r i b u t i o n system comply w i t h the a p p l i c a b l e Pennsylvania 

3 Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n r e g u l a t i o n s . The 

4 answer i s , as you stated, no. PA D.E.P. requires t h a t the 

5 company maintain a minimum pressure of 2 0 p s i at ground 

6 l e v e l s a t a l l p o i n t s i n the system under a l l c o n d i t i o n s of 

7 flow. Let me ask you--I t h i n k I have asked you t h i s 

8 before, but do you have any pressure t e s t r e s u l t s t h a t 

9 shows a reading of less than 20 psi? 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. And the second sentence of your answer reads, 

12 the lowest acceptable f i r e flow, 500 gal l o n s per minute, 

13 cannot be pumped out of the highest f i r e hydrant on Main 

14 Street without c r e a t i n g negative pressure. 500 gallons per 

15 minute i s the lowest acceptable f i r e flow by whom? 

16 A. Insurance Services O f f i c e . The Insurance 

17 Services O f f i c e gives no c r e d i t f o r a r e d u c t i o n of service 

18 rates f o r any f i r e flow less than 50 0 g a l l o n s a minute. 

19 And as I had mentioned i n t h a t previous case or t h a t 

2 0 previous s i t u a t i o n t h a t we were involved w i t h , the D.E.P. 

21 was enf o r c i n g i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r case t h a t a l l hydrants had 

22 t o produce 500 gal l o n s per minute f o r a two-hour f i r e , 

2 3 which i s 60,000 gallons t o t a l , or the hydrants had to be 

24 removed and they required the water company t o remove those 

25 hydrants. So, t h i s i s , again, one of these standards t h a t 
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1 probably i s enforceable but not nec e s s a r i l y enforced. 

2 Q. D.E.P. doesn't have an acceptable f i r e flow 

3 requirement of 500 gal l o n s per minute? 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, i s there a question? 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: I don't know. I s t h a t a question? 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I w i l l rephrase i t . 

7 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

8 Q. Does D.E.P. have a r e g u l a t i o n which states t h a t 

9 the lowest acceptable f i r e flow i s 500 gal l o n s per minute? 

10 A . I have not seen t h a t i n the D.E.P. re g u l a t i o n s , 

11 but they d i d enforce i t i n t h a t one p a r t i c u l a r instance, 

12 and i t ' s probably because everybody seems t o accept t h i s 

13 Insurance Services O f f i c e . 

14 Q. They enforce the 500 gal l o n s per minute flow or 

15 the s i x - i n c h underneath the hydrant s i t u a t i o n ? 

16 A. I t h i n k i t was t h e - - I can't say f o r sure. I t 

17 e i t h e r v i o l a t e d one or the other. And they r e q u i r e d the 

18 company t o perform an analysis of a l l the hydrants i n t h e i r 

19 system t o prove t h a t a l l the hydrants e i t h e r d i d or d i d not 

20 have the a b i l i t y of producing 500 gal l o n s a minute and f o r 

21 a d u r a t i o n of two hours, and apparently those t h a t d i d not 

22 pass had t o be removed. 

2 3 Q. Removed? 

24 A. There were some t h a t - - t h i s company was also 

25 b u i l d i n g a proposed storage tank at the time, and those 
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t h a t would pass once t h a t proposed storage tank went up 

were covered w i t h black p l a s t i c bags u n t i l the storage tank 

was completed and put i n operation. 

Q. Once removed, how was f i r e p r o t e c t i o n provided 

to the community where t h i s s i t u a t i o n occurred? 

A. I would assume i t was provided by tanker 

t r u c k s . 

Q. Tanker tru c k s owned by whom? 

A. Well--

Q. Not the water company? 

A. E i t h e r the m u n i c i p a l i t y or volunteer f i r e 

company. 

Q. Now, the s i t u a t i o n about negative pressure t h a t 

you present on Page 13, t h a t ' s a h y p o t h e t i c a l , i s n ' t i t ? 

A. Yeah, i t i s . But I t h i n k t h a t i s the reason why 

they at l e a s t want new systems to comply w i t h the s i x - i n c h 

pipe and the f i r e flow. Because, you know, a f i r e c h i e f or 

a s s i s t a n t f i r e c h i e f , or maybe not the normal company th a t 

serves t h a t area, they might be f i g h t i n g f i r e s somewhere 

else or on vacation, but some other f i r e company may come 

out, and i f i t looks l i k e a f i r e hydrant, they might expect 

t o get 500 g a l l o n s a minute out of i t . 

Q. My question i s , to your knowledge, has t h i s ever 

happened i n the Crescent Heights--

A. No. 
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1 Q. --area of the Redstone system? 

2 A. To my knowledge, I don't have any idea whether 

3 i t happened or not. I t h i n k i t i s one of these things t h a t 

4 you make sure i t doesn't happen. 

5 Q. I n your testimony, you discuss a Public U t i l i t y 

6 Commission proceeding i n v o l v i n g Jean Moodier v. Appalachian 

7 U t i l i t i e s . I t ' s on Page 7 of your testimony. 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. You note t h a t the complaints about hardness were 

10 dismissed i n t h a t case? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Did you read t h a t decision, by the way? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. When i s the l a s t time you read i t ? 

15 A. Oh, when I was preparing my D i r e c t Testimony. 

16 Q. And how long ago was that? 

17 A . I fo r g e t the date t h a t t h i s was submitted, but 

18 i t was a couple months ago. But much of i t , I d i d n ' t 

19 understand because I'm not a lawyer. But I understood 

20 those p a r t s t h a t I thought were important t o my testimony. 

21 Q. Did you understand Judge Cocheres' conclusion on 

22 page--Judge Cocheres' conclusion t h a t the issue i s not 

23 customer d i s s a t i s f a c t i o n but r a t h e r whether p r o v i d i n g hard 

24 water i s a v i o l a t i o n of the s t a t u t e , I f i n d t h a t p r o v i d i n g 

25 hard water i s not a v i o l a t i o n of the s t a t u t e . The s t a t u t e 
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1 provides t h a t the product s h a l l be adequate or reasonable, 

2 not a p e r f e c t match t o the customer's expectations. I n 

3 essence, the customers f a i l e d t o c a r r y i n g t h e i r burden of 

4 proving t h a t the company had v i o l a t e d the s t a t u t e . Do you 

5 remember reading that? 

6 A. Yes, I do. 

7 Q. And d i d you understand t h a t when you read i t ? 

8 A. I understood i t . That's why I said that--what I 

9 d i d as a response t o t h a t question, t h a t the hardness 

10 problem was enforceable or--what page was t h a t again? I 

11 l o s t my page. 

12 Q. The page of your testimony? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Your discussion of Moodier i s on Page 7. 

15 A. Yeah. The po i n t s about hardness were 

16 dismissed. 

17 Q. A l l r i g h t . 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, i f I could have f i v e 

19 minutes, I may be done. 

20 JUDGE NEMEC: Sure. I t ' s a good time t o take a 

21 five-minute break. 

22 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Thank you. 

23 (Whereupon, a recess was taken from 

24 10:45 A.M. t o 10:57 A.M.) 

2 5 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 
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1 Q. I have another question or two f o r you. We were 

2 t a l k i n g about f i r e flows, and I thought t h a t you said t h a t 

3 the insurance people provide no premium r a t i n g f o r - -

4 A. No c r e d i t f o r red u c t i o n i n insurance rates f o r 

5 f i r e hydrants t h a t put out less than 500 gal l o n s a minute. 

6 Q. You are f a m i l i a r w i t h an o r g a n i z a t i o n c a l l e d 

7 Insurance Services O f f i c e , Inc.? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. What do they do? 

10 A. They take f i r e flowage t e s t s i n water systems 

11 and they use t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n f o r the insurance r a t e s . 

12 They evaluate the f i r e companies, the water systems, and so 

13 on, and they come up w i t h how f i r e insurance rates should 

14 be. 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor please, I would l i k e 

16 t o have t h i s marked as Redstone E x h i b i t No. 2. I t 1s a 

17 l e t t e r from the Insurance Services O f f i c e dated 

18 September 25, 1997, and attached t o i t i s a gradient sheet 

19 f o r West Pike Run Township, Washington County. 

20 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

21 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

22 Redstone E x h i b i t No. 2 f o r 

23 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

24 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I only have one copy of t h i s at 

2 5 the moment. 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: We can make copies. Show i t t o 

2 counsel. 

3 (Document handed t o counsel.) 

4 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

5 Q. I know you haven't seen t h i s before, Mr. Fought, 

6 but l e t me show you Redstone E x h i b i t No. 2 and ask you t o 

7 take a look at i t . A f t e r you become f a m i l i a r w i t h i t , l e t 

8 me know and I w i l l have a question f o r you. 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I have t o object t o 

10 any f u r t h e r questioning on t h i s because t h i s document has 

11 j u s t appeared. There i s no one here t o aut h e n t i c a t e t h i s 

12 document at a l l . And t o expect Mr. Fought t o answer any 

13 questions about i t i s j u s t unreasonable. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: Let's see what Mr. Fought has to say 

15 about i t . Let's see what the questions are f i r s t . 

16 A. Okay. 

17 Q. Does the gradient sheet i n d i c a t e t h a t c r e d i t was 

18 given f o r water supply--

19 JUDGE NEMEC: F i r s t of a l l , l e t ' s see i f the witness 

20 recognizes anything about the document. Have you seen 

21 anything l i k e t h i s before, Mr. Fought? 

22 THE WITNESS: Yes, I have. 

23 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. And what do you recognize i t t o be, i n your 

25 experience? 



270 

1 A. I t appears t o be a gradient sheet r e s u l t s of 

2 hydrant flow t e s t s . I t appears th a t I misspoke. They d i d 

3 give some c r e d i t - -

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Objection. Your Honor, the 

5 company i s now attempting t o make Mr. Fought t h e i r own 

6 witness. I f they want t h i s document i n t o evidence, they 

7 can have one of t h e i r witnesses--

8 JUDGE NEMEC: I disagree. I t ' s Cross-examination. 

9 I t ' s appropriate t o present a document such as t h i s at t h i s 

10 time. 

11 A. I t looks t o be--you know, i t ' s not r e a l l y c l e a r 

12 t o me because I don't know how i t a f f e c t s insurance r a t e s , 

13 but i t does appear from t h i s document t h a t there i s some 

14 c r e d i t given f o r water supply. Now, i f th a t c r e d i t i s 

15 given because of hydrant flow t e s t s , I don't know, but 

16 there i s a c r e d i t given f o r water supply here. 

17 Q. Thank you. 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, t h a t 

19 completes our Cross-examination. We move i n t o the record 

20 Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1 as w e l l as Redstone E x h i b i t No. 2. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1 i s admitted. 

2 2 (Whereupon, the document marked as 

23 Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1 was admitted i n t o 

24 evidence.) 

25 JUDGE NEMEC: 2, I w i l l hold o f f on r u l i n g on t h a t . 
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1 I know there i s going t o be ob j e c t i o n s , and I want you to 

2 provide some a u t h e n t i c a t i n g testimony w i t h regard t o 

3 Mr. Yablonski when he i s the witness and then we w i l l deal 

4 w i t h i t at t h a t time. 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I don't want t o waive--I don't 

6 t h i n k Ms. Dusman--we are g e t t i n g t o the p o i n t where the 

7 Fought e x h i b i t s are being moved i n t o the record. I do have 

8 a p o s i t i o n w i t h respect t o some of those. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

10 ATTORNEY NIESEN: My Cross-examination i s complete. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I have j u s t a moment, 

12 Your Honor? 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: Sure. 

14 ( B r i e f pause.) 

15 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Thank you f o r your indulgence, 

16 Your Honor. I have some questions on Redirect. 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

18 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

20 Q. F i r s t of a l l , Mr. Fought, Mr. Niesen made a 

21 motion w i t h respect t o several statements i n your 

22 testimony, one of them being t h a t you were advised by a 

23 D.E.P. employee concerning the hardness l e v e l s of the 

24 Appalachian water t h a t was the subject of the Moodier 

25 complaint. Do you r e c a l l those questions and t h e i r 
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1 answers? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Okay. Was I co r r e c t when I said t h a t you f i r s t 

4 o r a l l y received t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n over the phone from the 

5 D.E.P. employee? 

6 A. No. You were i n c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Would you please s t a t e how you o r i g i n a l l y got 

8 t h a t information? 

9 A. I received a t a b u l a t i o n by e-mail from a D.E.P. 

10 employee of various hardness l e v e l s i n the region, 

11 i n c l u d i n g the two Appalachian w e l l s , and I used t h a t 

12 i n f o r m a t i o n f o r my testimony. We l a t e r went back t o get 

13 f u r t h e r i n f o r m a t i o n from D.E.P. to determine the other 

14 c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the water--to get the other 

15 c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the water, such as t o t a l dissolved 

16 s o l i d s and so on t o see i f they had also exceeded to v e r i f y 

17 t h a t those secondary requirements were not exceeded f o r the 

18 Appalachian water. 

19 Q. And d i d the subsequent documents t h a t you 

20 received corroborate the i n i t i a l document t h a t you received 

21 w i t h the numbers t h a t appear on Page 8 of your testimony? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. And during the break, d i d you look at the 

24 document t h a t was received from the D.E.P. concerning those 

25 hardness l e v e l s and other i n f o r m a t i o n on water f o r the 
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1 regions? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Do you now have any reason t o doubt the t r u t h of 

4 those statements? 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I object t o t h a t . How does he 

6 know that? I t doesn't cure the hearsay problem t o say tha t 

7 i t ' s i n w r i t i n g . The o b j e c t i o n i s s t i l l there and i t i s 

8 s t i l l hearsay. 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Experts have the a b i l i t y t o judge 

10 the c r e d i b i l i t y of statements given t o them, p a r t i c u l a r l y 

11 by government employees t h a t come from p u b l i c records. 

12 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I c e r t a i n l y - -

13 JUDGE NEMEC: Well, I be l i e v e I took under 

14 advisement the p r i o r o b j e c t i o n . I don't remember at t h i s 

15 p o i n t . 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That's my r e c o l l e c t i o n , 

17 Your Honor. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: I t h i n k t h a t i f you want, you may 

19 r e v i s e your question. Could you read back the question? 

2 0 (Whereupon, the court r e p o r t e r read from 

21 the record as requested.) 

22 JUDGE NEMEC: I t h i n k probably counsel i s tr o u b l e d 

23 by your use of t r u t h of these statements. 

24 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I w i l l rephrase, Your Honor. 

2 5 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 
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1 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

2 Q. I n your experience as an expert witness, are 

3 these statements the type t h a t are r e l i a b l e ? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: What statements? 

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: The statements made by the D.E.P. 

7 employee concerning the hardness l e v e l s of water i n the 

8 region. 

9 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I won't belabor i t . I j u s t want 

10 my o b j e c t i o n noted on the record. That he says he has 

11 t a l k e d t o people, I t h i n k t h a t ' s o b j e c t i o n a b l e . I t h i n k i f 

12 he i s not t r y i n g t o b u t t r e s s t h a t by saying he looked at 

13 documents t o support t h a t , I want my o b j e c t i o n noted t o 

14 t h a t as w e l l . 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: The o b j e c t i o n i s noted. And I'm 

16 t a k i n g i t a l l under advisement u n t i l such time t h a t I 

17 review the e n t i r e t r a n s c r i p t . 

18 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

20 Q. According t o Tri-County re p r e s e n t a t i v e s , you say 

21 on Page 9, Tri-County now owns the abandoned p i p e l i n e t h a t 

22 was used t o provide Daisytown w i t h R i c h e y v i l l e water 

2 3 through the mine. Now, t h a t statement, Mr. Fought, you 

24 said, was based on a statement made t o you by Tri-County? 

25 ATTORNEY NIESEN: And I want my o b j e c t i o n noted t o 
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1 anything along t h i s l i n e where counsel i s t r y i n g t o support 

2 the admission of these two sentences from Page 9. I t h i n k 

3 i t ' s c l e a r l y hearsay. 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I'm t r y i n g t o e l u c i d a t e , 

5 Your Honor, why Mr. Fought f e e l s they are r e l i a b l e 

6 statements. And i n making a r u l i n g , I'm sure Your Honor 

7 would l i k e t o know what the i n d i c i a of r e l i a b i l i t y are 

8 surrounding these statements. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: I believe he addressed t h a t , but I 

10 w i l l permit the question. Go ahead and answer, s i r . 

11 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

12 Q. Thank you. When you wrote t h a t sentence, 

13 Mr. Fought, d i d you have i n mind the meeting t h a t you had 

14 w i t h Tri-County r e p r e s e n t a t i v e J e f f Kovach on March 9th? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I t ' s leading. I obje c t t o t h a t . 

17 I t ' s a leading question, d i d you have i n mind a meeting. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: He t e s t i f i e d t o a previous meeting 

19 w i t h Mr. Kovach. Yes, i t ' s leading. On t h a t basis, i t ' s 

20 o b j e c t i o n a b l e , but I'm going t o o v e r r u l e the question. 

21 Answer the question, s i r . 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o statements made, was there any 

24 other--was there a document o f f e r e d f o r you t o review t o 

25 determine the l o c a t i o n of the abandoned p i p e l i n e t h a t you 
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1 are r e f e r r i n g ? 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, please note my 

3 obj e c t i o n t o a l l of i t . 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Yeah. I f there was a document, t h a t ' s 

5 something t h a t could have been o f f e r e d p r e v i o u s l y or 

6 mentioned. But go ahead. 

7 A. Yes. He showed me a very o l d map showing the 

8 l o c a t i o n of t h i s l i n e from R i c h e y v i l l e t o Daisytown. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: I s t h i s the one t h a t was put i n - -

10 THE WITNESS: 17,000 fe e t i n the mine. 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: And now the mine has been closed o f f ? 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: That's something t h a t i n your 

14 testimony? 

15 THE WITNESS: Yes, i t i s . 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: And t h i s was a long time ago? 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: My understanding of your testimony on 

19 t h a t subject was t h a t because t h a t l i n e e x i s t e d at some 

20 p o i n t and now i s no longer usable or serviceable, t h a t that 

21 might serve as a basis f o r seeking funding t o replace i t . 

22 THE WITNESS: For Tri-County. 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: For Tri-County t o . 

24 THE WITNESS: Tri-County seeking funding t o replace 

25 i t . 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . Just t o make sure I 

2 understand your testimony c o r r e c t l y . 

3 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

4 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

5 Q. Do you r e c a l l Mr. Niesen's questions t o you 

6 about observing the white p a r t i c l e s i n the customer's 

7 water? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And i n answer t o h i s question, could the white 

10 p a r t i c l e s have been the scale from a pipe, I believe you 

11 said i t could have been? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. I f i t was a scale from the pipe, would t h a t not 

14 also have r e s u l t e d from the water i t s e l f ? I n other words, 

15 the scale from the pipe would have been--

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. - - r e s u l t e d from the water? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Could you e x p l a i n that? 

2 0 A. As was shown by the Complainants yesterday, some 

21 of these p a r t i c l e s s e t t l e out i n the hot water tank and 

22 they form on faucets and so on. And they also form i n s i d e 

23 the pipe a l i t t l e b i t i n d i f f e r e n t places, and every once 

24 i n a wh i l e , one of these can break f r e e . And i f i t breaks 

2 5 f r e e , i t can end up i n a glass of water. I f i t happens t o 
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1 break f r e e and go i n t o a washing machine and i t has i r o n 

2 and manganese i n i t , i t might s t a i n the water, i f i t ' s hot 

3 water and Clorox. But, yes, to answer your question, most 

4 p a r t i c l e s can be r e l a t e d t o hardness. 

5 Q. A l l r i g h t . Speaking of hardness of the water, 

6 do you r e c a l l Mr. Niesen's questions t o you about the f a c t 

7 t h a t there i s no standard per se f o r hardness l e v e l s i n 

8 d r i n k i n g water? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. And I believe t h a t your response was tha t ' s 

11 c o r r e c t , there i s no standard f o r hardness per se? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Would you please e x p l a i n how hardness l e v e l s i n 

14 water r e l a t e t o the standard f o r t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s , 

15 which i s a secondary maximum contaminant l e v e l ? 

16 A. The minerals t h a t comprise hardness and are 

17 expressed at CaC03, calcium carbonate, those minerals are 

18 also counted i n the determination of how much the t o t a l 

19 d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s are. 

20 Q. Okay. And i t ' s not j u s t the CaCO, i s i t ? 

21 A. No. No. I t doesn't have anything--the calcium, 

22 maybe. The CaCO, i t ' s the minerals t h a t comprise the 

23 carbon c o n s t i t u e n t s t h a t form the t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s . 

24 Q. I f you could j u s t r e f e r f o r a moment to your 

25 E x h i b i t No. 1, TLF-1. Looking down the l i s t of the various 
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1 f a c t o r s f o r which we t e s t , can you i d e n t i f y any other 

2 elements t h a t c o n t r i b u t e t o t o t a l d i s s o l v e d sol ids i n 

3 d r i n k i n g water? 

4 A. You know, there may be some, but I don't know. 

5 You know, t o t a l dissolved s o l i d s i s everything--you take a 

6 sampling of water, you weigh i t , you evaporate everything 

7 out, and you weigh what's l e f t . F i r s t of a l l , you get the 

8 sediment s o l i d . So, any s o l i d s t h a t s e t t l e , you take out. 

9 Then you evaporate everything t h a t ' s l e f t . Everything i s 

10 weighed, and t h a t ' s t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s . So, there may 

11 be other t h i n g s other than t h i s l i s t t h a t comprise t o t a l 

12 dis s o l v e d s o l i d s . 

13 Q. I s sodium one of the things t h a t might 

14 c o n t r i b u t e t o that? 

15 A. Sodium would be, yes. Any mineral. 

16 Q. Any mineral on t h i s l i s t - -

17 A. O r ­

i s Q. --may wind up i n t o t a l d i s s o l v e d solids? 

19 A. Any mineral i n the water t h a t i s or i s not on 

20 t h i s l i s t . 

21 Q. So, do you r e c a l l Mr. Niesen 1s question t o you 

22 about hardness not having a bearing on the a e s t h e t i c 

23 q u a l i t y of water? 

24 A. I don't remember h i s question, but--

25 Q. Do you remember your answer? 
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1 A. I f he asked t h a t question, I would have probably 

2 sa i d that--what was the question again? You know, you 

3 confused me. 

4 Q. Mr. Niesen suggested t h a t the f a c t t h a t there 

5 i s n ' t a standard f o r hardness per se i n d i c a t e s t h a t i t ' s 

6 not c o n t r i b u t e d t o the a e s t h e t i c q u a l i t y of water? 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I ob j e c t . I d i d n ' t suggest 

8 anything. I asked the question which he answered. However 

9 he answered i t , i t ' s on the record. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: I don't t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s a f a i r 

11 c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n of the question. I remember the question 

12 and answer. 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I w i l l go on. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: You can ask him--well, go ahead. 

15 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I w i l l go on. 

16 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

17 Q. To the extent t h a t very, very high l e v e l s of 

18 hardness c o n t r i b u t e t o high l e v e l s of t o t a l dissolved 

19 s o l i d s , t h a t a f f e c t s the a e s t h e t i c q u a l i t y of water, 

20 doesn't i t ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Now, i n answer to Mr. Niesen's questions about 

23 the e n f o r c e a b i l i t y of secondary MCLs, do you r e c a l l t h a t 

24 you sta t e d , I was advised by the O.C.A. t h a t secondary MCLs 

25 are enforceable i n Pennsylvania? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Do you also r e c a l l a c t u a l l y l o o k i n g at the 

3 Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n r e g u l a t i o n s 

4 concerning secondary MCLs? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. And do you now r e c a l l t h a t you have an 

7 independent knowledge t h a t those regs are enforceable? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Okay. 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That's not t o say you shouldn't 

11 r e l y on the O.C.A. s o l e l y , but I wanted to p o i n t out th a t 

12 he had another basis f o r t h a t understanding. 

13 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

14 Q. Turning t o Redstone Water E x h i b i t No. 1, which 

15 has been admitted--

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. --during the break, d i d you review some 

18 correspondence t o r e f r e s h your r e c o l l e c t i o n about our 

19 request t o the company t o provide a complete response t o 

20 O.C.A. I n t e r r o g a t o r y I I I - 2 ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Would you please t e l l the judge what we d i d t o 

23 t r y t o get the i n f o r m a t i o n concerning the e l e v a t i o n s at 

24 which the pressure t e s t s were taken? 

25 A. Well--
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1 Q. To the best of your r e c o l l e c t i o n . 

2 ' A. F i r s t , we requested t h a t they put a pressure 

3 gauge on the highest f i r e hydrant on Main Street and give 

4 us the d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n from where the gauge i s t o 

5 the highest p o i n t i n the d i s t r i b u t i o n system. And the 

6 company came back and said--at f i r s t , they s a i d they d i d n ' t 

7 have a recording gauge and t h a t we shouldn't have asked 

8 them t o do i t . But then a f t e r they were reminded t h a t they 

9 were supposed t o provide pressure surveys, they came back 

10 and they put a gauge at the house at 95 Main St r e e t , which 

11 i s not too f a r from the highest f i r e hydrant, and gave us 

12 the pressure gauge reading, the e x h i b i t . 

13 Q. And then--

14 A. Then we went back and we asked them f o r the 

15 d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n from t h a t pressure gauge t o the 

16 highest p o i n t i n the main on Main Street, and they came 

17 back and gave us the d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n - - f i r s t , they 

18 gave us an e l e v a t i o n and they s a i d t h a t t h a t answered our 

19 question. And then they came back and said, w e l l , they 

20 misspoke or miswrote, and r e a l l y t h a t e l e v a t i o n was a 

21 d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n between the gauge and the highest 

22 f i r e hydrant t h a t we had i n i t i a l l y asked f o r . And then we 

2 3 had requested t h a t they give us the i n f o r m a t i o n from the 

24 gauge or the f i r e hydrant t o the highest p o i n t on Main 

2 5 Street so t h a t we could convert the pressures on t h e i r 
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1 gauge t o the highest p o i n t i n the d i s t r i b u t i o n system, and 

2 they never gave us tha t data. 

3 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Just a moment. 

4 (B r i e f pause.) 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Nothing f u r t h e r , Your Honor. 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: Recross? 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Yes. 

8 R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

9 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

10 Q. The p o i n t of the pressure gauge, the l o c a t i o n of 

11 i t i s , i n your words, not too f a r from the highest p o i n t i n 

12 the system, r i g h t ? 

13 A. Right. 

14 Q. You looked at Redstone E x h i b i t No. 1 e a r l i e r and 

15 you t o l d me what the continuous pressure readings were? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And what were they? Generally between 42 and--

18 A. I t h i n k g e n e r a l l y between 40 and 43 p s i w i t h 

19 downward spikes t o 35. 

20 Q. Mathematically, you can do a c a l c u l a t i o n , can't 

21 you, which would t e l l you what d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n t h a t 

22 those readings would be necessary t o b r i n g the pressure 

23 below 20 psi? Can't you t e l l me how high--

24 A. Between 25 p s i or 20 p s i , yes, I could do t h a t . 

25 Q. You could do t h a t . And what d i f f e r e n c e i n 
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1 e l e v a t i o n would there have t o be between t h a t p o i n t and the 

2 highest p o i n t i n the system t o b r i n g t h a t pressure gauge 

3 reading down t o 2 5? 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Do you need a c a l c u l a t o r ? 

5 THE WITNESS: Yes, please. 

6 A. What pressure would you l i k e me to work with? 

7 Q. Let's do the 20, the D.E.P.--

8 A. And the other pressure? 

9 Q. The 25 from the Public U t i l i t y Commission. Do 

10 you understand what I'm asking you to do? 

11 A. Well, can you lead me through t h i s . What gauge 

12 pressure are we going t o work with? 

13 Q. Well, you said i t was between 40 and 43. 

14 A. Which one do you want me to work with? 

15 Q. Well, use the 43. 

16 A. 43 p s i down t o 25 psi? 

17 Q. Yeah. Let's do t h a t . 

18 A. Down to 25 p s i i s 18 p s i . 

19 Q. The di f f e r e n c e ? 

20 A. The d i f f e r e n c e i s 18 p s i , which r e l a t e s t o 41 

21 and a h a l f f e e t . 

22 Q. 41 and a h a l f ? 

23 A. I n e l e v a t i o n . 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you t h i n k there i s a 41-foot 

25 d i f f e r e n c e between the l o c a t i o n of the continuous pressure 
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1 gauge and the highest p o i n t i n the system? 

2 A. I don't know, because the company d i d n ' t give me 

3 t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

4 Q. You have been to the system how many times? 

5 A. I have d r i v e n i t a number of times. This road 

6 does go up. I do not know where the gauge was set at the 

7 house. I don't know i f i t was set at the basement. I 

8 don't know i f i t was set on the second s t o r y . I do not 

9 know the d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n , so I don't know. I t 

10 could be 41.5. 

11 Q. I t could be less than 41? 

12 A. I t could be les s . And i t also depends on what 

13 the water e l e v a t i o n i n the tank was. 

14 Q. Okay. 

15 A. The e l e v a t i o n t h a t these gauge readings were 

16 taken when the tank was f u l l , I would suspect--

17 Q. The gauge readings were f o r a six-day period, 

18 r i g h t ? 

19 A. Well, I would suspect t h a t the company went out 

2 0 of i t s way t o make sure t h a t tank was f u l l d uring t h i s 

21 p e r i o d . I f they were smart, they d i d t h a t . 

2 2 Q. You have no i n d i c a t i o n ? 

23 A . I have no i n d i c a t i o n , but I assume Mr. Yablonski 

24 i s a very mart f e l l o w . I know I would have. 

25 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I w i l l make copies of the 
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1 correspondence t h a t went back and f o r t h concerning t h i s 

2 matter and be glad t o put i t i n t o the record, and t h a t w i l l 

3 c l e a r i t up. 

4 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

5 Q. I t wasn't put outside--and I thought we a l l 

6 understood t h i s . The reason i t was put i n the house t o - -

7 A. Keep i t from f r e e z i n g . 

8 Q. Keep i t from f r e e z i n g . Everybody understood. 

9 And t h a t was reasonable t o you? 

10 A. I t was reasonable, yes. What wasn't reasonable 

11 was we d i d n ' t get the d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n from the 

12 gauge, or we have no idea where t h a t gauge was. These 

13 houses, there i s high houses and low houses r i g h t i n t h a t 

14 area and the road i s i n between, and t h a t gauge could have 

15 been put anywhere i n the house from a tap i n the basement 

16 t o a tap on the highest s t o r y . That's a d i f f e r e n c e of, 

17 what, maybe 10 or 12 f e e t r i g h t there, low basement t o high 

18 second s t o r y . 

19 Q. Where should i t have been put? Where would you 

2 0 have wanted i t t o be put? 

21 A . I would have put i t at the most convenient place 

22 and I would have taken a p i c t u r e of i t at the most 

23 convenient place so somebody else could have come back and 

24 got d i f f e r e n c e s i n e l e v a t i o n s . A surveyor, f o r example, 

2 5 could have come back and got d i f f e r e n c e s i n e l e v a t i o n s from 
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1 the gauge where i t was located. 

2 Q. Okay. Let me ask you about the TDS answers t h a t 

3 you gave Ms. Dusman. As I understood i t , you are saying 

4 t h a t hardness i s p a r t of the t o t a l d i s s o l v e d solids? 

5 A. What I'm saying i s the minerals t h a t comprise 

6 the hardness are also counted i n the t o t a l d issolved 

7 s o l i d s . 

8 Q. Okay. Let's look at t h a t . Let's take one, f o r 

9 an example. Do you have your E x h i b i t 1 there w i t h you? 

10 A. Yes, I do. 

11 Q. And I w i l l j u s t use — l e t ' s look at September 30, 

12 '91, as an example, t h a t column, t h a t t a b u l a t e d column. 

13 A. Okay. 

14 Q. I t shows t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s , 852 m i l l i g r a m s 

15 per l i t e r ; and i f you read down, t o t a l hardness calcium 

16 carbonate, 44 8 m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. The calcium carbonate i s one of the s o l i d s 

19 measured i n the t o t a l d issolved solids? 

20 A. No. You can't s u b t r a c t - -

21 Q. You can't do that? 

22 A. No, you cannot do t h a t . Because the carbonate 

23 p a r t doesn't t o t a l l y end up t o be p a r t of the t o t a l 

24 d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s . Hardness i s expressed i n terms of 

2 5 carbonate, and p a r t of t h a t carbonate i s oxygen and i t 
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1 disappears. So, you can't take one and su b t r a c t - -

2 Q. You can 11 r e l a t e one t o the other? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. A l l r i g h t . Thanks, Mr. Fought. 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Just one p o i n t . Your Honor. 

6 F U R T H E R R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

7 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

8 Q. Mr. Fought, do you r e c a l l Mr. Niesen's questions 

9 t o you concerning the pressure t e s t i n g , the six-day 

10 pressure t e s t i n g ? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And I believe you answered t h a t you thought i t 

13 would have been smart t o keep the tank f u l l the whole time 

14 t h a t the t e s t was being taken? 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. But do we have a record of th a t p e r i o d of time, 

17 the tank l e v e l s during t h a t p e r i o d of time? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. I n response t o discovery, however, you d i d have 

20 a chance t o review the company's records of the tank l e v e l s 

21 during another period, d i d you not? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. And what d i d t h a t review show concerning how 

24 much of the time the tank was f u l l and how much of the time 

25 i t was less than h a l f f u l l ? 



289 

1 A. This period of time was from January 1, '99 

2 through, except the l a s t two days of Ju l y i n '99, and I 

3 took out the pe r i o d between January 9th and 17th when there 

4 was t h i s water c r i s i s due t o the l i n e break on Maiden 

5 Road. And I j u s t counted the number of days t h a t i t was 

6 noted t h a t the tank was h a l f f u l l or le s s , and i t was 

7 approximately nine percent of the days t h a t the tank was 

8 h a l f f u l l or less . 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I don't have anything f u r t h e r , 

10 Your Honor. 

11 F U R T H E R R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

12 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

13 Q. What i s the e l e v a t i o n of the tank? Not the 

14 e l e v a t i o n , but how high i s the tank from top t o bottom? 

15 A. 32 f e e t . 

16 Q. Thank you. 

17 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That's a l l I have. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you, s i r . You are excused. 

19 (Witness excused.) 

20 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, w i t h t h a t , I again 

21 would move i n O.C.A. Statement 1. Oh, you have already 

22 admitted O.C.A. Statement 1. 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: Statement 1, E x h i b i t 1, E x h i b i t l-S, 

24 and E x h i b i t 2. 

25 ATTORNEY NIESEN: With regard t o t h a t p o i n t , I have 
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1 an o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t p o r t i o n of E x h i b i t No. 1 which 

2 concerns the water q u a l i t y t e s t r e s u l t s f o r October 21, 

3 1999, i t ' s the l a s t three columns of the E x h i b i t 1, Page 1, 

4 and the supporting schedules f o r i t , which I bel i e v e are 

5 Pages 25 through 31, i n c l u s i v e . Mr. Fought d i d not conduct 

6 those t e s t s himself. Therefore, i t ' s o b j e c t i o n a b l e 

7 hearsay. I n a d d i t i o n , I object t o the admission of O.C.A. 

8 E x h i b i t No. 2, which Mr. Fought c l e a r l y t e s t i f i e d could 

9 have been produced p r i o r t o today but was not produced. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. With regard t o o b j e c t i o n to the 

11 p o r t i o n s of Schedule TLF-1 f o r the date of 10/21/99, t h a t 

12 obj e c t i o n i s overruled. With regard t o O.C.A. 2, I agree 

13 w i t h you, i t could have been produced sooner. I t h i n k t h a t 

14 f a i l u r e t o produce i t i n t h i s circumstances i s harmless i n 

15 t h a t i t ' s drawn from--the witness was very c l e a r t h a t the 

16 i n f o r m a t i o n on there was drawn from m a t e r i a l s provided by 

17 the company. What I'm i n c l i n e d t o do i s grant you 30 days 

18 t o review the accurateness of 2 and compare i t t o your own 

19 records, and should you come up w i t h some m a t e r i a l t h a t ' s 

2 0 s i g n i f i c a n t v a r i a t i o n s i n accuracy t h a t you f e e l should 

21 cause serious problems w i t h O.C.A. 2, then you may so 

22 advise me and counsel f o r O.C.A. i n w r i t i n g and we w i l l 

23 deal w i t h i t at t h a t time. But i f he has done what he has 

24 sa i d he has done and done i t accurately, then i t i s no more 

25 than a compilation, and a very h e l p f u l c o m p i l a t i o n I might 
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• 

1 note, of ma t e r i a l s provided by the company t o him. 

2 Anything else? 

3 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Not from me, no. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. You may c a l l your next 

5 witness. 

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: The O.C.A. c a l l s M a r i l y n Kraus, 

7 and Ms. Ho r t i n g w i l l be doing her D i r e c t . 

8 (Witness sworn.) 

9 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, we have p r e v i o u s l y 

10 d i s t r i b u t e d t o the p a r t i e s and we have provided t o the 

11 court r e p o r t e r two copies of the statement r e l a t e d t o the 

12 D i r e c t Testimony of Ma r i l y n J. Kraus on behalf of the 

13 O f f i c e of Consumer Advocate. This document has been 

14 premarked as O.C.A. Statement No. 2. 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: Yes. 

16 ATTORNEY HORTING: And we would ask t h a t the 

17 statement be i d e n t i f i e d f o r the record as marked. 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

19 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

20 O.C.A. Statement E x h i b i t No. 2 f o r 

21 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

22 MARILYN J. KRAUS, a witness herein, 

23 c a l l e d on behalf of the Complainants, having f i r s t been 

24 duly sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

25 
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1 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

2 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

3 Q.Ms. Kraus, do you have a copy of 0.C.A. 

4 Statement 2 which has been marked f o r the record? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. And does t h i s document contain your D i r e c t 

7 Testimony i n question and answer form? 

8 A. Yes, i t does. 

9 Q. And attached t o t h i s document i s Appendix 1 

10 c o n t a i n i n g your background and q u a l i f i c a t i o n s ? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. I f I were t o ask you the questions contained i n 

13 t h i s document today, would your answers be the same as 

14 those contained i n O.C.A. Statement No. 2? 

15 A. Yes, they would. 

16 Q. And was t h a t document prepared by you or under 

17 your d i r e c t supervision? 

18 A. Yes, i t was. 

19 Q. And are the answers contained i n Statement No. 2 

20 t r u e and c o r r e c t , t o the best of your knowledge, 

21 i n f o r m a t i o n , and b e l i e f ? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 ATTORNEY HORTING: Your Honor, I would l i k e t o move 

24 f o r admission of O.C.A. Statement No. 2 i n t o the record. 

25 JUDGE NEMEC: O.C.A. Statement No. 2 w i t h attached 
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1 Appendix 1 i s admitted subject t o l a t e r motion and/or 

2 o b j e c t i o n by counsel f o r the Respondent. 

3 (Whereupon, the document marked as O.C.A 

4 Statement No. 2 was admitted i n t o 

5 evidence.) 

6 ATTORNEY HORTING: The witness i s a v a i l a b l e f o r 

7 Cross-examination. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: You may proceed. 

9 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

10 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

11 Q. Good morning, Ms. Kraus. 

12 A. Good morning. 

13 Q. You are a senior r e g u l a t o r y a n a l y s t - -

14 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. - - w i t h the Pennsylvania O f f i c e of Consumer 

16 Advocate? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Could you describe what your d u t i e s are as a 

19 senior r e g u l a t o r y analyst? I w i l l make i t easy f o r you. 

20 Do you review u t i l i t y r a t e f i l i n g s as p a r t of t h a t 

21 p o s i t i o n ? 

22 A. Yes, I do. 

2 3 Q. Water company f i l i n g s i n p a r t i c u l a r , or f o r a l l 

24 f i l i n g s ? 

25 A. A l l f i l i n g s . 
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1 Q. Now, on Page 3 of your testimony, a c t u a l l y i t 

2 s t a r t s on the bottom of 2 and continues over to 3, you 

3 s t a t e t h a t the Redstone ra t e s , current r a t e s , are 

4 r e l a t i v e l y high. Now, r e l a t i v e l y , I assume t h a t by 

5 phrasing i t i n t h a t fashion, you mean to say t h a t you 

6 reviewed c e r t a i n other u t i l i t y r a t e s and compared them w i t h 

7 the Redstone rates? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Which companies d i d you review as p a r t of t h a t 

10 comparison? 

11 A. B a s i c a l l y , the companies who have most r e c e n t l y 

12 f i l e d , cases t h a t I have reviewed. One i n p a r t i c u l a r i s 

13 Venango Water Company. And the c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s are 

14 somewhat s i m i l a r t o Redstone i n t h a t i t ' s a f a i r l y small 

15 water company, not a l o t of customers. 

16 Q. How many customers does Venango Water Company 

17 have? 

18 A. I can't r e c a l l offhand. Less than 2,000. 

19 That's the best b a l l park number I can give you. 

2 0 Q. Where i s i t s service t e r r i t o r y ? 

21 A. I n Venango County. 

22 Q. I s i t a surface water company or a w e l l water 

23 company? 

24 A. They have got several systems i n t h a t area, and 

25 Venango i n p a r t i c u l a r , I c o u l d n ' t - - ! can't r e c a l l offhand. 
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1 Q. Venango has several systems, or there are 

2 several systems i n Venango County? 

3 A. Well, there are several systems owned i n common 

4 w i t h the owners of Venango. And now, I can't r e c a l l which 

5 ones--

6 Q. The owner of Venango has ownership of other 

7 water companies? 

8 A. Yes. I n the same general v i c i n i t y . 

9 Q. I s t h a t the only company t h a t you reviewed i n 

10 making your statement on the bottom of 2 and the top of 

11 Page 3? 

12 A. No. I also looked at the some of the l a r g e r 

13 water companies as w e l l , Pennsylvania American, 

14 P h i l a d e l p h i a Suburban Water Company. I n my opinion, 

15 comparing those are not as re l e v a n t because of the size and 

16 the number of customers over which they have to spread 

17 costs. 

18 Q. Any other company? 

19 A. Now, I can't r e c a l l offhand the others t h a t I 

20 looked a t . Probably a h a l f a dozen t h a t I had on my desk. 

21 Q. Half a dozen more? 

22 A. Half a dozen more, yes. 

23 Q. And these are r a t e f i l i n g s or t a r i f f s ? What 

24 were they t h a t you had on your desk? 

25 A. Most of them were r a t e f i l i n g s . 
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1 Q. Current pending f i l i n g s ? 

2 A. Correct. 

3 Q. And d i d you compare the e x i s t i n g r a t e s or the 

4 proposed rates? 

5 A. The proposed. 

6 Q. The proposed rates? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Now, on Page 3 i n the l a s t answer on the page, 

9 you say t h a t , although the O.C.A. agrees t h a t the rates are 

10 high. Now, d i d you review the Redstone r a t e f i l i n g back i n 

11 1997? 

12 A. Yes, I d i d . 

13 Q. You remember doing that? 

14 A. I remember reviewing i t , yes. 

15 Q. And the O.C.A. was not an Intervener or a 

16 Complainer i n t h a t case, as I r e c a l l ? 

17 A. No, we were not. 

18 Q. So, you thought the rates were high and you 

19 decided not t o intervene or complain i n t h a t case? 

2 0 A. Our decision whether t o intervene i n a case or 

21 not intervene i n a case i s not s o l e l y based on whether we 

22 t h i n k the proposed r a t e s are too high or whether there are 

23 issues i n the case. Very o f t e n , i t ' s simply a matter of 

24 volume. I am the only f i n a n c i a l analyst t h a t handles cases 

25 of t h i s size i n the o f f i c e . 
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1 Q. So, these rates i n t h a t case weren't high enough 

2 t o draw your a t t e n t i o n t o the case? 

3 A. No. That's not t r u e at a l l . We look at the 

4 issues very o f t e n . I am i n contact w i t h people over at the 

5 Commission. And, l i k e I said, i t ' s g e n e r a l l y a matter of 

6 volume. 

7 Q. Well, j u s t t e l l me t h i s . Back i n t h a t time 

8 frame, i n the 1997 time frame, you reviewed the case and at 

9 t h a t time, you were also of the view t h a t the company's 

10 proposed r a t e s were high? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. You r e c a l l having t h a t opinion? 

13 A. Yes, I do. 

14 Q. And d i d you recommend, then, t h a t the O.C.A. 

15 become involved i n the case because you f e l t t h a t the rates 

16 were high? 

17 ATTORNEY HORTING: Objection, Your Honor. 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: On what basis? 

19 ATTORNEY HORTING: This has already been asked and 

20 answered. 

21 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I don't remember asking what her 

22 recommendation was. 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: The o b j e c t i o n i s overruled. Please 

24 answer. 

25 A. My recommendation was t h a t the proposed rates 
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1 were too high, t h a t there were several adjustments j u s t 

2 based on an accounting review t h a t I b e l i e v e d could have 

3 been proposed or recommended. I n many cases, when 

4 determining whether we should get i n t o a case or not i s 

5 based on the time t h a t we have a v a i l a b l e t o us. I f you 

6 r e c a l l , '97 was the p e r i o d of the e l e c t r i c r e s t r u c t u r i n g 

7 cases. Our o f f i c e was extremely busy, both myself as w e l l 

8 as the at t o r n e y s . We believe t h a t the issues I have 

9 i d e n t i f i e d are not extremely c o n t r o v e r s i a l and we see 

10 g e n e r a l l y handled i n settlements, i n a c t i o n orders. We 

11 have no choice but to r e l y on the Commission s t a f f t o 

12 address those issues and t o , you know, r e f r a i n from 

13 i n t e r v e n i n g based on the a v a i l a b l e resources we have i n our 

14 o f f i c e . 

15 Q. Were you a witness i n any e l e c t r i c r e s t r u c t u r i n g 

16 case? 

17 A. Yes, I was. 

18 Q. Which one? 

19 A. A c t u a l l y , I don't t h i n k any of them ever went to 

20 hearing. I d i d the Pike County case, I d i d the 

21 Wellsborough, and I d i d the C i t i z e n s E l e c t r i c . A l l of 

22 those, as I r e c a l l , r e s u l t e d i n settlements. However, I 

23 was a c t i v e l y involved i n reviewing the testimony of our 

24 consultants i n a l l of the e l e c t r i c cases to t r y t o assure 

25 c o n t i n u i t y . 
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1 Q. So, I guess we know the end r e s u l t i s that the 

2 O.C.A. d i d not become involved i n the Redstone case, r a t e 

3 case, back i n 1997? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t . And, l i k e I said, i t ' s not f o r 

5 wanting t o address the issues t h a t I i d e n t i f i e d . I t was 

6 f o r not having the a v a i l a b l e resources. 

7 Q. Now, on Page 4 of your testimony, you are 

8 recommending t h a t the Commission order Redstone to perform 

9 a f e a s i b i l i t y study. Do you have any op i n i o n or--do you 

10 have any op i n i o n of the cost of t h a t f e a s i b i l i t y study? 

11 A. Do I know what the cost of the f e a s i b i l i t y is? 

12 Q. I'm j u s t asking. Do you have a f i g u r e i n mind 

13 of what such a study would cost? You are a ra t e s person? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Have you seen costs f o r a f e a s i b i l i t y study 

16 presented i n r a t e f i l i n g s ? 

17 A. Well, I have seen many d i f f e r e n t costs f o r 

18 d i f f e r e n t types of f e a s i b i l i t y s t udies. But i n t h i s 

19 p a r t i c u l a r case, i f I r e c a l l , I consulted w i t h Mr. Fought 

20 as t o what a study of t h a t magnitude may cost. 

21 Q. Based on your experience, what do you t h i n k such 

22 a study would cost? 

23 A. I r e a l l y couldn't speak t o i t l i k e t h i s . I am 

24 not an engineer. And I have seen company's request, you 

25 know, recovery of costs of studies, and they have been 
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1 anywhere from $10,000.00 t o i n t o the hundreds of thousands, 

2 depending on what they were loo k i n g f o r and what the 

3 magnitude of the study--the magnitude of the p r o j e c t i s , 

4 doing the study i t s e l f would i n v o l v e . That 1s why I 

5 consulted w i t h Mr. Fought. I f e l t he would be f a r b e t t e r 

6 capable of e s t i m a t i n g a cost of such a study than would I . 

7 Q. I n the 1997 Redstone r a t e f i l i n g , was there any 

8 l i n e item claimed f o r a f e a s i b i l i t y study of t h i s nature? 

9 A. Not t h a t I can r e c a l l , no. 

10 Q. How would Redstone have the funds t o pay f o r 

11 t h i s k i n d of f e a s i b i l i t y study i f there was no claim f o r i t 

12 i n i t s past r a t e f i l i n g ? 

13 A. I suspect Redstone incurs costs d a i l y t h a t may 

14 not have been included on a s p e c i f i c l i n e item i n t h e i r 

15 l a s t r a t e case. Rates are not set from day t o day or month 

16 t o month. 

17 Q. So, what you are saying i s a l i n e item allowance 

18 i n the l a s t r a t e case would have t o be used f o r a 

19 f e a s i b i l i t y study here? 

20 A. There i s a l o t of general l i n e items i n a r a t e 

21 case study. I mean, costs are up and down from month to 

22 month and year t o year, and there may be a l i n e item t h a t 

23 was included i n the l a s t r a t e case t h a t i s not as high as 

24 i t was l i s t e d i n the l a s t r a t e case. I mean, you don't 

25 f l a g every d o l l a r i n a r a t e case. You set rates at a 
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1 reasonable l e v e l , and i f costs are up, revenues are up and 

2 they are down. And when a company sees a need t o come i n 

3 f o r another r a t e increase, i f t h e i r r e t u r n goes down to the 

4 p o i n t where rates are not s u f f i c i e n t . 

5 Q. Have you--

6 JUDGE NEMEC: Let her f i n i s h , please. You may 

7 f i n i s h . 

8 A. I f the company announces t h a t r a t e s are no 

9 longer s u f f i c i e n t t o cover the cost they are i n c u r r i n g , 

10 they w i l l f i l e another case. 

11 Q. Have you made any ana l y s i s of l i n e items 

12 p r e s e n t l y which are not being i n c u r r e d which would f r e e up 

13 d o l l a r s and pay f o r a f e a s i b i l i t y study? 

14 A. No, I have not. 

15 Q. Your testimony concerning the format f o r the 

16 b i l l , you read some testimony where the neighboring 

17 a u t h o r i t y , Tri-County, i s mentioned, have you not? 

18 A . I ' m sorry? 

19 Q. Have you looked at the Tri-County b i l l t o see i f 

20 i t ' s i n the same format as the e x i s t i n g Redstone b i l l ? 

21 A. I have not seen a Tri-County b i l l . But as I 

22 understand i t , Tri-County i s a Municipal A u t h o r i t y . They 

23 wouldn't be under the Commission's r e g u l a t i o n s . I would 

24 have no c o n t r o l over what they put on t h e i r b i l l or what 

2 5 they do not. 
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1 Q. As f a r as the b i l l being s i m i l a r or not, you 

2 haven't made any review of that? 

3 A. No. I do not know what the Tri-County b i l l 

4 looks l i k e . 

5 Q. Thank you, Ms. Kraus. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That's a l l I have, Your Honor. 

7 ATTORNEY HORTING: May I have a moment, Your Honor? 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Yes. 

9 ( B r i e f pause.) 

10 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

11 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

12 Q. I have one question, Ms. Kraus. Mr. Niesen 

13 asked you whether you had compared Redstone's water b i l l t o 

14 Tri-County's water b i l l or i f you had seen Tri-County's 

15 water b i l l ? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. And I bel i e v e your response was no? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. Did you compare or do you have the personal 

20 experience of reviewing other regulated water u t i l i t y b i l l s 

21 and compared those t o Redstone's b i l l ? 

2 2 A. Yes, I have. I n f a c t , I used t o be served by a 

23 p u b l i c u t i l i t y regulated water company. And ge n e r a l l y 

24 speaking, at the very l e a s t , the customer charge and the 

25 consumption charge are separated. B a s i c a l l y , the reason 
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1 f o r t h i s recommendation i s I received c a l l s , copies of 

2 b i l l s from several customers, and they are q u i t e confusing, 

3 p a r t i c u l a r l y i n l i g h t of the f a c t t h a t i n the l a s t r a t e 

4 case, the r a t e design was changed. And almost immediately 

5 when the rates went i n t o e f f e c t , we received at l e a s t three 

6 c a l l s t h a t I know of, people saying, I'm being b i l l e d too 

7 high, I'm being b i l l e d too much, because they got X 

8 percentage r a t e increase and my b i l l increased by a much 

9 higher percentage than t h a t . And l o o k i n g at the b i l l s , 

10 these people were not being b i l l e d i n c o r r e c t l y . Their b i l l 

11 was c o r r e c t , but had they been able t o see what the 

12 d i f f e r e n c e i n the customer charge and consumption charges 

13 were, they would at l e a s t have had the a b i l i t y t o compare 

14 t h e i r new b i l l t o one of t h e i r o l d b i l l s and t o see t h a t 

15 they were being b i l l e d a p p r o p r i a t e l y based on what the 

16 company's rates were. I t ' s a very p r a c t i c a l matter and I 

17 t h i n k has--you know, what Tri-County d i d does not enter 

18 i n t o my recommendation whatsoever. 

19 Q. Okay. Thank you. 

2 0 R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

21 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

22 Q. Do you t h i n k you would have gotten phone c a l l s , 

23 anyway, even i f the consumption charge and the volume 

24 charge were broken out? 

25 A. One of them, I t h i n k I would have gotten based 
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1 on what the customer's problem was. But the other two, I 

2 have no doubt I would not have received. 

3 Q. Thank you. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Anything else? 

5 ATTORNEY HORTING: No, Your Honor. 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you very much. You are 

7 excused. 

8 (Witness excused.) 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, t h a t concludes the 

10 witnesses t h a t we have i n our D i r e c t case. 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Off the record. 

12 (Discussion o f f the record.) 

13 (Whereupon, at 11:50 A.M., the hearing 

14 was adjourned t o be reconvened at 

15 1:15 P.M. the same day.) 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: Let's go on the record. Counsel f o r 

17 O.C.A. has o f f e r e d photographs of various objects t h a t were 

18 brought i n by the witnesses yesterday. 

19 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Shall I go through them one by one 

20 and s t a t e what they are? Your Honor, pursuant t o an 

21 o f f - t h e - r e c o r d discussion, the O.C.A. shared w i t h opposing 

22 counsel the photographs of the phy s i c a l e x h i b i t s t h a t were 

23 i d e n t i f i e d during yesterday's hearings, and we would now 

24 l i k e t o move i n t o evidence the photographs t h a t p o r t r a y the 

25 p h y s i c a l e x h i b i t s . B a l l a 2-P i s a photograph of glass j a r 
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1 of water taken from the Ba l l a hot water heater. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Should I s t a t e my objection? I had 

3 an o b j e c t i o n t o Ba l l a 2. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That's on the record. As I 

6 r e c o l l e c t , Mrs. Ba l l a d i d not see t h a t water d r a i n from 

7 wherever i t was supposed t o have been drained. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Let's do i t t h i s way. Let's 

9 have them i d e n t i f i e d , and then i f you have any s p e c i f i c 

10 o b j e c t i o n s t h a t you want t o s t a t e , f i n e . But what I intend 

11 t o do i s reserve the r u l i n g f o r the I n i t i a l Decision so I 

12 can go back and review the whole t r a n s c r i p t . Go ahead. 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Ba l l a 3-P i s a photograph of a 

14 ceramic bowl w i t h white e n c r u s t a t i o n i n s i d e i t . B a l l a 4-P 

15 i s a z i p lock bag containin g p a r t i c u l a t e sediment from the 

16 bottom of the Balla s ' hot water heater. B a l l a 4-P-A i s a 

17 photograph of the bag i t s e l f c o n t a i n i n g the p a r t i c u l a t e . 

18 B a l l a 5-P i s a photograph of the element t h a t was removed 

19 from the hot water heater at the Ba l l a residence. Kotula 

20 1-P i s a photograph of water w i t h sediment drawn from the 

21 Kotula hot water heater. I w i l l say Kotula 1-P-A i s a 

22 photograph of the same object at a d i f f e r e n t angle. 

23 Blackburn 1-P i s a photograph of the heating element from 

24 the Blackburn residence hot water heater. Blackburn 2-P i s 

25 a photograph of a container of sediment from the Blackburn 
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1 hot water heater. 2-P-A the same obje c t at a d i f f e r e n t 

2 angle. Blackburn 3-P i s a baggy co n t a i n i n g sediment from 

3 the dishwasher at the Blackburn residence. Blackburn 4-P 

4 i s a photograph of a faucet removed from the Blackburn 

5 residence. Blackburn 4-P-A i s the same obje c t at a 

6 d i f f e r e n t angle showing the i n t e r i o r of t h a t obj ect. 

7 Blackburn 5-P i s a photograph of the shower head removed 

8 from the Blackburn residence. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

10 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: We w i l l r e t a i n custody of these 

11 and o f f e r copies as a l a t e f i l e d e x h i b i t . 

12 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

13 B a l l a E x h i b i t Nos. 2-P, 3-P, 4-P, 4-P-A, 

14 5-P, Kotula E x h i b i t Nos. 1-P and 1-P-A, 

15 and Blackburn E x h i b i t Nos. 1-P, 2-P, 

16 2-P-A, 3-P, 4-P, 4-P-A and 5-P f o r 

17 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

18 JUDGE NEMEC: Off the record. 

19 (Discussion o f f the record.) 

20 JUDGE NEMEC: Back on the record. Off the record, 

21 we discussed the mechanics of f i l i n g t h i s . Counsel f o r 

22 O.C.A. has agreed t o d u p l i c a t e the photographs and provide 

23 the r e p o r t e r w i t h two copies, myself w i t h one copy, and 

24 counsel f o r the company one copy. Some of the objects have 

25 been objected t o p r e v i o u s l y . Any a d d i t i o n a l o b j e c t i o n s you 
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1 wish t o place on the record at t h i s point? 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, my r e c o l l e c t i o n i s I 

3 had ob j e c t i o n s t o B a l l a 2 and 3. I may have had obj e c t i o n s 

4 t o other photographs--or other items as w e l l . I don't 

5 waive those. I w i l l r e l y on the record t o preserve my 

6 o b j e c t i o n s . 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Also o f f the record, I i n d i c a t e d I was 

8 going t o reserve r u l i n g on the obj ections t h a t are on the 

9 record u n t i l I have had a chance t o review the e n t i r e 

10 record, and I w i l l make those r u l i n g s i n the I n i t i a l 

11 Decision i n t h i s case. Thank you. Now, s i r - -

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: One a d d i t i o n a l item, Your Honor. 

13 I would renew our request t h a t n o t i c e be taken of at le a s t 

14 the segment of the l a s t r a t e case t h a t c o n s i s t s of the 

15 t r a n s c r i p t s from the p u b l i c input testimony. And on 

16 request, we w i l l provide copies of those t r a n s c r i p t s t o 

17 Your Honor and opposing counsel, the purpose being t h a t I 

18 t h i n k i t must be obvious at t h i s p o i n t t h a t we f e e l p a r t of 

19 the problem here i s the r e p e t i t i v e complaints and 

20 recurrence of the same complaints over a p e r i o d of time. 

21 There i s s i m i l a r testimony i n the r a t e case concerning the 

22 q u a l i t y and pressure problems. The company was present at 

23 those hearings. They had counsel there t o represent them. 

24 There was an o p p o r t u n i t y t o Cross-examine. And we would be 

25 using them not ne c e s s a r i l y f o r the t r u t h of the matter 



308 

1 asserted, but t o show t h a t many customers have expressed 

2 the same complaints and t h a t the company should be w e l l 

3 aware of them. 

4 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, we oppose 

5 the i n c o r p o r a t i o n of t h a t p a r t of the record of the ra t e 

6 case i n t o t h i s record. We t h i n k t h a t t h i s case deals w i t h 

7 s p e c i f i c Complainants and those Complainants, i f they 

8 wished t o prosecute t h e i r case, had a duty t o come here. 

9 Some of them d i d . Some of them d i d n ' t . But the case 

10 cannot be supported or buttressed i n any way by the 

11 testimony from another proceeding. The testimony at the 

12 p u b l i c input session i s a somewhat d i f f e r e n t k i n d of 

13 s e t t i n g than i t i s here. I t i s testimony from a couple of 

14 years ago. And again, everyone had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o come 

15 here, and i f they wished t o prosecute t h e i r case, they 

16 should have done so. 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: I don't a t t h i s p o i n t want t o burden 

18 t h i s record w i t h a d d i t i o n a l m a t e r i a l s drawn from the 

19 t r a n s c r i p t of t h a t p u b l i c input hearing. So, I'm going t o 

20 deny your request. 

21 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. 

22 JUDGE NEMEC: That doesn't mean t h a t you can't r e f e r 

23 t o e i t h e r the recommended de c i s i o n or Commission's order i n 

24 t h a t case. 

25 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. Your Honor, there i s one 
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1 other matter t h a t I wanted t o r a i s e , and t h a t i s t h a t 

2 durin g the lunch break, Mr. Fought r e a l i z e d t h a t he had 

3 made an e r r o r i n one of h i s statements and he has requested 

4 t o take the stand again, very b r i e f l y , t o e x p l a i n what the 

5 e r r o r was and why he made i t . 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: What's the err o r ? 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Yeah. B a s i c a l l y , he i s asking f o r an 

8 o f f e r of proof. 

9 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: The o f f e r i s t h a t Mr. Fought, when 

10 he r e f e r r e d t o the number of days t h a t the tank was h a l f 

11 f u l l , had r e a l l y — 

12 MR. TERRY FOUGHT: Or less . 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Half f u l l or less had r e a l l y 

14 looked at the days during which the tank was at 18 feet or 

15 le s s , and recognizing t h a t the tank i s 3 2 f e e t high, he 

16 wasn't e x a c t l y l o o k i n g at when i t was h a l f f u l l . He was 

17 l o o k i n g at when i t was 18 fee t or less and he, i n e r r o r , 

18 bel i e v e d t h a t 18 f e e t was h a l f f u l l . So, he wanted t o 

19 c o r r e c t t h a t . 

20 JUDGE NEMEC: So, i n essence, these were days where 

21 the tank was below the 18-foot l e v e l and not the 16 foo t 

22 l e v e l . 

23 MR. TERRY FOUGHT: Yes. 18 f e e t or less instead of 

24 16 f e e t or less . 

25 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I f the company wants t o s t i p u l a t e 
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1 t h a t t h a t i s the case--

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I don't have any t r o u b l e w i t h him 

3 c o r r e c t i n g h i s numbers. He can do i t r i g h t there i f he 

4 wants t o . 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: S i r , you are s t i l l under oath. 

7 TERRY L. FOUGHT, a witness herein, 

8 r e c a l l e d on behalf of the Complainants, having p r e v i o u s l y 

9 been duly sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

10 F U R T H E R R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

11 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

12 Q. Mr. Fought, during I believe i t was your 

13 Redirect testimony, you made statements concerning the 

14 number of days t h a t the tank was e i t h e r h a l f f u l l or less . 

15 Can you s t a t e f o r the record what your e r r o r was when you 

16 made t h a t statement? 

17 A. My c a l c u l a t i o n was based on the number of days 

18 t h a t the tank was 18 f o o t f u l l or less, and the percentage 

19 was nine percent of the days tank was 18 f e e t f u l l or less 

2 0 instead of nine percent of the days t h a t the tank was h a l f 

21 f u l l or less . 

22 Q. Okay. 

23 F U R T H E R R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

24 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

25 Q. I di d n ' t f o l l o w t h a t . 
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1 A. I d i d n ' t say i t very w e l l . My testimony should 

2 be t h a t on nine percent of the days, approximately nine 

3 percent of the days between January 1st and J u l y 29th, 

4 i n c l u d i n g January 1st and J u l y 29th, excluding the days of 

5 January 9th through 17th when there was many problems w i t h 

6 the system, the company records t h a t they provided us under 

7 discovery showed the tank t o be at 18 f o o t or less i n 

8 depth, t h a t the water l e v e l i n the tank was at 18 f e e t or 

9 l e s s . 

10 Q. So, nine percent of the days--

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. --the tank was at 18 f e e t or less? 

13 A. Yes, f o r t h a t purpose. 

14 Q. So, you e l i m i n a t e d the percentage p a r t of your 

15 c a l c u l a t i o n ? I t ' s j u s t nine percent of the — i t ' s no longer 

16 50 percent or less? 

17 A. No. I t ' s no longer the tank being 50 percent 

18 f u l l . I had f o r some reason jumped t o the conclusion t h a t 

19 18 f e e t was h a l f of 32, and I should not have done t h a t . 

20 Q. The tank--you said the tank i s 32 f e e t high? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Now, I want you t o check t h a t . I s i t 32 feet or 

23 24 feet? 

24 A. As f a r as I know, i t i s 32 f e e t . Here i s a 

25 permit t h a t says i t ' s 24 f o o t . 
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Q. I t h i n k you have 24 fe e t i n your testimony, 

too. 

A. Do I have 24 f e e t i n my testimony? 

Q. Page 11. 

A. Well, then, I'm r e a l l y messed up. 

JUDGE NEMEC: Could i t be t h a t the tank i s 32 fe e t 

above the ground? 

THE WITNESS: No. I t might be t h a t the tank i s 32 

fe e t i n diameter. But my testimony i s s t i l l c o r r e c t , 18 

fo o t or le s s , whether the tank i s 24 fo o t high or 32 foo t 

high. 

JUDGE NEMEC: Do you have a reference? 

ATTORNEY NIESEN: Page 11, about halfway down the 

page, i n the f i f t h l i n e of the second answer on the page. 

MR. TERRY FOUGHT: Thank you f o r p o i n t i n g t h a t out. 

JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. I s t h a t i t ? 

ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That's i t , yes, Your Honor. Thank 

you. 

(Witness excused.) 

ATTORNEY NIESEN: I would r e s p e c t f u l l y move t o 

dismiss the complaints of those Complainants who d i d not 

appear and prosecute t h e i r complaint, as w e l l as 

Mr. K r i l o s k y ' s complaint, as i t i s a separate docket 

number. 

JUDGE NEMEC: I w i l l take t h a t motion under 
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1 advisement and deal w i t h t h a t i n the I n i t i a l Decision which 

2 I have t o , i n any event. 

3 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Very w e l l . 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Any Complainant proceedings t h a t i s 

5 dismissed has t o be de a l t w i t h i n the I n i t i a l Decision. 

6 {Witness sworn.) 

7 EUGENE B. WOLBERT, a witness herein, 

8 c a l l e d on behalf of the Respondent, having f i r s t been duly 

9 sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

10 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

11 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

12 Q. Please s t a t e your name and your business 

13 address. 

14 A. Eugene B. Wolbert. My business address i s 

15 Pennsylvania Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n , 

16 Uniontown D i s t r i c t O f f i c e , 100 New Salem Road, Uniontown, 

17 Pennsylvania. 

18 Q. Mr. Wolbert, d i d you receive a subpoena 

19 r e q u i r i n g your appearance and testimony i n t h i s proceeding? 

20 A. Yes, I d i d . 

21 Q. And you are here today i n response t o t h a t 

2 2 subpoena, are you not? 

23 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

24 Q. Could you b r i e f l y s t a t e your understanding of 

2 5 what i s involved i n t h i s case? 
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1 A. I was j u s t aware t h a t customers at the Redstone 

2 Water Crescent Heights system were complaining against the 

3 owner, had f i l e d complaints against the ownership. 

4 Q. And you have been here both yesterday and today 

5 during the e n t i r e proceeding, have you not? 

6 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. And how are you employed? 

8 A. I'm a s a n i t a r i a n supervisor w i t h the 

9 Pennsylvania Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n . 

10 Q. Could you b r i e f l y s t a t e your educational 

11 background and your employment experience? 

12 A. I have a Bachelor of Science Degree from C l a r i o n 

13 U n i v e r s i t y i n b i o l o g y and comprehensive science. I have 

14 worked f o r PA D.E.R. and D.E.P. f o r approximately 17 

15 years. P r i o r t o t h a t , I was a hea l t h o f f i c e r w i t h the 

16 State Department of Health. 

17 Q. Could you describe your d u t i e s as a s a n i t a r i a n 

18 supervisor f o r D.E.P. 

19 A . I oversee a four-county area, Fayette, Greene, 

20 Washington, and Beaver counties. My o f f i c e i s responsible 

21 f o r monitoring compliance of water systems w i t h the 

22 Pennsylvania 109 r e g u l a t i o n s . 

23 Q. And does t h a t include compliance w i t h the water 

24 q u a l i t y standard? 

25 A. Yes. Both primary and secondary, yes. 
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1 Q. I s Redstone Water Company one of the companies 

2 w i t h i n your four-county area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ? 

3 A. Yes, i t i s . 

4 Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t your o f f i c e i s 

5 responsible f o r monitoring compliance w i t h d r i n k i n g water 

6 standards. Would you describe how you go about the 

7 monitoring process? 

8 A. There are three p r i n c i p a l ways t h a t D.E.P. 

9 monitors Redstone's compliance. The f i r s t would be 

10 reviewing i n f o r m a t i o n which the company i s responsible f o r 

11 s u b m i t t i n g t o us under 109.25 PA Code, these r e p o r t s t h a t 

12 are prepared by c e r t i f i e d l a b o r a t o r i e s and submitted to us 

13 as r e q u i r e d . The second way would be the s t a f f inspects 

14 the water c o l l e c t i o n , treatment, and d i s t r i b u t i o n system. 

15 And the s t a f f t h a t r e p o r t to me have inspected Redstone 

16 Crescent Heights f o r many years. And the t h i r d way i s 

17 through complaint i n v e s t i g a t i o n . We receive complaints 

18 from customers of Redstone Water. During the years of 1996 

19 and '97, we haven't received any complaints from t h i s 

20 system. I n 1998, we had two complaints on f i l e , both of 

21 which we i n v e s t i g a t e d . One could not be s u b s t a n t i a t e d . 

22 The c o n d i t i o n d i d n ' t e x i s t when we i n v e s t i g a t e d i t . The 

23 second one had been because of low water customer usage at 

24 the s i t e . I t happened t o be a church, I b e l i e v e , i n the 

25 system. During 1999, the only complaints we received were 
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1 i n r e l a t i o n t o the major w a t e r l i n e break and outage t h a t 

2 occurred i n January of 1999. 

3 Q. The two complaints i n 1998 t h a t you referenced, 

4 were they customers i n the Crescent Heights d i v i s i o n ? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Now, concerning d r i n k i n g water standards, i s 

7 Redstone p r e s e n t l y i n compliance w i t h a p p l i c a b l e d r i n k i n g 

8 water standards? And I'm t a l k i n g about the Crescent 

9 Heights system. 

10 A. Crescent Heights meets a l l of the primary 

11 requirements. The pri m a r i e s , I don't know i f we discussed 

12 t h i s e a r l i e r or not, but those are the sampling 

13 requirements t h a t have h e a l t h e f f e c t s r e l a t e d t o them. 

14 There are known h e a l t h defects to a l l the p r i m a r i e s . 

15 Crescent Heights i s i n compliance w i t h a l l those. I n the 

16 secondaries, we c o l l e c t e d three samples duri n g 1999, and we 

17 found an MCL on TDS, t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s . Secondaries 

18 do not have h e a l t h e f f e c t s , but they do have a e s t h e t i c 

19 e f f e c t s . 

20 Q. I s the water at the Crescent Heights d i v i s i o n 

21 hard? 

22 A. Yes, i t i s . 

23 Q. What i s hard? What does th a t mean? 

24 A. Generally hardness i s measured i n terms of 

25 calcium carbonate hardness and magnesium. There i s a l o t 
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1 of calcium carbonate i n the Crescent Heights system and i t 

2 was t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r t h i s i s p a r t of the TDS, t o t a l 

3 d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s , t h a t we t a l k e d about e a r l i e r . 

4 Q. I s there an MCL, e i t h e r primary or secondary, 

5 f o r calcium carbonate? 

6 A. No, there i s not. 

7 Q. Now, i n respect t o the water source at Crescent 

8 Heights, what i s the source of the water? 

9 A. D.E.P. has the source l i s t e d as groundwater from 

10 Hoods Hollow. 

11 Q. I s i t c o r r e c t t o describe t h a t source as--would 

12 you describe i t as mine drainage? 

13 A. I would not describe i t as mine drainage. The 

14 chemical p r o f i l e of the water, i t does not f i t the c l a s s i c 

15 mine drainage c l a s s i f i c a t i o n t h a t we see i n the 

16 department. 

17 Q. What do you mean by that? 

18 A. Generally, w i t h mine drainage, we see high 

19 aluminums or i r o n , manganese, d i f f e r e n t metals l i k e t h a t . 

20 And t h i s water does not p o r t r a y any of those. We gen e r a l l y 

21 see s t a i n i n g i n the streams, and we don't see th a t from 

22 t h i s system. So, i t doesn't f i t the t y p i c a l p r o f i l e of 

23 mine drainage. 

24 Q. How would you describe the q u a l i t y of the water 

25 from Hoods Hollow? 
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1 A. The water q u a l i t y i s s i m i l a r t o a l o t of 

2 groundwater i n t h i s area. As we sai d e a r l i e r , i t ' s very 

3 hard. I t ' s c l e a r . I t has a p r e t t y n e u t r a l pH. 

4 Q. I s hardness common i n Western Pennsylvania, i n 

5 t h i s p a r t of Western Pennsylvania? 

6 A. I t ' s very common i n many, many w e l l s out here, 

7 yes. 

8 Q. Now, you t a l k e d about the MCLs f o r TDS, t o t a l 

9 dis s o l v e d s o l i d s . Based on your t e s t i n g , the water at 

10 Redstone exceeds the MCL f o r t o t a l d i s s o l v e d solids? 

11 A. To t a l dissolved s o l i d s were high, yes. 

12 Q. I s there a D.E.P. req u i r e d treatment p r o t o c o l 

13 f o r t o t a l d i s s o l v e d solids? 

14 A. No, there i s not. 

15 Q. And why i s there none? 

16 A. The E.P.A. does not re q u i r e the stat e s t o 

17 monitor and enforce secondaries. Pennsylvania does 

18 r e g u l a t e secondaries at new sources. But on e x i s t i n g 

19 systems, because of a l o t of f a c t o r s , i t ' s case by case. 

20 Q. I take i t D.E.P. has not re q u i r e d Redstone t o 

21 i n i t i a t e any treatment f o r TDS? 

22 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

2 3 Q. Why not? 

24 A. Well, as we said e a r l i e r , a l o t of the TDS i s 

2 5 the r e s u l t of hardness i n the water, and there are a l o t of 
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1 secondary issues t h a t can get hardness. 

2 Q. Secondaries issues, what do you mean by that? 

3 A. I f s a l t softener i s used, we have a tendency t o 

4 increase--! have seen cases of s a l t increase i n the water, 

5 sodium increase i n the water, 10 t o 20 times the 

6 recommended l e v e l . There i s a h e a l t h advisory on sodium i n 

7 water of 20 mi l l i g r a m s per l i t e r . And oftentimes, i n the 

8 s o f t e n i n g process, t h i s i s increased many, many times and 

9 i t can be d e t r i m e n t a l t o older c i t i z e n s or f o l k s who have 

10 c i r c u l a t o r y problems. An even more important issue, i n 

11 1993, the Lead and Copper Rule was put i n t o e f f e c t . And by 

12 s o f t e n i n g the water, you can increase the c o r r o s i v i t y and 

13 p o s s i b l y cause metals t o be diss o l v e d or the i r o n t o be 

14 dis s o l v e d from the d i s t r i b u t i o n system i t s e l f and we may 

15 end up w i t h red water or lead and copper v i o l a t i o n s , which 

16 do have h e a l t h e f f e c t s . 

17 Q. Did you hear Mr. Fought's testimony t h i s morning 

18 concerning c o r r o s i v i t y ? 

19 A. Yes, I d i d . 

20 Q. And d i d you agree w i t h t h a t testimony? 

21 A. Yes, I d i d . This water t h a t we are t a l k i n g 

22 about at Redstone i s not a corr o s i v e water. I t 1 s a 

23 p o s i t i v e water. And calcium carbonate i s being deposited, 

24 as we saw here the l a s t couple of days. Now, t o t u r n t h a t 

2 5 p i c t u r e around and make the water c o r r o s i v e by sof t e n i n g 
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1 may even cause greater problems than what we are seeing 

2 now. 

3 Q. And j u s t again, what might the greater problems 

4 be? 

5 A. V i o l a t i o n of lead and copper, which are f e d e r a l 

6 mandates, primary. 

7 Q. Are they primary contaminants? 

8 A. Yes, they are, both of them. 

9 Q. There i s no lead or copper v i o l a t i o n s at 

10 Redstone c u r r e n t l y , are there? 

11 A. No, there aren't. 

12 Q. I s there a D.E.P. required treatment p r o t o c o l 

13 f o r s u l f a t e s ? 

14 A. No, there i s not. 

15 Q. And why i s there not? 

16 A. Again, i t ' s a secondary. I t i s not mandated. 

17 Q. Has D.E.P. req u i r e d Redstone t o i n i t i a t e a 

18 treatment f a c i l i t y ? 

19 A. No, we have not. 

20 Q. Why i s that? 

21 A. I t h i n k the e n t i r e p i c t u r e , we don't want t o 

22 t r e a t f o r one s p e c i f i c t h i n g i n a water system. We need t o 

23 look at the b i g p i c t u r e , as I said e a r l i e r , w i t h the TDS. 

24 We don't t r e a t f o r one t h i n g , and s u l f a t e s would not be 

2 5 selected t o be t r e a t e d f o r . 
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1 Q. I s there a D.E.P. required treatment p r o t o c o l 

2 f o r hardness? 

3 A. No, there i s not. 

4 Q. And again, I t h i n k you mentioned t h i s e a r l i e r , 

5 but why i s there not? 

6 A. I t ' s not an MCL, e i t h e r primary or secondary. 

7 Q. I s the water supply at Crescent Heights safe to 

8 drink? 

9 A. Based on the sampling, i t shows t h a t i t ' s i n 

10 compliance w i t h a l l the primary r e g u l a t i o n s , yes. 

11 Q. Can the water supply be used f o r household 

12 purposes? 

13 A . I believe i t can, yes. 

14 Q. Cooking? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Clothes washing? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Bathing? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. Has the Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n 

21 done any water pressure t e s t i n g i n the Crescent Heights 

22 system? 

23 A. Yes, we have. We have done t e s t i n g i n 1998. We 

24 t e s t e d about e i g h t houses. We saw pressures ranging from 

25 about 40 pounds minimum to about 90 pounds maximum. I n 
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1 1999, we t e s t e d at one high p o i n t on Walkertown H i l l and 

2 found about 70 pounds pressure and the low p o i n t s i n the 

3 system and found about 100. So. The lowest we saw was 4 0 

4 and highest pressure we have seen i s 130. 

5 Q. Are those pressures consistent w i t h D.E.P. 

6 regul a t i o n s ? 

7 A. Yes. They are i n s i d e the boundary, yes. 

8 Q. And what are the boundaries? 

9 A. The boundaries are a low pressure of 2 0 and a 

10 high of 150. 

11 Q. You were i n the hearing room yesterday and you 

12 heard the testimony of several customer Complainants, d i d 

13 you not? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Can you comment upon what you heard and what you 

16 saw yesterday? 

17 A. Well, I t h i n k i t was t y p i c a l of very hard 

18 water. What we heard and saw was the d e p o s i t i o n of calcium 

19 carbonate on the cooking u t e n s i l s and water heaters, which 

20 would t y p i f y a l o t of the w e l l s , a l o t of the hard water 

21 t h a t we see i n t h i s p a r t of the s t a t e . 

22 Q. Yesterday, there was testimony concerning the 

23 C i t i z e n s Council of West Pike Run Township I believe i s the 

24 name t h a t they have taken. Did you ever meet w i t h the 

25 C i t i z e n s Council? 
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1 A. Yes, I d i d . 

2 Q. When was that? 

3 A. January 23rd of 1999, on a Saturday morning. 

4 Q. How d i d t h a t meeting come about? 

5 A. I was c a l l e d by one of the Complainants and 

6 asked i f I would attend the meeting, there was going t o be 

7 a meeting t o address some of the concerns of Redstone Water 

8 customers, and I was asked i f I would be there. 

9 Q. Who c a l l e d you? 

10 A. Stephanie Kotula. 

11 Q. And d i d you attend the meeting? 

12 A. Yes, I d i d . 

13 Q. And what t r a n s p i r e d a t the meeting? 

14 A. P r e t t y much the complaints we heard i n the 

15 courtroom yesterday, p r e t t y much the same type of 

16 complaints, people t a l k i n g about hard water, t a l k i n g about 

17 pressure issues, the very same ki n d of t h i n g s . 

18 Q. Was the r a t e increase mentioned? 

19 A. Yes, i t was. 

2 0 Q. To what extent was the r a t e increase mentioned? 

21 A. I t h i n k i t was mentioned very f r e q u e n t l y i n the 

22 meeting, yes. 

23 Q. What d i d you suggest, i f anything, t o the people 

24 you had the meeting w i t h in--was i t January of l a s t year? 

25 A. January 23rd of l a s t year, yes. 



324 

1 Q. That was r i g h t a f t e r the service outage? 

2 A. That 1s c o r r e c t . Right. One of my reasons i n 

3 going was I wanted t o get a b e t t e r p i c t u r e of the water 

4 system from the customer perspective. And I took my 

5 business cards and I introduced myself and recommended that 

6 i f they c a l l and complain w i t h s p e c i f i c complaints, t h a t we 

7 could come out and i n v e s t i g a t e . That was one of my 

8 purposes of going. 

9 Q. Did you receive any c a l l s ? 

10 A. No, I haven't. 

11 Q. None at a l l ? 

12 A. None. 

13 Q. Did you hear testimony e a r l i e r today about the 

14 f i r e flow, r e q u i r e d f i r e flow, a standard f o r f i r e flow? 

15 A. Yes, I d i d . 

16 Q. I s there a D.E.P. standard f o r f i r e flow? 

17 A. No. D.E.P. doesn't r e g u l a t e f i r e flow. 

18 Q. Have you reviewed Mr. Fought 1s testimony? 

19 A. Yes, I have. 

2 0 Q. He recommends con s i d e r a t i o n of two a l t e r n a t i v e s , 

21 one being a treatment p l a n t t o sof t e n water. You addressed 

22 t h a t somewhat. Can you comment upon what your opinion i s 

23 concerning the possible c o n s t r u c t i o n of a treatment plant 

24 t o so f t e n water? 

25 A. I t ' s something t h a t could be looked at i n l i g h t 
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1 of new technology. My own opinion i s i t may be a very, 

2 very c o s t l y t h i n g f o r a system t h i s size based on my past 

3 experience. For a system of 260 customers, i t may be very 

4 c o s t l y . 

5 Q. Would i t create the s a l t problems t h a t you 

6 mentioned e a r l i e r ? 

7 A. I f ion exchange s o f t e n i n g were used, i t 

8 d e f i n i t e l y would. And i n c i d e n t a l l y , we do have a s l i g h t 

9 elevated sodium l e v e l i n the system now, I f a i l e d t o 

10 mention t h a t , and i t would only aggravate t h a t much more. 

11 Q. Let me ask you about hardness. I f hardness were 

12 reduced by l e t ' s say h a l f , would you s t i l l see the 

13 d e p o s i t i n g of calcium or carbonate, whatever t h a t i s th a t 

14 was discussed here yesterday? 

15 A. My guess i s t h a t you would s t i l l see some, i f i t 

16 were reduced by h a l f , because the hardness i s very high i n 

17 t h i s p a r t i c u l a r system. And the calcium s t a i n s are common 

18 i n a l o t of water systems, even w i t h much lower hardness 

19 l e v e l s . 

20 Q. Mr. Wolbert, i s there anything else you want t o 

21 e x p l a i n or address t o Judge Nemec concerning t h i s matter? 

22 A. Not unless there i s s p e c i f i c questions. 

23 Q. Mr. Wolbert, I'm done questioning. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. You may Cross. 

25 
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1 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

2 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

3 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Wolbert. As you know, I'm 

4 Dianne Dusman and I'm here f o r the O f f i c e of Consumer 

5 Advocate which has intervened i n support of the 

6 Complainants i n t h i s case. Mr. Wolbert, d i d you review any 

7 documents i n p r e p a r a t i o n f o r your appearance here today f o r 

8 the company? 

9 A. Just the documents t h a t were submitted from 

10 Mr. Fought. 

11 Q. Did you review any f i l e s of your department? 

12 A. Yes. I looked through some of the f i l e s , yes. 

13 The pressure t e s t s t h a t I had j u s t discussed and some of 

14 the f i l e s , yes. 

15 Q. Did you review any q u a l i t y t e s t s of D.E.P.? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Do you have a copy of Mr. Fought's testimony 

18 w i t h you' 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 E x h i b i t 1? 

22 A. Okay. 

2 3 Q. When you reviewed the Redstone Water q u a l i t y 

24 f i l e s at the D.E.P., d i d you see any t e s t r e s u l t s f o r the 

25 p e r i o d between September 30, '91 and March of '99, except 

Yes, I do. 

Would you please t u r n t o the f i r s t page of h i s 
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1 f o r those two s u l f a t e t e s t s t h a t Mr. Fought has noted? 

2 A. No. I don 11 believe I d i d , and I can ex p l a i n 

3 why. The D.E.P. used t o sample the water. Every time we 

4 d i d an in s p e c t i o n , we would c o l l e c t samples. So, going 

5 back i n the f i l e s , you w i l l f i n d a l o t of D.E.P. sampling 

6 i n there. That was discontinued i n the p e r i o d of the e a r l y 

7 go's. So, there i s going t o be a gap i n there where there 

8 was no sampling done by D.E.P. Reliance dur i n g t h a t period 

9 i s s t r i c t l y on the independent c e r t i f i e d l a b o r a t o r i e s which 

10 i s submitted by the water company. 

11 Q. So, are you saying, then, t h a t Redstone Water 

12 should have t e s t r e s u l t s f o r t h a t period? 

13 A. Well, we review c e r t i f i e d l ab re p o r t s a l l the 

14 time submitted on behalf of Redstone Water Company. That's 

15 one of our f u n c t i o n s , on a monthly basis, on a ye a r l y 

16 basis. So, we have complete f i l e s of independent 

17 l a b o r a t o r y t e s t s of Redstone water. 

18 Q. Okay. But should the company have those r e s u l t s 

19 i n t h e i r possession, i n t h e i r f i l e s ? 

20 A. Oh, yes, I'm sure they do. The l a b keeps a 

21 copy, a copy i s sent t o Harrisburg, one t o us, and one to 

22 the water company. 

23 Q. So, the f a c t t h a t D.E.P. d i d n ' t have them 

24 doesn't mean t h a t they weren't done? 

25 A. No. They are done by a c e r t i f i e d l ab. Now, not 
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1 the secondary. Secondaries are not r e q u i r e d t o be 

2 monitored, so you won't f i n d a l o t of secondary sampling 

3 done. But the primaries are a l l a matter of record. 

4 Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l your w r i t t e n testimony i n 

5 the r a t e case, Docket No. 00974227? 

6 A. I s t h i s f o r the previous--

7 Q. Do you r e c a l l your w r i t t e n testimony i n the ra t e 

8 case, Redstone Statement No. 3, by Eugene B. Wolbert? 

9 A. Okay. Yes. 

10 Q. You do remember that? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Was i t p a r t of what you reviewed i n prep a r a t i o n 

13 f o r your appearance here f o r the company? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Do you r e c a l l making the statement i n the r a t e 

16 case t h a t , quote, I believe t h a t Redstone i s i n compliance 

17 i n each of i t s systems i n Crescent Heights, Royal, and 

18 A l l i s o n . Redstone r e c e n t l y was commended by the D.E.P. f o r 

19 meeting a l l MCL, monitoring and treatment technique 

2 0 performance requirements under the Safe D r i n k i n g Water 

21 Program during 1997? 

22 A. Yes. That was a c e r t i f i c a t i o n from Harrisburg 

23 t h a t was given t o me. 

24 Q. Yes. And i s t h a t one of the attachments t o 

2 5 Mr. Yablonski's testimony? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Okay. 

3 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I approach the 

4 witness? 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. Show counsel f i r s t . 

6 {Document handed t o counsel.) 

7 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

8 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s document? 

9 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

10 Q. Do you see t h a t t h i s document also says t h a t 

11 your department commends Redstone Water Crescent Heights 

12 f o r meeting MCL, monitoring and treatment technique 

13 performance requirements under the Safe D r i n k i n g Water 

14 Program during 1998? 

15 A. Yes. That's p r i m a r i l y issued when a l l 

16 monitoring compliance i s i n place, when they have not 

17 missed any sample requirements i n the system. These are 

18 issued from Harrisburg t o the systems. 

19 Q. Okay. Did you not j u s t t e s t i f y t h a t f o r the 

20 p e r i o d between '91 and '95, there would not have been any 

21 secondary MCL t e s t s performed? 

2 2 A. Yes. They are not req u i r e d . 

23 Q. They are not required? 

24 A. They are not req u i r e d . 

25 Q. Yet, your department c e r t i f i c a t e commends 
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1 systems f o r meeting a l l MCL monitoring and treatment 

2 technique performance requirements? 

3 A. That's based on the prima r i e s , yes. 

4 Q. Okay. And ye t , even though there were no 

5 secondary t e s t s done, you t e s t i f i e d i n the l a s t r a t e case 

6 t h a t , I'm quoting here again from Page 3 of your testimony, 

7 and please l i s t e n c a r e f u l l y , quote, Redstone's water supply 

8 i n each of i t s three systems meets a l l a p p l i c a b l e d r i n k i n g 

9 water standards and i s safe t o d r i n k , end quote. Do you 

10 r e c a l l making t h a t statement? 

11 A. Yes. That was based on the primary--on the 

12 independent l a b o r a t o r y r e p o r t s t h a t we had got. 

13 Q. But your statement i n the r a t e case d i d not 

14 l i m i t t h a t statement t o prim a r i e s , d i d i t ? I t wasn't 

15 l i m i t e d t o primary MCLs was i t ? 

16 A. I'm not c e r t a i n about t h a t . 

17 Q. Well, maybe you would l i k e t o read i t again. 

18 A. Yes. 

19 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I approach the 

20 witness? 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

22 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

23 Q. Page 3, I believe the l i n e s are misnumbered, but 

24 i t ' s Line 8 and 9. 

25 A. Okay. Again, i t says, Redstone's water supply 
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1 i n each of i t s three systems meets a l l a p p l i c a b l e d r i n k i n g 

2 water standards and i s safe t o d r i n k . That's based on the 

3 pr i m a r i e s . They are re q u i r e d t o sample f o r the primaries. 

4 Q. Were you aware at the time t h a t you made t h a t 

5 statement t h a t there were secondary v i o l a t i o n s ? 

6 A. No, I was not. I had not seen the f i l e s from 

7 the e a r l y 80's. The department had taken samples i n the 

8 e a r l y 80's, and I had not seen t h a t . And also, I d i d not 

9 see the r e s u l t s of our samples we took t h i s past year i n 

10 the secondaries. That's when I became aware of the 

11 v i o l a t i o n s on secondaries. I d i d n ' t work i n the Crescent 

12 Heights system i n the e a r l y 80's, not u n t i l the l a t t e r part 

13 of the 90's. So, I hadn't seen t h a t data t o know i t was i n 

14 existence. 

15 Q. Again, t u r n i n g t o Mr. Fought's attachments t o 

16 h i s testimony, would you t u r n t o the very l a s t page of 

17 Schedule TLF-2, Page 1 of 1? Had you ever seen t h a t l e t t e r 

18 before you reviewed Mr. Fought 1s testimony? 

19 A. No, I had not. 

20 Q. Have you reviewed t h a t l e t t e r i n preparing f o r 

21 these hearings? 

2 2 A. Yes, I have. 

23 Q. Are you aware of any response t h a t was received 

24 by your agency subsequent t o t h i s recommendation being 

2 5 made? 
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1 A. No. I've never heard of any response, and both 

2 p a r t i e s t h a t would have been responsible at t h a t time. The 

3 person who wrote the l e t t e r and the supervisor i n the area 

4 at t h a t time are both no longer w i t h the department. So, I 

5 hadn't had a chance to discuss i t w i t h anyone. 

6 Q. You are aware, are you not, t h a t the 

7 recommendation of the 0.C.A. witness i s simply f o r the 

8 company to make a f e a s i b i l i t y study, much as was suggested 

9 by your agency back i n 1985? 

10 A. Yes. I d i d hear t h a t testimony. 

11 Q. Now, you made a number of statements concerning 

12 what the r e s u l t s of the water s o f t e n i n g p l a n t might be, d i d 

13 you not? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. Would you contemplate t h a t i n the course of 

16 doing a f e a s i b i l i t y study, an engineering f i r m would take 

17 those t h i n g s i n t o account? 

18 A. Yes, I would. I t h i n k t h a t would be a p a r t of 

19 the f e a s i b i l i t y , yes. 

20 Q. You, y o u r s e l f , d i d not r e a l l y do a precise 

21 a n a l y s i s of what e f f e c t s o f t e n i n g might have on the water 

22 otherwise, d i d you? 

23 A. No. I only speak from experience and what we 

24 saw w i t h the Lead and Copper Rule where we had a l o t of 

25 problems w i t h g e t t i n g systems to pass lead and copper when 



333 

1 there was s o f t e n i n g involved. And sometimes we have t o add 

2 what they c a l l an i n h i b i t o r t o counteract the s o f t e n i n g to 

3 keep i t from f a i l i n g lead and copper. So, i t ' s a very 

4 d e l i c a t e chemical balance, and i t needs t o have a complete 

5 f e a s i b i l i t y done and look at a l l the aspects of i t . 

6 Q. So, t o t h a t extent, you would support our 

7 recommendation t h a t a study be done, would you not? 

8 A. Oh, yes. I wouldn't oppose t h a t at a l l . 

9 Q. Okay. The same t h i n g about the e f f e c t on the 

10 sodium le v e l s ? Wouldn't a f e a s i b i l i t y study take t h a t kind 

11 of t h i n g i n t o account? 

12 A. Yes. I c e r t a i n l y hope i t would, because the 

13 sodium l e v e l s are going t o be very, very high i f you use 

14 s a l t softener. 

15 Q. Would you t u r n again t o Schedule TLF-1, Page 1? 

16 Now, you mentioned the sodium g u i d e l i n e s . Do you a c t u a l l y 

17 have a copy of the sodium g u i d e l i n e s or know where they may 

18 be found? 

19 A. They are j u s t an o l d h e a l t h advisory. There i s 

20 nothing enforceable about them. But knowing t h a t 

21 i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t they are a h e a l t h advisory, we c e r t a i n l y 

22 don't want t o put more sodium i n t o the water than what's 

23 necessary. 

24 Q. What d i d you say t h a t g u i d e l i n e was? 

25 A. I t ' s a h e a l t h advisory. 
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1 Q. What was the h e a l t h advisory l e v e l of sodium? 

2 A. 20 m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r . 

3 Q. Okay. Looking at Mr. Fought's chart on the 

4 sodium l e v e l , do you see what the sodium l e v e l s are showing 

5 t o be i n the Redstone water? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. I n the past years? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And do you see t h a t the sodium l e v e l s i n the 

10 t e s t s done by the lab t h a t Mr. Fought was under contract 

11 w i t h are 103, 104, and 105 i n October of 1999? 

12 A. Yes. Our sodium l e v e l s are shown at about 3 6 

13 and 39, but t h a t may go up and down. I wouldn't dispute 

14 t h a t . 

15 Q. Your sodium levels? 

16 A. Yes. Taking the samples t h a t were sent to the 

17 s t a t e l a b o r a t o r y . 

18 Q. Oh, I see. 

19 A. The ones l i s t e d at 3/11/99 show I t h i n k 36 and 

20 39. And j u s t t o be c l e a r , the sodium l e v e l i n water i s not 

21 very much our d i e t a r y sodium. I t ' s almost nothing compared 

22 t o what you get i n food. But s t i l l , we don't want to put 

23 more sodium i n there since we have a h e a l t h advisory. 

24 Q. Have your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n your current r o l e 

2 5 as a s a n i t a r i a n supervisor changed at a l l from the time you 
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1 submitted testimony i n the r a t e case t o now? 

2 A. I n what way? I don't--

3 Q. Do you have the same job and the same 

4 r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s now as you d i d then? 

5 A . I t h i n k so, yes. 

6 Q. And f o r the record, t h a t was back i n June of 

7 '98--

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. - - t h a t we submitted testimony? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Were you under subpoena i n t h a t case? 

12 A. Yes. Yes, although I was never c a l l e d . I f the 

13 case went forward, I was never c a l l e d . 

14 Q. Who i s i t under your sup e r v i s i o n t h a t i s 

15 responsible s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r i n s p e c t i n g Redstone Water 

16 Company's system? 

17 A. Clark H a r r i s i n our McMurray D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . 

18 Q. And I believe I met Mr. H a r r i s when he was there 

19 f o r the record review. How long have you known 

20 Mr. Yablonski? 

21 A. Approximately I'm going t o say e i g h t years, 

22 maybe nine years. When I f i r s t became a supervisor, I had 

23 some dealings w i t h him on another one of h i s systems. 

24 Q. Now, you mentioned--you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you had 

25 only received two complaints i n 1998? 



336 

1 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

2 Q. I s t h a t correct? 

3 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

4 Q. And I believe--do you have your records from the 

5 D.E.P. of your i n v e s t i g a t i o n of those complaints? 

6 A. Yes, I do. I have Clark H a r r i s ' r e p o r t here i n 

7 f r o n t of me. 

8 Q. So, i t was Mr. H a r r i s t h a t i n v e s t i g a t e d those 

9 complaints? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I approach the witness, 

12 Your Honor? 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

14 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

15 Q. Mr. Wolbert, t h i s i s what was labeled 

16 Attachment 2 t o your testimony i n the r a t e case. 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: W i l l you show t h a t t o counsel? 

18 (Document handed t o counsel.) 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

20 Q. Now, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s document? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. So, you had reviewed i t before you came to the 

23 hearing? 

24 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

2 5 Q. This shows the r e s u l t s of Mr. H a r r i s 1 
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1 i n v e s t i g a t i o n i n the complaints, does i t not? 

2 A. A c t u a l l y , these are complaints i n another 

3 system. These are not Crescent Heights. The two 

4 complaints i n Crescent Heights i n 1998 are on t h i s -form 

5 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . This i s from the A l l i s o n and Royal. 

6 Q. Does the f i r s t page p e r t a i n t o the Crescent 

7 Heights system? 

8 A. Yeah. This page on the pressures p e r t a i n s t o 

9 the Crescent Heights system, and there were pressures taken 

10 i n 1998 by Clark H a r r i s . 

11 Q. Can you t e l l from t h a t document when the 

12 pressure t e s t s were taken? 

13 A. Yes. I t h i n k you w i l l see the date on the top 

14 of the document. 

15 Q. I t doesn't say the time of day, does i t ? 

16 A. No. I don't t h i n k t h a t the time of day i s on 

17 there, no. 

18 Q. The i n s p e c t i o n date was May 22nd, 1998? 

19 A. Right. I t would be during normal D.E.P. working 

20 hours, and my assumption would be since the o f f i c e i s away 

21 from t h i s l o c a t i o n , i t was probably between the hours of 

22 10:00 and 2:00. 

23 Q. Okay. So, based on the pressure t e s t s t h a t 

24 Mr. H a r r i s d i d between 10:00 and 2:00 during the day 

2 5 sometime between Monday and Friday, you concluded t h a t the 
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1 complaints were not s u b s t a n t i a l ? 

2 A. No. We d i d n ' t conclude t h a t on pressure. We 

3 got no readings on pressure showing anything less than what 

4 i s r e q u i r e d . So, t h a t ' s not r e l a t e d t o these other 

5 complaints. These complaints t h a t we got --these two 

6 complaints are not r e l a t e d t o pressure. One was a q u a l i t y 

7 issue w i t h t a s t e and odor and colored water, and t h a t ' s one 

8 where the customer d i d n ' t have enough usage t o keep the 

9 dead end l i n e flushed out. And the other complaint was an 

10 odor problem as w e l l , but t h a t ' s u n r e l a t e d t o the pressure 

11 complaints t h a t we had and the pressures t h a t we d i d . 

12 Q. My notes r e f l e c t t h a t you sa i d there were two 

13 complaints during t h a t year from the Crescent Heights 

14 customers? 

15 A. Right. 

16 Q. And t h a t one could not be substantiated? 

17 A. Right. 

18 Q. And one was not --the odor complaint was r e l a t e d 

19 t o low use? 

20 A. Yes. That was at the Mount Zion B a p t i s t Church, 

21 r i g h t . 

22 Q. Now, when you said one could not be 

23 su b s t a n t i a t e d , weren't you r e f e r r i n g t o the pressure 

24 complaints t h a t Mr. H a r r i s investigated? 

2 5 A. No. No. That was one of these two complaints 
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1 here. 

2 Q. Okay. So, both of those two complaints were 

3 from the Mount Zion Church? 

4 A. No. One was from the Mount Zion Church, and one 

5 was from Linda H i l l at 85 Main S t r e e t . They are unrelated, 

6 these two documents. 

7 Q. I'm going t o show you, Mr. Wolbert, what we 

8 marked e a r l i e r today f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n purposes as O.C.A. 

9 E x h i b i t s 1-A, 1-B, and 1-C. Have you ever seen these 

10 documents before? 

11 A. No. 

12 Q. You have not? 

13 A. No. 

14 Q. And can you determine by lo o k i n g at them now 

15 what they represent? 

16 A. I would say they are a d i s t r i b u t i o n map of the 

17 system. 

18 Q. Okay. Now, whose r e s p o n s i b i l i t y would i t be i n 

19 your o f f i c e t o determine whether the company i s i n 

2 0 compliance w i t h r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t r e q u i r e the keeping of 

21 current system maps? 

2 2 A. D i s t r i b u t i o n maps are g e n e r a l l y kept at the 

23 water supply, and t h a t would be the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the 

24 f i e l d s t a f f . When they do the inspections, a l o t of these 

2 5 maps are very, very l a r g e , so they are kept at the water 
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1 supply. And as part of the i n s p e c t i o n a c t i v i t y , they can 

2 be reviewed by the f i e l d s t a f f . 

3 Q. When you say f i e l d s t a f f , are you r e f e r r i n g t o 

4 Mr. Harris? 

5 A. Clark H a r r i s , yes. 

6 Q. Do you know whether Mr. Ha r r i s has ever reviewed 

7 Restone 1s system maps? 

8 A . I ' m sure he has. 

9 Q. But you don't know f o r ce r t a i n ? 

10 A. I don't know f o r c e r t a i n . 

11 Q. Would Mr. Ha r r i s also be the one responsible f o r 

12 the t a k i n g of pressure t e s t s i n the system? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Did you review any of Mr. H a r r i s ' records 

15 concerning the pressure t e s t s t o the Redstone system? 

16 A. We discussed i t , and there i s the monitoring I 

17 have i n f r o n t of me. We discussed t h a t , yes. 

18 Q. When you say the monitoring I have here, may I 

19 see the document you are r e f e r r i n g to? 

2 0 A. Sure. 

21 (Document handed t o counsel.) 

22 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

23 Q. Now, I understood t h i s t o be a re p o r t t h a t was 

24 done--this was not done i n response t o complaints? 

2 5 A. No. 
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1 Q. This was your r o u t i n e pressure monitoring? 

2 A. Yeah. I t ' s j u s t t o spot check the system t o see 

3 i f there i s any low pressure areas. 

4 Q. Do you know how Mr. H a r r i s chooses the homes at 

5 which he i s going t o take a pressure t e s t ? 

6 A. I t ' s random. Random s e l e c t i o n . 

7 Q. Mr. Wolbert, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h D.E.P. regs 

8 concerning the size of mains? 

9 A. Yes, t o an extent. 

10 Q. What i s the minimum main size per D.E.P. regs? 

11 A. We ge n e r a l l y on new systems don't put anything 

12 i n under s i x inches. I f there i s going t o be any f i r e 

13 p r o t e c t i o n i n the system, nothing under s i x inches. 

14 Q. Do you know whether the r e g u l a t i o n s s p e c i f i c a l l y 

15 say t h a t the s i x - i n c h main minimum size applies only t o new 

16 systems? 

17 A. To my knowledge, we have never gone back and 

18 r e q u i r e d size mains. I t ' s p a r t of the engineering manual 

19 t h a t was r e f e r r e d t o e a r l i e r t h i s morning t h a t I t h i n k i t ' s 

20 new design s p e c i f i c a t i o n s . 

21 Q. Well, are you and Mr. H a r r i s aware t h a t Redstone 

22 Water Company has been r e p l a c i n g mains sized less than s i x 

23 inches? 

24 A. I'm not aware t h a t there i s any mains less than 

2 5 t h a t w i t h f i r e hydrants on them, no. 
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1 Q. I'm not t a l k i n g about j u s t f i r e hydrant mains. 

2 A. You are allowed t o have or you are permitted to 

3 put i n l i n e s less than s i x inches i n size as long as you 

4 don't put a s i x - i n c h f i r e hydrant on t h a t l i n e . 

5 Q. I s t h a t your understanding of what the 

6 r e g u l a t i o n s require? 

7 A. Yes. Because a s i x - i n c h flow out of a f o u r - i n c h 

8 l i n e i s going t o cause problems. There are a l o t of 

9 e x i s t i n g systems, as Redstone Crescent Heights we heard 

10 e a r l i e r , t h a t may have l i n e size less than t h a t , but they 

11 are e x i s t i n g systems. New systems would not be done th a t 

12 way. 

13 Q. The pressure t e s t t h a t you j u s t showed me, 

14 Mr. Wolbert, was t h a t pressure t e s t i n g s u f f i c i e n t t o enable 

15 you t o conclude t h a t a l l customers, i n c l u d i n g those on very 

16 small mains i n the system, would have s u f f i c i e n t pressure 

17 during summer peak demand? 

18 A. I t h i n k the pressure i s regulated i n a system by 

19 the tank height. So, the pressure--unless the 1ines are 

20 blocked or something, the pressure i s going t o be there. 

21 Q. So, I would l i k e t o r e s t a t e the question and I 

22 would r e a l l y l i k e you t o answer my question. Was the 

23 pressure t e s t i n g t h a t D.E.P. d i d i n t h i s system s u f f i c i e n t 

24 t o enable you to conclude t h a t a l l customers, i n c l u d i n g 

2 5 those on very small mains, w i l l have s u f f i c i e n t pressure 
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1 d u r i n g summer peak seasonal demand? 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, I would ask t h a t 

3 Ms. Dusman i d e n t i f y what she means by very small mains. 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Mains fo u r inches i n size or 

5 less . 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . Go ahead. 

7 A. I would j u s t l i k e t o say t h a t I don't t h i n k the 

8 size of the l i n e has an in f l u e n c e on pressure, unless there 

9 are a l o t of customers on a l i n e and i t ' s too small, then 

10 i t would be a volume problem. I be l i e v e the pressure i s 

11 going t o be consistent through the system. 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I don't f e e l , s t i l l , 

13 t h a t I've gotten an answer t o my question. I'm going t o 

14 ask you t o i n s t r u c t the witness t o answer, whether the 

15 D.E.P. pressure t e s t i n g t h a t was done by Mr. H a r r i s at 

16 random houses between 10:00 and 2:00 on a s i n g l e day i s 

17 s u f f i c i e n t t o enable D.E.P. t o conclude t h a t a l l customers, 

18 i n c l u d i n g those on mains four inches i n diameter and less, 

19 w i l l have s u f f i c i e n t pressure during summer peak seasonal 

2 0 demand. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. I f you can answer t h a t . 

22 A. I cannot say t h a t under a l l c o n d i t i o n s every 

23 customer i s going t o have pressure, because l i n e breaks and 

24 other t h i n g s come i n t o e f f e c t i n which pressures are going 

2 5 t o go up and down. 
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1 Q. Let's say there are no l i n e breaks. Forget l i n e 

2 breaks. 

3 A. Okay. 

4 Q. Let's say we don't have any f o r a p e r i o d between 

5 June and September. Do the t e s t s t h a t you have i n f r o n t of 

6 you enable you t o conclude t h a t everyone i s going t o have 

7 adequate pressure i f they are on small or f o u r - i n c h or less 

8 mains? 

9 A. I don't t h i n k I can say th a t c o n c l u s i v e l y . No, 

10 I don't b e l i e v e i t . 

11 Q. And are you aware t h a t Redstone Water Company 

12 has over 8,000 f e e t of f o u r - i n c h pipe i n i t s system? 

13 A. I d i d n ' t know t h a t e x a c t l y . 

14 Q. Are you aware t h a t they have 1,100 f e e t of 

15 th r e e - i n c h pipe? 

16 A. Most every water system t h a t we reg u l a t e has 

17 small l i n e s l i k e t h a t . 

18 Q. I'm asking you i f you are aware t h a t Redstone 

19 has t h i s ? 

2 0 A. No, I'm not. 

21 Q. Are you aware t h a t they have over 3,000 fe e t of 

22 two-inch pipe? 

23 A. I knew they had the small pipe, but I d i d n ' t 

24 know the exact footage, yes. 

25 Q. Now, you said on D i r e c t by Mr. Niesen t h a t 
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1 D.E.P. does not regulate f i r e flow, d i d you not? 

2 A. Right. 

3 Q. However, D.E.P. does regulate the size of mains 

4 t h a t may be connected to hydrants, does i t not? 

5 A. On new systems, yes. 

6 Q. And what i s t h a t requirement? 

7 A. Six-inch. 

8 Q. And are you aware t h a t Redstone has many 

9 hydrants connected t o f o u r - i n c h mains? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. Do you b e l i e v e t h a t a l l Redstone customers w i l l 

12 have pressure at 2 0 p s i or more when a hydrant i s opened? 

13 A. I wouldn't b e l i e v e t h a t i f i t was on a f o u r - i n c h 

14 main t h a t t h a t would be maintained, no, because t h a t ' s a 

15 s i x - i n c h flow on a f o u r - i n c h main. 

16 Q. Since you have j u s t said t h a t they have a number 

17 of hydrants connected t o f o u r - i n c h mains, t o t h a t extent, 

18 they are not i n compliance w i t h your agency's r e g u l a t i o n s , 

19 are they? 

2 0 A. Not by today's standards, no. 

21 Q. Now, you t e s t i f i e d today under D i r e c t by 

22 Mr. Niesen and i n your testimony i n the p r i o r r a t e case 

23 t h a t we r e f e r r e d t o e a r l i e r , and I'm going to quote from 

24 the w r i t t e n testimony i n the r a t e case, but I t h i n k you 

25 sa i d something s i m i l a r today, quote, Redstone's water can 
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1 be used f o r household purposes such as cooking, clothes 

2 washing, and bathing, end quote. Do you r e c a l l t h a t 

3 testimony? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Now, does the phrase s u i t a b l e f o r household 

6 purposes appear i n any Department of Environmental 

7 P r o t e c t i o n regulations? 

8 A. I t may. I'm not aware of t h a t , but i t may. 

9 Q. So, you are not sure? 

10 A . I ' m not sure. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would l i k e t o ask 

12 the witness t o review the r e g u l a t i o n s and advise us, and I 

13 guess I can make i t an on the record data request whether 

14 the phrase s u i t a b l e f o r a l l household purposes appears 

15 anywhere i n h i s agency's r e g u l a t i o n s . 

16 THE COURT: Can you do t h a t , s i r ? Not r i g h t now. 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Not at t h i s moment. 

18 THE WITNESS: Okay. Sure. 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

2 0 Q. Were you aware when you submitted t h a t testimony 

21 i n June of 1998 t h a t the phrase, quote, s u i t a b l e f o r a l l 

22 household purposes, end quote, i s a phrase t h a t i s used by 

23 the Public U t i l i t y Commission as a way of de s c r i b i n g 

24 adequate water service under the Public U t i l i t y Code? 

25 A. No, I'm not aware of t h a t . 
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1 Q. Have you ever discussed what the P.U.C. 

2 standards are f o r adequate service w i t h any Public U t i l i t y 

3 Commission employees? 

4 A. No. 

5 Q. So, you are not aware of the f a c t t h a t r a t e 

6 increases may be denied where t h a t standard i s not met? 

7 A. No, I was not aware of t h a t . 

8 Q. You never heard of a company being denied a rat e 

9 increase because they were p r o v i d i n g inadequate service? 

10 A. I can't say I do d i r e c t l y , no. 

11 Q. Okay. 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I have a moment, Your Honor? 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

14 ( B r i e f pause.) 

15 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

16 Q. Mr. Wolbert, you said e a r l i e r t h a t you reviewed 

17 Mr. Fought 1s w r i t t e n testimony? 

18 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

19 Q. And so, you are aware, are you not, t h a t he 

20 t e s t i f i e d t h a t Redstone should explore at l e a s t two 

21 a l t e r n a t i v e s t o improving the water q u a l i t y t o the Redstone 

22 customers? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And are you aware t h a t the second a l t e r n a t i v e i s 

25 e x p l o r i n g the p o s s i b i l i t y of purchasing Tri-County water? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. And do you support t h a t recommendation? 

3 A. I would l i k e t o see a f e a s i b i l i t y of look i n g at 

4 a l l - - a t the complete system, t a k i n g i n t o account a l l 

5 aspects of the system and tha t being one of the options 

6 looked a t . 

7 Q. Okay. And do you agree w i t h the O.C.A. tha t 

8 having complete current system maps would be a f i r s t step 

9 i n the process of eva l u a t i n g a l l these various problems? 

10 A. I t h i n k we have t o know not only from a map 

11 standpoint, but what p i p i n g i s a c t u a l l y i n the ground, what 

12 the c o n d i t i o n of the 60-year-old system i s . To be f a i r , we 

13 need t o look at what the c a p a b i l i t y of the system i s . With 

14 an interconnect changing the pressure g r a d i e n t s and thing s , 

15 we could blow t h i s system apart, and I t h i n k t h a t the study 

16 needs t o be a l l i n c l u s i v e . 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I don't have anything 

18 f u r t h e r f o r Mr. Wolbert. 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Redirect? 

2 0 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

21 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

22 Q. Could I ask a couple of follow-up questions? 

23 Mr. Wolbert, Redstone i s not a new system, i s i t ? 

24 A. No. Far from i t . I guess i t ' s i n excess of 60 

25 years o l d , from the testimony we have heard. 
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1 Q. I n several of your answers, you drew a 

2 d i s t i n c t i o n between a new system and an e x i s t i n g system? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Can you e x p l a i n that? 

5 A. I t h i n k Chapter 109 i n s t a t e r e g u l a t i o n s are 

6 r e l a t i v e l y new, and t o go back and make those r e t r o a c t i v e 

7 would wipe out probably f i n a n c i a l l y as w e l l as every other 

8 way a l o t of the small systems t h a t we see i n 

9 Pennsylvania. 

10 Q. So, are you saying t h a t your department doesn't 

11 apply some of the r e g u l a t i o n s t o e x i s t i n g systems? 

12 A. There are times they can't be appl i e d . 

13 Q. They cannot be applied? 

14 A. Right. 

15 Q. Okay. 

16 A. I t h i n k I mentioned the secondaries. D.E.P. 

17 monitors secondaries on new sources. We are catching up 

18 from the new source standpoint. F i n a n c i a l l y , some of these 

19 f i x e s are going t o be very, very c o s t l y . And some of the 

2 0 t h i n g s t h a t we are doing i s look i n g a t r e g i o n a l i z a t i o n of 

21 systems. We also have some new studies out i n D.E.P. to 

22 look at the stand alone c a p a b i l i t i e s . I t h i n k I mentioned 

23 t o you an engineering program t h a t the department has to do 

24 a complete analysis of the small systems t o see i f they can 

25 stand alone and meet f u t u r e compliance. 
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1 Q. Can you t e l l us a l i t t l e more about t h a t 

2 program? 

3 A. Yes. I t ' s a brand new program. I t ' s c a l l e d the 

4 Small D r i n k i n g Water Systems Engineering Services, Small 

5 D r i n k i n g Water Systems Engineering Services Program. And 

6 the s t a t e , t h i s came about as the r e s u l t of the 1996 

7 a u t h o r i z a t i o n of the Federal D r i n k i n g Water Act. E.P.A. 

8 has a l o t of money now t h a t ' s coming down t o the state s , 

9 and along w i t h the money comes a l o t of new r e g u l a t i o n s and 

10 a l o t of new extremes, one of them being t h a t systems under 

11 3,300 people, which would t y p i f y Redstone Crescent Heights, 

12 you need to look at the f i n a n c i a l , managerial, and 

13 t e c h n i c a l c a p a b i l i t y of these systems t o see i f they have 

14 the wherewithal t o survive i n the f u t u r e when these new 

15 r e g u l a t i o n s come i n t o place. This i s not a mandatory 

16 program, but i t ' s a program t h a t ' s j u s t g e t t i n g up and 

17 running. I t a l k e d w i t h Mr. Yablonski about i t , and 

18 Harrisburg has agreed t o come out and meet w i t h us and 

19 maybe look at t h i s program. That's what I t h i n k i n my 

20 o p i n i o n needs t o be done. Water business i s such a 

21 chemical balance .that I'm a f r a i d t o do something w i t h the 

22 secondary and cause a v i o l a t i o n of a h e a l t h issue. So, 

23 these o l d systems need to be looked at i n t o t a l i t y and 

24 addressed I t h i n k i n t o t a l i t y . What we heard i n the 

25 courtroom here the l a s t couple of days I t h i n k - -
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1 Q. I s there money f o r a f e a s i b i l i t y study i n the 

2 program? 

3 A. Yes. From what I understand i n speaking w i t h 

4 Harrisburg, and Walt Harner i s the person t h a t administers 

5 t h i s . He t e l l s me t h a t there i s money t o come i n and do 

6 t h i s study, look at the options, not t o t r y t o d r i v e 

7 somebody out of business but t o t r y t o see what can be done 

8 t o make the system compliant. And there may even be some 

9 money t o put i n some l i n e s , f o r some l i n e replacement. 

10 Q. Could a l l t h a t be done i n 60 days? 

11 A. No, I don't t h i n k so, given the s t a f f time. 

12 D.E.P. r i g h t now I t h i n k has put 13 systems i n here, high 

13 p r i o r i t y systems i n the s t a t e . We have systems around the 

14 s t a t e t h a t b o i l water. There are a l l d i f f e r e n t kinds of 

15 serious c o n d i t i o n s . I t h i n k 13 systems were put i n t o t h i s 

16 program t h a t we have an agreement w i t h . I f Mr. Yablonski 

17 i s i n t e r e s t e d i n t a l k i n g w i t h him t o see i f he can get t h i s 

18 system--but, no, 60 days would be u n r e a l i s t i c . 

19 Q. Do you have any f e e l i n g f o r what would be 

20 r e a l i s t i c ? 

21 A. I don't know t h a t because of a l o t of f a c t s . I 

22 don't know what the engineering services are going t o be. 

23 Q. I t ' s a new program? 

24 A. Exactly. And i t would only be a guess on my 

25 p a r t , and I don't l i k e t o be misleading. 
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1 Q. I j u s t want t o ask you about the t e s t i n g f o r 

2 secondary contaminants. I s there a p e r i o d i c schedule f o r 

3 that? Does t h a t have t o be done every year or two years? 

4 A. For secondaries? 

5 Q. Yes. 

6 A. A c t u a l l y , the D.E.P. does not r e q u i r e the states 

7 t o monitor f o r secondaries at a l l . What D.E.P. has done t o 

8 my awareness, i n some areas where there have been a l o t of 

9 complaints come i n on a given t o the system t o the 

10 department and i t i s v a l i d a t e d , then we can put the system 

11 on a monitoring schedule f o r secondaries. 

12 Q. So, i f you have complaints, then you do more 

13 t e s t i n g ? 

14 A. Right. And tha t was one of my--earlier on i n my 

15 testimony, one of the reasons I went t o the meeting, t h i s 

16 was t o get i n f o r m a t i o n so we knew where we were going. 

17 Q. P r i o r t o t h a t , people hadn't complained? 

18 A. No. None. 

19 Q. So, there was no t e s t i n g f o r secondaries? 

2 0 A. Exactly. I come i n t o t h i s system r e l a t i v e l y 

21 r e c e n t l y , so I d i d not have the h i s t o r y t h a t we found back 

22 i n the 1980's t h a t had been done w i t h the system. 

23 Q. Ms. Dusman asked you and r e f e r r e d you t o a l i s t 

24 of pressure t e s t s t h a t were back i n May of 1998. Just so 

2 5 the record i s c l e a r , are these a l l - - a r e these the only 



353 

1 pressure t e s t s t h a t you have taken at Redstone? 

2 A. I n t h i s time frame, there were two a d d i t i o n a l 

3 pressure t e s t s taken i n '99. The day I went t o the 

4 meeting, I heard a complaint about a pressure at Walkertown 

5 H i l l . We d i d a pressure at the highest p o i n t on Walkertown 

6 H i l l and we d i d a pressure down at the post o f f i c e , which 

7 i s one of the low areas, j u s t t o get t h a t d i f f e r e n c e , and 

8 the one on Walkertown H i l l was 70 pounds and the one down 

9 at the post o f f i c e was 130 pounds. 

10 Q. What's your procedure f o r conducting a pressure 

11 t e s t ? 

12 A. We have a pressure gauge s i m i l a r t o the ones 

13 t h a t the water companies use, and we take the pressure 

14 r i g h t i n the house. The law requires a c t u a l l y pressure be 

15 maintained i n the water company's main but, you know, i t 

16 doesn't do the customer any good i f they can't get water. 

17 So, we take the t e s t i n the customer's house t o see i f 

18 there i s pressure there. We screw i t on and t u r n the water 

19 on f u l l . 

2 0 Q. These t e s t r e s u l t s are in-home? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. They are not at the main? 

2 3 A. No. 

24 Q. And t h a t ' s a c t u a l l y - - t h a t b e n e f i t s the customer 

2 5 i n respect t h a t by doing i t t h a t way, you a c t u a l l y know the 
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1 pressure i n s i d e the house? 

2 A. Right. But I bel i e v e the pressure i s going t o 

3 be somewhat s i m i l a r i n the house, unless there i s a high 

4 flow or something. 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That's a l l I have. Thank you. 

6 I'm sorr y . One moment, Your Honor. 

7 ( B r i e f pause.) 

8 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f I might ask one more question. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead. 

10 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

11 Q. You mentioned t h a t you went t o a meeting w i t h 

12 the C i t i z e n s Council i n January of 1999, and i t was r i g h t 

13 a f t e r the outage? 

14 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

15 Q. Have you p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the plan of a c t i o n i n 

16 respect t o the outage? 

17 A. Yes. We were i n touch w i t h the water company. 

18 Mr. Yablonski had c a l l e d as soon as t h a t occurred, put a 

19 voice m a i l , and I c a l l e d him back the next day. We were i n 

20 contact t o make sure t h a t the p u b l i c was n o t i f i e d p r o p e r l y 

21 and we had rad i o coverage and newspaper coverage and p u b l i c 

22 announcements and those kinds of th i n g s . 

23 Q. And d i d he f o l l o w your recommendations 

24 concerning the remedy? 

25 A. Yes. To be f a i r , t h a t was a h o r r i b l e time 
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1 temperature-wise, ice and snow-wise. I t h i n k I even heard 

2 to one of the resid e n t s r e f e r t o how bad the co n d i t i o n s 

3 were at t h a t time, and I t h i n k we d i d the best we could 

4 w i t h the s i t u a t i o n . 

5 Q. Thank you. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That's a l l , Your Honor. 

7 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Just a couple of t h i n g s , 

8 Your Honor. 

9 R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I ON 

10 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

11 Q. Do you know, Mr. Wolbert, whether a pressure 

12 t e s t has ever been done at the house which i s the highest 

13 p o i n t i n the system? 

14 A. The very highest house, I couldn't say. I don't 

15 know, because I don't know which house might be the very 

16 highest. 

17 Q. You don't know that? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. And I believe you said t h a t the houses t h a t were 

2 0 r e f l e c t e d on the pressure t e s t s t h a t you were loo k i n g at 

21 were chosen a r b i t r a r i l y ? 

22 A. I t h i n k they were random. Or i f there was a 

23 complaint t o the water company, i f i t was mentioned to us 

24 or something, maybe we had gone out t o look at t h a t . 

25 Q. I don't want the record t o be confused on t h i s 



356 

1 p a r t i c u l a r issue. You have sa i d I believe twice now tha t 

2 the E.P.A. does not r e q u i r e the s t a t e s t o monitor t h e i r 

3 secondary MCLs, i s t h a t correct? 

4 A. Right. 

5 Q. However--

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I approach the 

7 witness? 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Yes. 

9 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

10 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s r e g u l a t i o n , 

11 Mr. Wolbert, i n Chapter 109, State MCLs and Treatment 

12 Technique Requirements? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Okay. Would you j u s t please read i n t o the 

15 record Subsection B-l? 

16 A. Okay. A p u b l i c water system s h a l l supply 

17 d r i n k i n g water t h a t complies w i t h the secondary MCLs 

18 adopted by the Environmental Q u a l i t y Board under the Act, 

19 except f o r the MCL f o r P L which represents a reasonable 

20 goal f o r d r i n k i n g water q u a l i t y . 

21 Q. Okay. So, do you i n t e r p r e t t h a t , t h a t the 

22 Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, even though not required by 

23 the E.P.A., has chosen t o adopt the secondary MCLs as part 

24 of i t s Safe D r i n k i n g Water Act requirements? 

25 A. Yes. That i s being a p p l i e d t o new sources. And 
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1 on s p e c i f i c cases where there are high complaints because 

2 of the a v a i l a b i l i t y of s t a f f and s t u f f , i t can't be applied 

3 i n other areas. 

4 Q. But i t does apply t o a l l systems today, does i t 

5 not? 

6 A. Yes. Yes. 

7 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I don't have anything f u r t h e r , 

8 Your Honor. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: Anything else? 

11 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: Thank, s i r . You are excused. 

13 (Witness excused.) 

14 (Witness sworn.) 

15 W. DAVID SHRADER, a witness herein, 

16 c a l l e d on behalf of the Respondent, having f i r s t been duly 

17 sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

18 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

19 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

2 0 Q. Would you please s t a t e your f u l l name and your 

21 business address? 

22 A. My name i s W i l l i a m David Shrader, S-h-r-a-d-e-r, 

23 and I work at P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA, 17105-3265. 

24 Q. Mr. Shrader, how are you employed? 

2 5 A . I work f o r the Pennsylvania Public U t i l i t y 
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1 Commission i n i t ' s Bureau of Fixed U t i l i t y Services. 

2 Q. You are here i n response t o a subpoena f o r your 

3 testimony? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. You have provided me w i t h a statement 

6 d e s c r i p t i o n of your educational and employment h i s t o r y ? 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, I would 

8 l i k e t o have t h i s marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 1. 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

10 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

11 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 1 marked 

12 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

13 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

14 Q. I'm going t o show you what's been marked f o r 

15 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as Shrader No. 1. I s t h a t a statement of 

16 your educational and p r o f e s s i o n a l background? 

17 A. Yes, i t i s . 

18 Q. Would you b r i e f l y e x p l a i n - -

19 ATTORNEY HORTING: Excuse me. Could I see a copy? 

2 0 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I'm sorry. 

21 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

2 2 Q. Would you summarize your educational and 

23 p r o f e s s i o n a l background? 

24 A. I have three degrees i n engineering, two 

25 associates, one i n surveying and one i n highway 
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1 engineering, and I have a Bachelor of Science i n water 

2 resources engineering. 11m a licensed surveyor and I have 

3 an e n g i n e e r - i n - t r a i n i n g c e r t i f i c a t e . I have been employed 

4 as an engineer since 1975 and e a r l i e r during school 

5 breaks. I have worked as a p r i v a t e consultant. I have had 

6 my own company. And I have been working w i t h the P.U.C. 

7 now a l i t t l e b i t over f i v e years. 

8 Q. I would l i k e t o address your a t t e n t i o n t o the 

9 Public U t i l i t y Commission's Answer t o the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

10 Subpoena concerning your appearance here today. 

11 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, I would 

12 l i k e t o have t h a t marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as Shrader 

13 E x h i b i t No. 2. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

15 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

16 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2 marked 

17 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

18 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

19 Q. What I would l i k e t o do w i t h you i s confirm the 

20 averments made i n the Answer t o the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

21 Subpoena, and you can f o l l o w along w i t h my questions by 

22 going paragraph t o paragraph. I n Paragraph 1 of the 

2 3 Answer, Mr. Shrader, the averment i s made t h a t i n January 

24 of 1999, Redstone experienced a water service 

25 i n t e r r u p t i o n . I s t h a t statement t r u e and c o r r e c t , t o the 
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1 best of your knowledge, i n f o r m a t i o n , and b e l i e f ? 

2 A. Yes, i t i s . 

3 Q. I n Paragraph No. 2 of the Answer, the averment 

4 i s made, also as a r e s u l t of the service i n t e r r u p t i o n , the 

5 Commission received a l e t t e r dated February 26, 1999 from 

6 an otherwise u n i d e n t i f i e d c o a l i t i o n of Redstone customers 

7 c a l l i n g themselves the C i t i z e n s Advisory Council of West 

8 Pike Run Township which r a i s e d various issues and requested 

9 Commission i n v e s t i g a t i o n . I s t h a t averment t r u e and 

10 c o r r e c t , t o the best of your knowledge, i n f o r m a t i o n , and 

11 b e l i e f ? 

12 A. Yes, i t i s . 

13 Q. And i s the February 26th, 1999 l e t t e r included 

14 as Attachment A to Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2? 

15 A. Yes, i t i s . 

16 Q. And who was t h a t l e t t e r from and to? 

17 A. The l e t t e r was signed by Stephanie Kotula, 

18 K-o-t-u-l-a, and Yvonne, Dickinson, D-i-c-k-i-n-s-o-n, and 

19 i t was addressed t o Chairman John M. Quain, Q-u-a-i-n, 

20 Chairman of the Public U t i l i t y Commission. 

21 Q. Continuing i n Paragraph 3 of the Answer, 

22 W. David Shrader of the Commission's Bureau of Fixed 

2 3 U t i l i t y Services was given the assignment regarding the 

24 l e t t e r . I s t h a t statement t r u e and correct? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Could you describe the assignment t h a t you were 

2 given regarding the l e t t e r of February 26th, 1999? 

3 A. I was assigned t o a i d Jack T. Polk, P-o-l-k, 

4 manager of the Water/Wastewater Section, I n d u s t r i a l 

5 D i v i s i o n of my u n i t , and t o a s s i s t and a i d i n responding t o 

6 t h a t l e t t e r f o r the Commission. 

7 Q. What was the employment r e l a t i o n s h i p between you 

8 and Mr. Polk? 

9 A. Mr. Polk was my u n i t manager, which would be a 

10 step above my supervisor, Ms. Judy Carlson, C-a-r-1-s-o-n. 

11 Q. I s Mr. Polk s t i l l employed w i t h the Public 

12 U t i l i t y Commission? 

13 A. He has since r e t i r e d as of l a s t J u l y . 

14 Q. Now, con t i n u i n g w i t h Paragraph 3, the averment 

15 continues t o s t a t e , Mr. Shrader's handwritten notes on the 

16 l a s t three pages of Attachment A as w e l l as Attachment B 

17 r e s u l t e d from h i s p r e l i m i n a r y survey of the matter. I s 

18 t h a t a t r u e and c o r r e c t statement? 

19 A. Yes, i t i s . 

2 0 Q. And the handwritten notes t h a t are on 

21 Attachment A t h a t i s included w i t h Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2, 

22 t h a t i s your handwriting, i s i t not? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. What was the purpose of making those notes? 

2 5 A. Mr. Polk was very concerned about --we are i n an 
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1 advisory p o s i t i o n here. We had no l e g a l support and we d i d 

2 not want to be involved w i t h anyone t h a t had or be i n 

3 contact w i t h anyone t h a t has a current formal, non-formal, 

4 any type of a r a t e case formal complaint or anybody t h a t 

5 t e s t i f i e d at the p u b l i c input hearing from a p r o p r i e t a r y 

6 matter, I guess. 

7 Q. So, the handwriting was the designation status 

8 of c e r t a i n people on the l i s t ? 

9 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. Attachment B, would you t u r n t o t h a t . That 

11 would be Shrader Attachment No. 2? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. That i s , again, your handwriting. And what i s 

14 the s i g n i f i c a n c e of these notes? 

15 A. Mr. Polk, a f t e r I d i d the p r e l i m i n a r y going 

16 through the l i s t t h a t was submitted i n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h the 

17 l e t t e r t h a t we e l i m i n a t e d , I then t r i e d t o attempt to 

18 contact people t h a t were on t h i s l i s t . And these were four 

19 people I was able to speak w i t h and ask questions w i t h 

20 concerning what t h e i r concerns are. 

21 Q. These are notes of your conversations w i t h these 

22 i n d i v i d u a l s ? 

23 A. On the telephone, yes. 

24 Q. Continuing w i t h Averment 4 i n the Answer, i t 1 s 

2 5 s t a t e d t h a t , the Commission responded t o the February 26, 
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1 1999 l e t t e r from the C i t i z e n s Advisory Council by l e t t e r 

2 dated March 18, 1999 i n d i c a t i n g t h a t s t a f f would conduct an 

3 o n - s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n of Redstone's service operations and 

4 business p r a c t i c e s . I s t h a t statement t r u e and correct? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. And, i n f a c t , was there an o n - s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n 

7 conducted? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And the Commission's l e t t e r of March 18, 1999 i s 

10 included as Attachment C to Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2, i s t h a t 

11 r i g h t ? 

12 A. The March 18th l e t t e r i s a l e t t e r by Mr. Jack T. 

13 Polk addressed to the Advisory Council, what he believed to 

14 be t h e i r issues t h a t they took up i n t h e i r i n i t i a l l e t t e r , 

15 what we were going t o do, and he j u s t addressed various 

16 p o i n t s and t h a t we were going t o do an o n - s i t e i n s p e c t i o n . 

17 Q. And i s t h a t l e t t e r as included as Attachment C 

18 t o Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Paragraph 5 of the Answer s t a t e s , on A p r i l 21, 

21 1999, Mr. Shrader conducted an o n - s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n of 

22 Redstone. Did you, i n f a c t , conduct an o n - s i t e 

23 i n v e s t i g a t i o n on A p r i l 29, 1999? 

24 A. A p r i l 21st. 

25 Q. I'm sorry. A p r i l 21, 1999? 
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1 A. Yes, I d i d . 

2 Q. So, t h a t statement i s tr u e and c o r r e c t , also? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. And during the o n - s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n , 

5 Mr. Shrader took 19 Polaroid photographs, copies of which 

6 are appended t o the Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2 as Attachment D, 

7 i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Continuing then, Paragraph 6 s t a t e s , subsequent 

10 t o h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n , Mr. Shrader prepared an i n t e r o f f i c e 

11 memorandum dated A p r i l 27, 1999 t o h i s manager d e l i n e a t i n g 

12 h i s f i n d i n g s . I s th a t statement t r u e and correct? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. I s your A p r i l 27, 1999 memorandum attached as 

15 Attachment E t o Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Paragraph 7 of the Answer sta t e s t h a t , the 

18 Commission's Bureau of Fixed U t i l i t y Services prepared a 

19 w r i t t e n l e t t e r dated May 4, 1999 t o Stephanie Kotula, 

20 Chairperson of C i t i z e n s Advisory Council regarding the 

21 f i n d i n g s of Mr. Shrader during h i s o n - s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n of 

22 A p r i l 21, 1999. I s t h a t statement t r u e and correct? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And i s the May 4, 1999 l e t t e r included as 

25 Attachment F t o Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Let me f o r the record, Your Honor, 

3 make c l e a r t h a t the l a s t two pages of Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2 

4 as Attachment F, I would ask t h a t the p a r t i e s and the court 

5 r e p o r t e r handwrite on the bottom of the f i r s t of two pages 

6 Attachment F. 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . 

8 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

9 Q. Now, I would l i k e t o go back t o your o n - s i t e 

10 i n v e s t i g a t i o n of A p r i l 21, 1999. And i f you look at 

11 Attachment E t o Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2, i s Attachment E a 

12 complete d e s c r i p t i o n of what occurred during t h a t 

13 i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. I n your own words, and you can use your memo and 

16 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2 t o r e f r e s h your r e c o l l e c t i o n as you 

17 need t o , can you ex p l a i n what occurred t h a t day when you 

18 went t o Redstone on A p r i l 21, 1999 and conducted your 

19 i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

20 A. I a r r i v e d on s i t e e a r l y . I t was a c h i l l y r a i n y 

21 day, A p r i l 21st. And I went immediately up t o the storage 

22 tank t o check on i t s capacity, i f i t was at f u l l capacity, 

23 and the l e v e l gauge i n d i c a t e d t h a t i t was so. I had 

24 n o t i c e d t h a t the tank had been repainted i n recent years, 

25 but the bottom par t had been covered w i t h g r a f f i t i , and I 



366 

1 d i d take a p i c t u r e of t h a t . The tank s i t s a t the highest 

2 p o i n t of the service t e r r i t o r y . Then I a r r i v e d at the 

3 company's o f f i c e . Mrs. Denise S t i s h , S - t - i - s - h , the o f f i c e 

4 manager, was present. 

5 Q. Mr. Shrader, l e t ' s j u s t stop a moment. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor please, I have the 

7 photographs of Mr. Shrader's t h a t he took during t h i s 

8 v i s i t . 

9 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

10 Q. Do you have them w i t h you, also, Mr. Shrader? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And what I have are copies, i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

13 A. Right. 

14 Q. Let's back up a moment. You mentioned the 

15 p i c t u r e of the tank. Let's use these i f you would, please, 

16 and i d e n t i f y and p u l l out the p i c t u r e of the tank t h a t you 

17 r e f e r r e d t o . 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Let's mark th a t as Shrader E x h i b i t 

19 No. 3. 

20 {Whereupon, the document was marked as 

21 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 3 f o r 

22 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

23 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. I s Shrader E x h i b i t 3 the p i c t u r e of the tank 

25 t h a t you referenced i n your testimony? 
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1 A. Yes, i t i s . 

2 Q. Please continue. What d i d you do a f t e r you 

3 v i s i t e d the tank? 

4 A. I went down t o the company o f f i c e , and there I 

5 met w i t h Denise S t i s h , who was the o f f i c e manager. We were 

6 w a i t i n g f o r Mr. Yablonski, Greg Yablonski, and Paul Long, 

7 L-o-n-g, t h a t they were on t h e i r way, and they were 

8 communicating v i a two-way r a d i o . 

9 Q. And then what happened? 

10 A. She i n q u i r e d about a l e t t e r request concerning 

11 records, and I b r i e f e d her on what was necessary. She 

12 began making appropriate copies. 

13 Q. Did you then go t o customer loca t i o n s ? Well, 

14 you t e l l me, what d i d you do next? 

15 A. The t r i o got there and I went over what we were 

16 going t o do, what r u l e s of conduct we were expect ing, and 

17 also wait f o r the Council t o show up. They had requested 

18 several times t o be along w i t h t h i s i n s p e c t i o n . And we 

19 waited u n t i l about 9:20 f o r them, and they d i d n ' t a r r i v e . 

20 So, we decided t o leave, and i f members of the Council 

21 showed up or telephoned, Mrs. S t i s h was i n s t r u c t e d to 

22 contact us. 

23 Q. Was there a p a r t i c u l a r person from the Council 

24 t h a t you were w a i t i n g f o r t h a t day? 

2 5 A. Not necessarily. We requested t h a t anybody th a t 
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1 had a formal complaint, an in f o r m a l complaint, t h a t 

2 t e s t i f i e d at the i n p u t , or had a formal complaint on the 

3 r a t e case not be along. 

4 Q. Not be along? 

5 A. Right. Mr. Polk, again, was very concerned that 

6 i t j u s t might not be appropriate or whatever. 

7 Q. A l l r i g h t . Then what d i d you do? 

8 A. Well, p r i o r t o le a v i n g the o f f i c e , Mr. Yablonski 

9 took me i n t o the lab p a r t of the o f f i c e , where I guess at a 

10 u t i l i t y sink, he has a pressure gauge t h a t ' s permanently--

11 w e l l , not permanently mounted, but they leave i t there so 

12 they can check pressures. At t h a t time and day, i t was 

13 reading approximately 60 pounds, and w i t h h i s explanation 

14 and h i s c a l c u l a t i o n s would be about r i g h t f o r the p o s i t i o n 

15 of the tank w i t h the water l e v e l which was i n i t . 

16 Q. And d i d you take p i c t u r e s of the gauge reading? 

17 A. Yes, I d i d . 

18 Q. You took two p i c t u r e s of t h a t gauge reading? 

19 A. Yes, I d i d . 

20 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, I would 

21 l i k e t o have these p i c t u r e s marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 4 

22 and E x h i b i t No. 5. May they be so i d e n t i f i e d ? 

23 JUDGE NEMEC: They may. 

24 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

25 Shrader E x h i b i t Nos. 4 and 5 f o r 



369 

1 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

2 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

3 Q. So the record i s c l e a r , Mr. Shrader, I w i l l show 

4 you what we marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 4 and Shrader 

5 E x h i b i t No. 5. Are those the p i c t u r e s you took of the 

6 company's o f f i c e and the p i c t u r e of the pressure gauge that 

7 the company has at i t s o f f i c e ? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And t h a t gauge reads what? 

10 A. 60 pounds p s i . 

11 Q. They are p i c t u r e s of the same gauge, i s t h a t 

12 r i g h t ? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Just from d i f f e r e n t angles or one i s f a r t h e r 

15 away than the other? 

16 A. Right. 

17 Q. And then what d i d you do? 

18 A. Off my l i s t , we went t o Mr. John C o l l i n s , Jr.'s 

19 residence. 

20 Q. Off your l i s t . How d i d he come t o be on your 

21 l i s t ? 

22 A. Again, these were--this was during my survey, 

23 telephone survey, how I located t h i s gentleman. And he had 

24 r e p l i e d t h a t he had had several outages since September, he 

25 has d i r t y water, he has t o l e t i t run, he has low pressure 
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1 at any time. And he was i n the Crescent Heights d i v i s i o n , 

2 so t h a t meant he was on the top of the h i l l . And he has 

3 never seen any hydrant f l u s h i n g . And I gave him Jim 

4 Farley's number at the Bureau of Consumer Services i f he 

5 wanted t o f i l e any k i n d of a formal complaint or he had any 

6 k i n d of questions. 

7 Q. A l l r i g h t . So, you went t o Mr. C o l l i n s ' house? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And what happened there? 

10 A. His w i f e answered the door. She said her 

11 husband was at work and she d i d n ' t understand why I chose--

12 I have a typo. Why I decided to choose t o have an 

13 i n s p e c t i o n at t h e i r residence. I remarked about her 

14 husband's t i e s t o Council, and she r e p l i e d she was unaware 

15 of the Council or her husband's involvement. And she was 

16 at the time preparing t o do a load of white clothes and she 

17 was f i l l i n g her washing machine. I asked her to stop f o r 

18 the time being. I asked f o r a c l e a r glass and got water 

19 from the k i t c h e n faucet. The pressure appeared adequate. 

20 The water was c l e a r w i t h no v i s i b l e sediment, no odor, and 

21 the t a s t e was okay. I then went outside and took pressure 

22 t e s t s on the outside b i b , the outside hose b i b , and read 51 

23 pounds. I'm going t o note here t h a t t h i s house was a 

24 l i t t l e b i t higher i n e l e v a t i o n than the company's o f f i c e , 

25 so I would expect not t o have a higher pressure reading 
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1 than the o f f i c e because t h i s i s a g r a v i t y system. 

2 Mrs. C o l l i n s , I asked her several questions about the 

3 water, and she has no problems w i t h the water, she use them 

4 both potably and domestically. 

5 Q. Did you take any p i c t u r e s of the t e s t i n g t h a t 

6 you d i d at the C o l l i n s household? 

7 A. Yes, I d i d . 

8 Q. Take your time. 

9 A. This i s a p i c t u r e t h a t I took of the glass of 

10 water I had taken a t the time, and I put i t on her stove 

11 because i t had a white background so you could see tha t 

12 there was--just t o show i t was cl e a r . 

13 ATTORNEY NIESEN: We w i l l mark t h a t as Shrader 

14 E x h i b i t No. 6. May t h a t be so i d e n t i f i e d , Your Honor? 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may. 

16 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

17 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 6 f o r 

18 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

19 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

20 Q. Did you take any other p i c t u r e s at the C o l l i n s 

21 household? 

22 A. Yes. This i s a p i c t u r e , and i t d i d n ' t come out 

23 very w e l l because of where the l o c a t i o n of t h e i r outside 

24 hose b i b i s underneath t h e i r mobile home, and I couldn't 

25 get very close t o i t . I t f l a r e d . But anyhow, I was able 
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1 t o read i t at 51 pounds. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: May we have t h a t marked as Shrader 

3 E x h i b i t No. 7? 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

5 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

6 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 7 f o r 

7 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

8 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

9 Q. You l e f t the C o l l i n s household, then? 

10 A. Right. 

11 Q. And where d i d you go a f t e r that? 

12 A. Now, I j u s t want t o s t a t e here now t h a t j u s t 

13 about what happened there happened at the next three 

14 houses. Now, I also--

15 Q. By there, you mean what? 

16 A. That they were s a t i s f i e d w i t h t h e i r pressure, 

17 they d i d n ' t have problems, they were aware of the January 

18 problem, they don't have problems w i t h sediment or odor or 

19 t a s t e . 

20 Q. A l l r i g h t . 

21 A. Then I also want t o s t a t e t h a t one of the things 

22 we were going t o t r y t o do also was t o randomly go to 

23 d i f f e r e n t houses, f i r s t checking t o make sure they were not 

24 any of the no-no l i s t and see i f we can do some 

25 randomization. And we t r i e d t o p i c k a place t h a t had a 
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1 v e h i c l e or, you know, j u s t maybe somebody i s home and we 

2 j u s t s t r u c k out. So, we continued on down. I went around 

3 Crescent Heights. I went t o Mr. Cornell E l l i s . Now, he 

4 was at work. Now, the lady of the house, I d i d n ' t catch 

5 her name, she had no complaints. The water was c l e a r , no 

6 odor, good t a s t e . But they d i d n ' t have an outside b i b , so 

7 I couldn't take a reading there, but pressure at the tap 

8 seemed adequate. They would be a l i t t l e above the 

9 e l e v a t i o n from the o f f i c e of the water company and probably 

10 the same e l e v a t i o n roughly as the C o l l i n s house. 

11 Q. Did you take any p i c t u r e s of your t e s t i n g at the 

12 E l l i s house? 

13 A. Yes, I d i d . I believe I took one. Because they 

14 d i d n ' t have an outside b i b , I wasn't able t o take a 

15 pressure sample. Again, I put i t on a l i g h t background so 

16 you could see t h a t i t d i d n ' t appear t o have sediment or 

17 cloudiness, and I d i d smell i t and t a s t e i t and everything 

18 seemed f i n e . 

19 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, may we have th a t 

20 p i c t u r e marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 8? 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

22 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

23 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 8 f o r 

24 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

2 5 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 
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1 Q. You then l e f t the E l l i s house? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And where d i d you go from there? 

4 A. Now, we went down t o what we c a l l Daisytown. I 

5 guess t h a t ' s down on the bottom. And we went t o a 

6 W i l l i a m R. Ridge's house. Whenever I t a l k e d w i t h him on 

7 the phone, he had several outages i n September, he had no 

8 pressure, and he had a hydrant i n h i s yard. He said he 

9 opened i t and there i s no water coming out of i t . Again, I 

10 gave him Jim Farley's number. Well, whenever we got there, 

11 he appeared not t o be home. So, w i t h the company, we went 

12 around back and opened the hydrant and i t flowed. There 

13 was water coming out of i t . We d i d n ' t f u l l y open i t 

14 because we discussed t h a t we might s t i r up too much i n the 

15 l i n e and cause some problems, so we shut i t back o f f r a t h e r 

16 q u i c k l y . 

17 Q. That would be a t y p i c a l occurrence i n opening a 

18 hydrant? 

19 A. Oh, yeah. 

20 Q. Did you take any p i c t u r e s of t h i s p a r t of your 

21 i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

22 A. Yes, I d i d . I took two. 

23 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, may these photographs 

24 be marked as Shrader E x h i b i t 9 and Shrader E x h i b i t 10? 

25 JUDGE NEMEC: They may. 
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1 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

2 Shrader E x h i b i t Nos. 9 and 10 f o r 

3 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

4 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

5 Q. Where d i d you go from the E l l i s household? 

6 A. Then we went on downstream, I b e l i e v e , i n 

7 Daisytown t o a Ms. L o r i Ventura. Now, whenever I spoke 

8 w i t h her, she s a i d she d i d n ' t have any problems since 

9 January. She uses a B r i t a f i l t e r . She i s concerned about 

10 hardness. Then she j u s t mentioned t h a t everybody up i n the 

11 heights has pressure and outage problems. Well, when we 

12 got there, she wasn't there. She wasn't home. But her 

13 mother-in-law, who i s Susan, was a couple doors over and 

14 she came out t o f i n d out what I was doing there. And we 

15 got t a l k i n g and she said she had no complaints other than 

16 during the January problem period. The water i s c l e a r and 

17 there i s no taste--no odor, ta s t e s good. I took a pressure 

18 at the hose b i b , and t h a t was 138 pounds. The house i s on 

19 a pressure reducer and i t ' s at one of the lower e l e v a t i o n s 

2 0 on the system. She r e l a t e d t h a t she and her 

21 daughter-in-law only attended the f i r s t Council meeting at 

22 which matters of the township were t o be discussed but 

2 3 nothing about the water company. 

24 Q. Did you take photographs of your i n v e s t i g a t i o n 

25 at the Ventura house? 
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1 A. Yes, I d i d . There i s a glass of water I drew. 

2 I have i t against a l i g h t background. You can see tha t the 

3 water i s c l e a r . 

4 Q. Just a minute. 

5 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, may we have t h a t 

6 marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 11? 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

8 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

9 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 11 f o r 

10 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

11 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

12 Q. Any other p i c t u r e s of the Ventura household? 

13 A. This i s a p i c t u r e of the pressure gauge reading 

14 of 138 pounds. 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, may we have t h a t 

16 marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 12? 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

18 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

19 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 12 f o r 

20 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

21 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

22 Q. A l l r i g h t . You then l e f t the Ventura household? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And where d i d you go from there? 

25 A. We went up t o Maiden Road t o Bruno and S a l l y 



377 

1 Shemansky. At the time I spoke t o them, they were one of 

2 the f i v e houses t h a t are on the two-inch s l i p l i n e and they 

3 haven't had any problems since January. They j u s t wished 

4 the company would come back and f i x t h e i r driveway. 

5 Q. January was what? 

6 A. January of '99, t h a t was whenever the outage 

7 was, occurred. 

8 Q. Okay. 

9 A. Again, I gave them Jim Farley's number. I drew 

10 water there, i t was c l e a r , no odor, good t a s t e . The 

11 pressure was 90 degrees psig and they mentioned they wished 

12 they had never g o t t e n mixed up w i t h the Council. And they 

13 are about approximately halfway up Maiden Road, M-a-d-l-e-n 

14 ( s i c ) , across from Crescent Heights area. So, 90 pounds 

15 would seem--would be i n d i c a t i v e of t h a t . 

16 Q. Did you take p i c t u r e s of your t e s t i n g and 

17 i n v e s t i g a t i o n at the Shemansky household? 

18 A. Yes, I d i d . Here i s a p i c t u r e of the glass of 

19 water t h a t I had drawn against a l i g h t background. 

2 0 Q. And what does t h a t show? 

21 A. I t i n d i c a t e s t h a t the water i s c l e a r , and I d i d 

22 smell and t a s t e i t . 

23 Q. And d i d i t have any smell or unusual t a s t e t o 

24 i t ? 

25 A. No. No, i t d i d not. 
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1 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, we would 

2 l i k e t o have t h i s photograph marked as Shrader E x h i b i t 

3 No. 13. 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 

5 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

6 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 13 f o r 

7 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

8 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

9 Q. Any other photographs of the Shemansky house? 

10 A. Yes. This i s a p i c t u r e of the pressure gauge on 

11 the outside hose b i b . I read 9 0 pounds, but as you can 

12 see, the f l a s h blocked t h a t out. 

13 Q. And on t h i s copy of the photograph, you wrote 

14 Shemansky, 90 pounds? 

15 A. On each one of those photographs t h a t have the 

16 gauge, I wrote down the pressure t h a t I read. 

17 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, may we have 

18 t h i s photo marked as Shrader E x h i b i t No. 14? 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

20 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

21 Shrader E x h i b i t No. 14 f o r 

22 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

23 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t . Was the Shemansky household the l a s t 

2 5 one t h a t you took tests? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Was t h a t the end of your i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. What else d i d you do? 

5 A. We went along a t o u r of Maiden Road w i t h the 

6 three people from the company. 

7 Q. Why d i d you go t o Maiden Road? 

8 A. This was the area i n which they apparently had 

9 t h e i r outages dur i n g the January p e r i o d . 

10 Q. That's where the l i n e break was? 

11 A. Line breaks, apparently. 

12 Q. So, you went t o Maiden Road and what d i d you 

13 l e a r n there? 

14 A. W e l l / a s w e walked along, I found several areas 

15 where I could t e l l t h a t there was some type of recent 

16 excavation. The b a c k f i l l apparently looked l i k e number 2-B 

17 stone, which i s i n d i c a t i v e of PennDOT shoulder 

18 r e s t o r a t i o n . I have several p i c t u r e s of t h a t showing those 

19 areas. There was l i k e seven or ei g h t or nine areas, i f I 

20 r e c a l l r i g h t . And the other t h i n g , as Mr. Yablonski had 

21 pointed out t o me, PennDOT r e c e n t l y widened t h i s road and 

22 resurfaced i t and they put up new guide r a i l s . Apparently 

23 here you can see i n several p i c t u r e s where the guide r a i l s 

24 are j ust k i n d of askew. Another t h i n g I noti c e d and I had 

2 5 taken p i c t u r e s of, there would be these long, l o n g i t u d i n a l 
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1 cracks i n the one lane nearest the guide r a i l . Now, t h i s 

2 was i n several areas, and j ust about everywhere there was 

3 one, i t looked l i k e an i n d i c a t i o n of excavation. So, now, 

4 whether the road s h i f t e d or whatever, I cannot say 

5 w i t h o u t - - ! would have t o say PennDOT would have t o do t h e i r 

6 own i n v e s t i g a t i o n . But i t i s i n d i c a t i v e - - ! mean, t h i s i s a 

7 r e l a t i v e l y new wearing surface. 

8 Q. And what d i d you conclude from t h a t as f a r as 

9 Maiden Road i s concerned? 

10 A. I would say--you mean i n terms of the company? 

11 Q. Yeah. 

12 A. I don't know. I would maybe go t o PennDOT and 

13 say, what's the deal? 

14 Q. Well, i s what you saw at Maiden Road consistent 

15 w i t h the company's explanation t h a t there was an ea r t h 

16 movement along the road which broke the pipe i n several 

17 places? 

18 A. Without me doing subsurface i n v e s t i g a t i o n , I 

19 can't t e s t i f y t o t h a t . 

2 0 Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you have a p a r t i c u l a r order that 

21 you would l i k e t o have these--

2 2 JUDGE NEMEC: Excuse me a second. Do we need t o 

23 make those p a r t of the record? I'm j u s t concerned about 

24 having too much here. I don't know t h a t there i s any issue 

25 regarding t h a t l i n e break. 
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1 ATTORNEY NIESEN: A l l r i g h t . 

2 JUDGE NEMEC: I mean, i t happened and i t r e s u l t e d i n 

3 an outage. We know t h a t . But i n terms of the conditions 

4 there and so f o r t h , I don't know t h a t there i s any 

5 p a r t i c u l a r issue i n th a t p o r t i o n of the testimony t h a t the 

6 photos would address. 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Fa i r enough. 

8 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

9 Q. Did t h a t complete your i n v e s t i g a t i o n on 

10 A p r i l 21? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Now, based on your i n v e s t i g a t i o n and what you 

13 saw, who you t a l k e d t o , the t e s t s you took, what 

14 conclusion, i f any, d i d you reach about the q u a l i t y of 

15 service issues r a i s e d i n the Council's l e t t e r ? 

16 A. I found them unfounded. I mean, nobody 

17 i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t they had any problems. A l l they 

18 t a l k e d about was there was a problem there i n January. 

19 They acknowledged t h a t f a c t . 

20 Q. And your conclusion i s as expressed i n your 

21 A p r i l 27th, 1999 memorandum t o Mr. Polk, i s n ' t t h a t true? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Were your conclusions then relayed or presented 

24 t o the C i t i z e n s Council? 

2 5 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And how was t h a t done? 

2 A. I t would be Attachment F, a l e t t e r t h a t I aided 

3 Mr. Polk i n d r a f t i n g . 

4 Q. And are your conclusions e s s e n t i a l l y those 

5 expressed i n Paragraph 2, the second paragraph of t h a t 

6 l e t t e r ? 

7 A. Of the l e t t e r t o the Council? 

8 Q. Yes. You, i n f a c t , i n terviewed and took samples 

9 at homes from the l i s t of customers t h a t had been included 

10 i n the l e t t e r t o Chairman Quain? Did you do that? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Yes. You found t h a t the q u a l i t y of service was 

13 i n compliance w i t h Commission regulations? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. You found t h a t customers expressed s a t i s f a c t i o n 

16 w i t h the water company's o v e r a l l service? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And you found t h a t f i r e hydrants were 

19 operational? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t f i n d i n g s from your i n s p e c t i o n 

22 i s t h a t the Redstone Water Company appears t o be i n 

2 3 compliance w i t h Commission regulations? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. As w e l l as i n compliance w i t h Pennsylvania 
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1 Department of Environmental P r o t e c t i o n r e g u l a t i o n s ? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, t h a t 

4 completes our questioning of Mr. Shrader. 

5 ATTORNEY HORTING: Your Honor, could I have a 

6 moment? 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Do you want t o take a break at t h i s 

8 point? 

9 ATTORNEY HORTING: That would be f i n e . 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: We w i l l take a five-minute break. 

11 (Whereupon, a recess was taken from 

12 3:13 P.M. t o 3:20 P.M. 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: You may proceed. 

14 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

15 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

16 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Shrader. I'm E r i n Horting 

17 from the O f f i c e of the Advocate Consumer, and we are 

18 i n t e r v e n i n g i n t h i s case. I j u s t want t o go back through 

19 your Shrader E x h i b i t No. 2. There are a few questions. 

20 A. Which e x h i b i t ? 

21 Q. This i s the e n t i r e Answer t h a t you submitted t o 

22 the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r Subpoena. 

23 A. Okay. 

24 Q. Now, Mr. Shrader, can you t e l l me, how many 

25 times have you been t o the Redstone service t e r r i t o r y p r i o r 
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1 t o your v i s i t on A p r i l 21st? 

2 A. Once. 

3 Q. Was t h a t A p r i l 21st v i s i t the only time--

4 A. No. 

5 Q. --or you have been there previously? 

6 A. I was there p r e v i o u s l y . 

7 Q. Can you t e l l me when you were there previously? 

8 A. I would have t o look at my records. 

9 Q. Can you estimate what year t h a t was? Was i t 

10 i n - -

11 A. '97. 

12 Q. And why were you there i n 1997? 

13 A. I was there on a r a t e case i n v e s t i g a t i o n . 

14 Q. And how much time d i d you spend there? 

15 A. Two days. Not j u s t at Crescent Heights and 

16 Daisytown. Also, I went t o Royal and A l l i s o n . 

17 Q. And can you estimate about how much time you 

18 spent at the Crescent Heights? 

19 A. Probably s i x t o e i g h t hours. 

20 Q. And when you a r r i v e d at Redstone on A p r i l 21st, 

21 1999, d i d you b r i n g any ma t e r i a l s w i t h you? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. What d i d you bring? 

24 A. Two pressure gauges, a Polaroid camera, 

25 cl i p b o a r d s , maps. I t h i n k I even had my p o r t a b l e voice 
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1 recorder, tape player. 

2 Q. And were these recording pressure gauges? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. And what maps d i d you b r i n g w i t h you? 

5 A. U.S.G.S., highway map, Pennsylvania a t l a s , and 

6 gazetteer • 

7 Q. And were these maps supplied t o you by the 

8 company? 

9 A. No. Those were supplied by me. 

10 Q. And the U.S.G.S. map, i s t h a t a topographical 

11 map? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. So, you d i d n ' t have a map of Redstone's 

14 d i s t r i b u t i o n system, i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. No, I d i d not. 

16 Q. And you said you went f i r s t t o the water tank? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And had you been t o th a t water tank before? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. During your previous v i s i t ? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. I s t h a t how you knew where i t was? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And when you went t o the Redstone o f f i c e , you 

25 asked- - I b e l i e ve t h a t you sai d you asked Mrs. S t i s h to 
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1 provide you w i t h — l e t ' s see what word you used. You t e l l 

2 me. What d i d you ask Mrs. S t i s h t o provide you with? 

3 A. (The witness i n d i c a t e s . ) 

4 Q. What i s t h i s you put i n f r o n t of me? 

5 A. That i s a l e t t e r request f o r them t o provide me 

6 w i t h copies of 65.3, t h a t would be a l l complaints, we 

7 requested from the e f f e c t i v e date of the new t a r i f f ; and 

8 65.5, which i s i n t e r r u p t i o n of service--65.3, which i s a 

9 l i s t of a l l t h e i r complaints; 65.5, which i s i n t e r r u p t i o n 

10 of service and those records; and 65.6, which i s records of 

11 a l l t h e i r pressure surveys, which they d i d . She then knew 

12 what we wanted and she s t a r t e d making copies f o r me. 

13 Q. When you say she made copies of pressure 

14 surveys--

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. --can you t e l l me what years or dates those 

17 pressure surveys were taken? 

18 A. I w i l l need t o get t o my f i l e . I w i l l put these 

19 i n ch r o n o l o g i c a l order. 

20 Q. Could you perhaps t e l l me what dates these 

21 surveys were taken? Can you t e l l me? 

22 A. Here i s one 2/18/99. 

23 Q. Okay. What are the other dates? 

24 A. 2/18/99, 2/18/99, 2/18/99, 2/18/99, 3/26/99. 

25 Q. I'm sor r y . Was t h a t four on 2/18/99 and one 
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1 on - -

2 A. Five. 

3 Q. Five. Could I j u s t see those? 

4 (Documents handed t o counsel.) 

5 ATTORNEY HORTING: I f I could j u s t have a moment. 

6 ( B r i e f pause.) 

7 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

8 Q. Thank you. Can you t e l l me, are those a survey 

9 i n accordance w i t h the Commission r e g u l a t i o n requirements? 

10 A. This i s the records upon which they had sent me. 

11 Q. This i s what they provided t o you? 

12 A. That's r i g h t . 

13 Q. And had they provided t h i s t o you ahead of time, 

14 or was t h i s the copies t h a t Mrs. S t i s h made f o r you at the 

15 o f f i c e ? 

16 A. That was at the o f f i c e . 

17 Q. And t h i s was i n response t o your request--

18 A. I t couldn't be. Not by the date of t h a t l e t t e r 

19 request. The date of t h a t l e t t e r request was A p r i l 2nd. 

20 So, t h i s was conducted p r i o r t o our A p r i l 2nd data 

21 request. 

22 Q. But t h i s was what was--these s i x documents were 

23 what was provided t o you i n response t o the A p r i l 2nd 

24 request? 

25 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 



1 Q. For annual pressure survey records? 

2 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Okay. And was t h a t Section 65.5? 

4 A. 65.6. 

5 Q. 65.6? 

6 A . D . 

7 Q. And could you read s e c t i o n 65.6 D? Do you have 

8 t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

9 A. D? 

10 Q. Yes. 

11 A. D, pressure surveys. At r e g u l a r i n t e r v a l s but 

12 not less than once each year, each u t i l i t y s h a l l make a 

13 survey of pressures i n i t s d i s t r i b u t i o n system of 

14 s u f f i c i e n t magnitude t o i n d i c a t e the pressures maintained 

15 at r e p r e s e n t a t i v e p o i n t s on i t s system. The survey s h a l l 

16 be made at or near periods of maximum and minimum usage. 

17 Records of these surveys s h a l l show the date, the time of 

18 the beginning and the end of the t e s t , and the l o c a t i o n at 

19 which the t e s t was made. Records of these pressure surveys 

2 0 s h a l l be maintained by the u t i l i t y f o r a pe r i o d of at l e a s t 

21 three years and s h a l l be made a v a i l a b l e t o repre s e n t a t i v e s , 

22 agents, or employees of the Commission upon request. 

23 Q. Okay. And may I see, again, t h a t l e t t e r t o 

24 which you r e f e r r e d e a r l i e r ? 

25 (Document handed t o counsel.) 
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1 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

2 Q. And do you f e e l t h a t the r e s u l t s furnished t o 

3 you on A p r i l 21st comply w i t h requirements of Section 65.6 

4 D? 

5 A. I am not i n compliance. 

6 Q . I ' m sorry? 

7 A. I'm not i n compliance. There was another 

8 gentleman at th a t time who was head of compliance. 

9 Q. You mean you are not responsible f o r monitoring 

10 compliance w i t h t h i s section? 

11 A. Right. 

12 Q. Thank you. But you were p i c k i n g up the 

13 documents t h a t were provided by the company i n response t o 

14 t h i s A p r i l 2nd, 1999 l e t t e r ? 

15 A. I wasn't p i c k i n g them up. They were going t o 

16 submit them. 

17 Q. So, you d i d n ' t take them w i t h you? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. And while you were at the company o f f i c e , d i d 

20 you ask t o see any maps of the d i s t r i b u t i o n system? 

21 A. Yes, I d i d . 

22 Q. And I guess I should ask, t o whom d i d you make 

23 t h i s request? 

24 A. To Mrs. S t i s h . A c t u a l l y , I be l i e v e 

2 5 Mr. Yablonski. Greg and Paul were there, also. 
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1 Q. And d i d they provide you w i t h maps of the 

2 system? 

3 A. No. I wasn't there--wait a minute. I got my 

4 v i s i t s confused. I'm sor r y . I t was my f i r s t v i s i t t h a t I 

5 saw the maps. 

6 Q. Your v i s i t i n 1997? 

7 A. Right. 

8 Q. But on A p r i l 21st, 1999, d i d you request to see 

9 any maps of the system? 

10 A. No. Because I knew they were there because I 

11 could see them. 

12 Q. You could see the maps? 

13 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

14 Q. Where? 

15 A. I t w a s i n t h e copy room. I t was up i n the 

16 rig h t - h a n d corner. They were a l l up there i n boxes. 

17 Q. There were maps i n boxes i n the copy room, i s 

18 t h a t correct? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. But you d i d n ' t look at any maps of the 

21 d i s t r i b u t i o n system on A p r i l 21st, 1999? 

2 2 A. No. 

23 Q. And, Mr. Shrader, your E x h i b i t No. 2 i n d i c a t e s 

24 t h a t you contacted four Redstone customers p r i o r t o 

2 5 v i s i t i n g the service t e r r i t o r y , i s t h a t c o r r e c t , by 
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1 telephone? I believe t h i s i s r e f l e c t e d on your 

2 Attachment B. 

3 A. Yes. A c t u a l l y , I contacted f i v e . For some 

4 reason, I don 11 have E l l i s down. I t might have been on 

5 another piece of scrap paper. I w i l l look f o r i t . 

6 Q. Mr. Shrader, you believe t h a t you contacted f i v e 

7 customers? 

8 A. Yes. Yes. 

9 Q. Mr. Shrader, i f you can't l o c a t e t h a t document 

10 now, I could make an on the record data request t o have 

11 t h a t provided and you can submit i t t o the p a r t i e s at a 

12 l a t e r time. 

13 A. I know what I need. I made a mark on t h i s 

14 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . So, I need t o f i n d my o r i g i n a l . 

15 Q. By t h a t , you mean you made the mark on--

16 A. Here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . I have i t marked. I t j u s t 

17 d i d n ' t come out. I t says c a l l e d . So, t h a t ' s how I got a 

18 hold of C o l l i n s . 

19 Q. Saying t h a t you c a l l e d Mr. C o l l i n s ? 

2 0 A. Right. 

21 Q. And Mr. C o l l i n s i s on your notes here on 

22 Attachment B? 

23 A. I know I t a l k e d t o Mr. E l l i s . That's how--I 

24 went t o t h a t house. 

25 Q. I'm sorry. Mr. E l l i s ? 
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A. Yes. I must not have marked i t . 

Q. So, you spoke t o Mr. E l l i s on the telephone as 

well? 

A. Right. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

Q. But you don't have t h a t note attached? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. So, you spoke t o f i v e customers p r i o r t o 

v i s i t i n g Redstone? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So, there may be other customers l i s t e d t h a t are 

not r e f l e c t e d i n your notes? 

A. No. There was l i k e 11 numbers t h a t d i d n ' t have 

telephone numbers. There are two people t h a t have formal 

complaints. There i s s i x t h a t t e s t i f i e d at p u b l i c i n p u t . 

And there are also four i n f o r m a l complaints. 

Q. My question i s , how many people d i d you t a l k t o 

on the telephone about t h e i r service? 

A. Five. 

Q. You spoke t o f i v e people. Okay. Mr. Shrader, 

would you agree t h a t the lowest water pressures on a 

d i s t r i b u t i o n system are l i k e l y t o be found at the highest 

p o i n t s on the system? Would t h a t be an accurate statement? 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about a pressurized system or a 

g r a v i t y system? 

Q. I be l i e v e you said t h a t Redstone Water Company 
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1 i s a g r a v i t y system? 

2 A. Yeah. But you d i d n ' t . 

3 Q. You said t h a t p r e v i o u s l y i n testimony? 

4 A. Yes. Yes, I d i d . 

5 Q. And then w i t h the understanding t h a t Redstone 

6 Water Company i s a g r a v i t y d i s t r i b u t i o n system, would you 

7 agree t h a t the lowest water pressures are l i k e l y t o be 

8 found at the highest p o i n t s of d i s t r i b u t i o n ? 

9 A. Unless there are pressure reducing valves. 

10 Q. On the system? 

11 A. Or even on the mains. 

12 Q. Are you aware of any pressure reducing valves on 

13 the mains? 

14 A. That, I'm not aware o f . 

15 Q. And, Mr. Shrader, am I c o r r e c t t h a t you l e f t the 

16 company's o f f i c e at 9:20 A.M. to v i s i t — t o begin your v i s i t 

17 of the customers 1 homes? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And during your d i r e c t , you r e f e r r e d t o V. Can 

2 0 you e x p l a i n who V was? 

21 A. That would be, again, i n my i n t e r n a l memo, 

22 Mr. Yablonski, Greg Yablonski, and Paul Long accompanied 

23 me, because I d i d n 1 t know where these people l i v e d , these 

24 house numbers, t h i s s o r t of t h i n g . They d i d , so they 

25 accompanied me t o each one of these f i v e places. 
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1 Q. And Mr. Yablonski and I bel i e v e you said i t was 

2 Greg Yablonski and--

3 A. Mr. Paul Long. 

4 Q. Are they employees of the water company? 

5 A . I believe so. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Your Honor, the record should 

7 r e f l e c t t h a t Paul Long's name i s Paul Lancaster. 

8 THE WITNESS: Sorry about t h a t . 

9 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

10 Q. And you mentioned t h a t you d i d not know the 

11 addresses or the l o c a t i o n s of c e r t a i n people 1s homes th a t 

12 you were going t o v i s i t t h a t day? 

13 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q. And i s t h a t because you had already determined 

15 which homes you wanted t o v i s i t t h a t day? 

16 A. I was going t o v i s i t at l e a s t the ones t h a t were 

17 on t h a t handwritten l i s t , and then I was going t o attempt 

18 t o v i s i t some random houses, provided they weren't on any 

19 of the no contact l i s t . 

20 Q. And you f i r s t v i s i t e d Mr. C o l l i n s ' home, I 

21 b e l i e v e you st a t e d t h a t e a r l i e r , i s t h a t correct? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. And what i s Mr. C o l l i n s ' address? 

24 A. 34 C i r c l e Road, Daisytown, but i t i s up i n the 

25 Crescent Heights s e c t i o n . 
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1 Q. Mr. Shrader, are you aware t h a t there are at 

2 l e a s t f i v e homes at a higher e l e v a t i o n than Mr. C o l l i n s 1 

3 house on C i r c l e Road? 

4 A. Quite p o s s i b l y . 

5 Q. And d i d you attempt t o v i s i t any of those homes? 

6 A. I went across the s t r e e t t o one and nobody was 

7 home. 

8 Q. You went across the s t r e e t and no one was there? 

9 A. So, i t was up on the h i l l higher y e t . 

10 Q. Did you v i s i t any of the homes higher than the 

11 house across the s t r e e t ? 

12 A. I don't b e l i e v e so. 

13 Q. And again, Mr. C o l l i n s was one of the customers 

14 you had p r e v i o u s l y spoken t o on the phone, i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And can you t e l l me the e l e v a t i o n of 

17 Mr. C o l l i n s 1 house? 

18 A. Not without c o n s u l t i n g a map. 

19 Q. Did you know the e l e v a t i o n of Mr. C o l l i n s ' house 

2 0 t h a t day? 

21 A. No, I d i d not. 

22 Q. And your notes i n d i c a t e t h a t Mr. C o l l i n s was at 

23 work the day you v i s i t e d h i s home, i s t h a t correct? 

24 A. No. My notes i s , he sai d he had d i r t y water, he 

25 had t o l e t i t run, he had low pressure at any time, he was 
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1 i n Crescent Heights, and he has never seen hydrant 

2 f l u s h i n g , and he has had several outages since September. 

3 Q. On the day t h a t you v i s i t e d , you made notes, and 

4 these notes are included i n your memorandum i n Attachment 

5 E, Page 2 of your memorandum? 

6 A. Okay. I f t h a t ' s what you are r e f e r r i n g . 

7 Whenever you said notes, I was going t o these ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

8 Q. Understandable. But I am r e f e r r i n g t o your 

9 memorandum. There i t says t h a t Mrs. C o l l i n s greeted you 

10 and sa i d t h a t her husband was at work, i s t h a t correct? 

11 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. And, Mr. Shrader, are you aware t h a t Mr. C o l l i n s 

13 i s on d i a l y s i s and has not been employed f o r 13 years? 

14 A. That i s what she said t o me. I j u s t wrote i t 

15 down. I j u s t made a note. 

16 Q. And a f t e r l e a v i n g 34 C i r c l e Drive, you v i s i t e d 

17 36 Main St r e e t , i s th a t correct? 

18 A. Yeah. That would be the E l l i s house. 

19 Q. Thank you. And can you t e l l me the e l e v a t i o n of 

20 36 Main Street approximately? 

21 A. No, I cannot. 

22 Q. Are you aware t h a t there are roughly 3 5 or more 

23 homes served by Redstone at a higher e l e v a t i o n on Main 

24 Street then the E l l i s home? 

25 A. That, I'm not aware of. 
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1 Q. Were you aware th a t day? 

2 A. Did I go to another house random? Yes, I d i d . 

3 No one was home. 

4 Q. And you went t o one other house randomly, and no 

5 one was there? 

6 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Thank you. And next, you inspected a f i r e 

8 hydrant near the home of Mr. W i l l i a m Ridge at 429 Pike Run 

9 Drive, i s t h a t correct? 

10 A. I'm assuming th a t you have the proper address. 

11 I don't have t o look there up, do I? 

12 Q. Just t o double-check myself, I b e l i e v e t h a t most 

13 of these addresses are included a f t e r - -

14 A. 429 Pike Run Drive. 

15 Q. Okay. Thank you. You had asked a company 

16 employee t o open the f i r e hydrants, i s t h a t correct? 

17 A. F i r s t , I stopped at the house t o see i f 

18 Mr. Ridge was home because I wanted t o do a survey there, 

19 also, because he was saying he had no pressure, he had no 

20 or low pressure. Unfortunately, he was not there 

21 apparently. So, we went around back t o t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

22 hydrant, and I had a company employee open t h a t hydrant. 

23 Q. Did you put a gauge on the hydrant when the 

24 water was, as you said, flowing? 

25 A. I do not have--the Commission does not have a 
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1 hydrant gauge. 

2 Q. And--

3 A. Not th a t I'm aware of, anyway. 

4 Q. Your notes i n d i c a t e t h a t you l a t e r r e f l e c t e d 

5 t h a t the company employee d i d not f u l l y open the valve? 

6 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. At the time, d i d you ask the company employee t o 

8 f u l l y open the valve? 

9 A. No, I d i d not. We were j u s t l o o k i n g a t - - w e l l , 

10 Mr. Ridge said he has opened th a t hydrant and there i s no 

11 water. Well, water came out of i t . So, I'm j u s t 

12 answering, w e l l , there i s water i n i t . So, then we s t a r t e d 

13 saying, okay, i f we s t a r t a f l u s h i n g a c t i o n , we could be 

14 r e a l l y s t i r r i n g up a l o t of sediment. So, we shut i t back 

15 down r e a l quick. 

16 Q. And then l a t e r , you r e f l e c t e d t h a t you--

17 A. That was j u s t - -

18 Q. --may not have f u l l y opened the valve? 

19 A. Right. 

20 Q. Thanks. And, Mr. Shrader, i s i t c o r r e c t t h a t 

21 you attempted t o go to the home of L o r i Ventura? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. She was not home and you, instead, spoke w i t h 

24 her mother-in-law? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And I believe you sa i d t h a t her mother-in-law 

2 l i v e d a few houses away on Daisytown Road? 

3 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. Do you know the address of her mother-in-law? 

5 A. No. She has a post o f f i c e box. 

6 Q. And can you t e l l me or d i d you know on the date 

7 on A p r i l 21st the e l e v a t i o n of e i t h e r L o r i or Susan 

8 Ventura's homes? 

9 A. No, I do not. 

10 Q. You then v i s i t e d Mr. and Mrs. Bruno Shemansky's 

11 home at 101 Daisytown Road, i s t h a t also c o r r e c t . 

12 A. Who? 

13 Q. I believe i t ' s Mr. and Mrs. Bruno Shemansky. 

14 A. I thought t h a t was Maiden Road. They have i t 

15 l i s t e d as Daisytown Road. 

16 Q. And again, d i d you know the e l e v a t i o n at the 

17 Shemansky home? 

18 A. No, I do not. 

19 Q. And you had also spoken to Mr. and 

20 Mrs. Shemansky before the A p r i l 21st i n s p e c t i o n , i s th a t 

21 correct? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Can you t e l l me approximately what time you l e f t 

24 the Shemanskys f o r Maiden Road? 

25 A. At the time I would say around 11:00 or 11:30. 
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1 I don't wear a watch. 

2 Q. Mr. Shrader, were you able t o review O.C.A. 

3 E x h i b i t 2 t h a t was r e f e r r e d t o e a r l i e r today? 

4 A. That's the f i r s t time I've seen t h a t document. 

5 Q. Does lo o k i n g - -

6 ATTORNEY HORTING: I f I may hand the witness t h i s 

7 e x h i b i t , No. 2. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

9 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 

10 Q. Looking at t h i s map now, do you bel i e v e t h a t 

11 t h i s i s or does t h i s map resemble the topographical map 

12 t h a t you brought w i t h you t o the Redstone service t e r r i t o r y 

13 on A p r i l 21st? 

14 A. The markings are i n d i c a t i v e of the U.S.G.S. 

15 topographical map, but I see t h a t i t ' s a DeLorme. 

16 Q. And based on t h a t map, are you able t o po i n t out 

17 t o me the l o c a t i o n s at which you took a pressure t e s t on 

18 A p r i l 21st, 1999? 

19 A. I would say t h a t t h i s map was probably--has not 

20 been updated i n 20 or 30 years. Many of these s t r u c t u r e s 

21 may or may not be there. 

22 Q. Mr. Shrader--

23 ATTORNEY HORTING: One moment. 

24 ( B r i e f pause.) 

2 5 BY ATTORNEY HORTING: 
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1 Q. Mr. Shrader, do you know the year of the 

2 topographical map t h a t you took w i t h you to the Redstone 

3 service t e r r i t o r y ? 

4 A. I f I r e c a l l , e a r l y VO's. 

5 Q. And d i d you mark i n any way the l o c a t i o n s of the 

6 homes at which you took--

7 A. No. 

8 Q. --the pressure t e s t s on t h a t map? 

9 A. No. 

10 Q. Mr. Shrader, would you agree or are you aware 

11 t h a t the s i z e of a main may a f f e c t water pressure? 

12 A. Flow. Not so much pressure. 

13 Q. Are you aware t h a t the Commission has 

14 r e g u l a t i o n s on the sizes of mains? 

15 A. Yes, I do. 

16 Q. Are you also aware t h a t the company's 

17 d i s t r i b u t i o n system consists of 3,325 f e e t of s i x - i n c h 

18 main, 8,875 f e e t of f o u r - i n c h main, 1,100 f e e t of 

19 t h r e e - i n c h main, and 3,150 f e e t of two-inch main, and 600 

20 f e e t of one-inch main? 

21 A. And you are asking me i f I'm aware of that? 

22 Q. Yes. 

23 A. Of those numbers? 

24 Q. Yes. 

25 A. I heard those e a r l i e r i n testimony, and I 
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1 assumed somebody looked them up and there i s a record 

2 somewhere. 

3 Q. You heard t h a t f o r the f i r s t time e a r l i e r today 

4 durin g the course of the hearing? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Mr. Shrader, i s i t your o p i n i o n t h a t a l l of 

7 Redstone's customers, i n c l u d i n g those served by smaller 

8 mains, have adequate pressure during the peak seasonal 

9 demand per i o d of the summer? 

10 A. I have never been there i n the summer. 

11 Q. Mr. Shrader, during your i n v e s t i g a t i o n of 

12 Redstone, d i d you ask the Pennsylvania D.E.P. i f the water 

13 complied w i t h primary and secondary MCLs? 

14 A. I spoke w i t h Clark H a r r i s of D.E.P. p r i o r t o my 

15 v i s i t , and I asked him i f they were i n compliance w i t h 

16 t h e i r r e g u l a t i o n s , and he r e p l i e d they were. 

17 Q. And was the question you asked as you said, were 

18 they i n compliance w i t h regulations? 

19 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

2 0 Q. Mr. Shrader, you said you saw company maps on 

21 your e a r l i e r v i s i t i n 1997 at the company's o f f i c e , i s t h a t 

22 correct? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And do you r e c a l l what those maps look l i k e ? 

25 And by t h a t , I mean, do you r e c a l l , were they older maps, 
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1 l i k e the maps t h a t we have been loo k i n g at today, or were 

2 they new maps? 

3 A. They were older maps. 

4 Q. Mr. Shrader, you i n d i c a t e d you thought you l e f t 

5 the Shemansky's home at about 11:30 and t h a t you l e f t t o 

6 t o u r the Maiden Road area? 

7 A. Right. 

8 Q. Do you r e c a l l what time you l e f t Redstone 

9 service t e r r i t o r y altogether? 

10 A. Sometime a f t e r noon. 

11 Q. Sometime a f t e r noon? 

12 A. 12:30 maybe, maybe a l i t t l e b i t a f t e r . Between 

13 12:00 and 12:30, I t h i n k . I don't r e a l l y r e c a l l . 

14 Q. Mr. Shrader, can you t e l l me, of the homes where 

15 you t o o k — w e l l , the homes t h a t you v i s i t e d on A p r i l 21st, 

16 those f o u r homes t h a t you v i s i t e d , do you know i f a l l of 

17 those people or can you t e l l me, d i d any of those people 

18 have water f i l t e r s on t h e i r l i n e s ? 

19 A. I d i d note one. 

20 Q. Which customer? 

21 A. That was L o r i Ventura. But I d i d n ' t — 

22 Q. The homes you v i s i t e d ? 

23 A. No. No. 

24 Q. And d i d you check? Did you ask them when you 

25 were there? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. And when you s t a t e i n your memo t h a t - - I should 

3 say a c t u a l l y t h i s i s Attachment F. This l e t t e r says t h a t 

4 you i n d i c a t e d t h a t the company appears t o be i n compliance 

5 w i t h Pennsylvania D.E.P. r e g u l a t i o n s , i s t h a t correct? 

6 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. And by compliance w i t h D.E.P. r e g u l a t i o n s , d i d 

8 you base t h a t statement on your conversation w i t h Clark 

9 Harris? 

10 A. The s a n i t a r i a n , yes. 

11 Q. Did you a c t u a l l y view any D.E.P. t e s t s or look 

12 i n t o any D.E.P. r e g u l a t i o n s when you made t h a t statement? 

13 A. I'm aware of the 109, but no. 

14 Q. Do you know, Mr. Shrader, whether or not the 

15 Shemanskys receive any Tri-County water? 

16 A. I know they are hooked up t o t h a t l i n e . I t ' s 

17 r i g h t above t h e i r home. 

18 Q. So, can you say f o r c e r t a i n whether or not they 

19 were r e c e i v i n g any Tri-County water? 

20 A. I would not be able t o t e l l t h a t without going 

21 t o the meter p i t . 

22 Q. Thank you. And you were here f o r the testimony 

23 from several of the formal Complainants and other customers 

24 yesterday, i s t h a t correct? 

25 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. And d i d anything t h a t you heard yesterday or 

2 today change the opinions t h a t are contained i n your memo? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. Or i n your memo or i n the conclusions t h a t were 

5 included i n the May 4th, 1999 l e t t e r ? 

6 A. Everything t h a t i s i n my memo i s a r e s u l t of a 

7 l e t t e r sent t o the Chairman of the Commission. I d i d not 

8 review any complaints, formal or i n f o r m a l , I d i d not review 

9 any input testimony, and I d i d not review any of the 

10 complaints t o the r a t e case. 

11 Q. So, your i n s p e c t i o n was l i m i t e d t o the one 

12 l e t t e r from Stephanie Kotula t h a t your o f f i c e received? 

13 A. That was my assignment under the d i r e c t i o n of 

14 Mr. Polk. 

15 Q. Okay. 

16 ATTORNEY HORTING: That's a l l . 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: Redirect? 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I have no questions, Your Honor. 

19 We would move i n t o the record Shrader E x h i b i t s 1, 2, 3, 4, 

20 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11--

21 JUDGE NEMEC: That would be 1 through 14. Okay. 

22 You haven 11 given the court r e p o r t e r E x h i b i t 1. 

23 ATTORNEY NIESEN: 1 i s the Shrader--

24 JUDGE NEMEC: His Curriculum V i t a e . We w i l l need 

25 two more. Okay. With regard t o 3 through 14, you need t o 
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1 provide the r e p o r t e r and myself w i t h copies. 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Yes. 

3 JUDGE NEMEC: Objections? 

4 ATTORNEY HORTING: No, Your Honor. 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: Shrader E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 are 

6 admitted. 3 through 14 are admitted subject t o p r o v i s i o n 

7 of s u f f i c i e n t copies t o the r e p o r t e r and myself. 

8 (Whereupon, the documents marked as 

9 Shrader E x h i b i t Nos. 1 through 14 were 

10 admitted i n t o evidence.) 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: Let's take another five-minute break. 

12 Mr. Shrader, you are excused. Sorry. 

13 (Witness excused.) 

14 (Whereupon, a recess was taken from 

15 4:01 P.M. t o 4:12 P.M.) 

16 ATTORNEY NIESEN: We c a l l Mr. Terry Yablonski t o the 

17 stand. 

18 (Witness sworn.) 

19 TERRY YABLONSKI, a witness herein, c a l l e d 

20 on behalf of the Respondent, having f i r s t been duly sworn, 

21 was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

22 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

2 3 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. Please s t a t e your name and business address f o r 

25 the record. 
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1 A. My name i s Terry Yablonski. My business address 

2 i s 3 Main Street, Daisytown, PA. 

3 Q. How are you employed? 

4 A. I'm president of Redstone Water Company. 

5 Q. Mr. Yablonski, have you prepared a statement of 

6 D i r e c t Testimony f o r use i n t h i s case? 

7 A. Yes, I have. 

8 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I f Your Honor pleases, I would 

9 l i k e t o have marked as Redstone Statement No. l a document 

10 t i t l e d Redstone Water Company, D i r e c t Testimony of J . Terry 

11 Yablonski. May t h a t be so i d e n t i f i e d ? 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may. 

13 {Whereupon, the document was marked as 

14 Redstone Statement No. 1 f o r 

15 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

16 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

17 Q. Mr. Yablonski, showing you what has marked as 

18 Redstone Statement No. 1, i s t h i s the D i r e c t Testimony 

19 which you have prepared? 

20 A. Yes, i t i s . 

21 Q. Are there any a d d i t i o n s or c o r r e c t i o n s which you 

22 would l i k e t o make t o Redstone Statement No. 1? 

23 . A. Yes. 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t . Go ahead and do t h a t , please. 

25 A. On Page 2, Line 7, the sentence which begins, at 
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1 Hoods Hollow, water flows by g r a v i t y through 1,100 fee t of 

2 e i g h t - i n c h pipe, and I bel i e v e i t ' s 4,100 fee t of f o u r - i n c h 

3 pipe. I t ' s c e r t a i n l y not 100, but i t ' s 4,100 fee t of 

4 f o u r - i n c h pipe. 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: So, the 100 should be 4,100? 

6 THE WITNESS: I'm sor r y . 2,100 f e e t of f o u r - i n c h 

7 pipe. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: So the 100 should be 2,100? 

9 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

10 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

11 Q. Do you have any other a d d i t i o n s or changes t o 

12 Redstone Statement No. 1? 

13 A. No. No, I don't. 

14 Q. I f I were t o ask you questions set f o r t h i n 

15 Redstone Statement No. 1, would you give the answers as 

16 s t a t e d t h e r e i n as corrected? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. Are those answers t r u e and c o r r e c t , t o the best 

19 of your knowledge, i n f o r m a t i o n , and b e l i e f ? 

20 A. Yes, they are. 

21 Q. Mr. Yablonski, you were present during the two 

22 days of hearing, both today and yesterday, were you not? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q . I want t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o a document 

25 t h a t ' s been i d e n t i f i e d f o r the record as Redstone E x h i b i t 
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1 No. 2, which i s headed i n the center at the top of the 

2 f r o n t page, I.S.O., Insurance Services O f f i c e , Inc. Can 

3 you i d e n t i f y t h a t document? 

4 A. Yes. This i s a copy of a l e t t e r sent t o the 

5 Township Secretary of West Pike Run Township, and i t has to 

6 do w i t h a c l a s s i f i c a t i o n of the township based on t h e i r 

7 grading system of f i r e p r o t e c t i o n . 

8 Q. Did the I.S.O. conduct a grading of the Redstone 

9 system? 

10 A. Yes, i t d i d . 

11 Q. When d i d t h a t occur? 

12 A. I t doesn't have the exact date. I t says June of 

13 1997. 

14 Q. Could you e x p l a i n how the grading was done? 

15 A. No, I can't. I wasn't present at t h i s one. I 

16 have been at other ones i n other p a r t s of our t e r r i t o r y , 

17 but I wasn't involved i n t h i s one. 

18 Q. How d i d the company come to have a copy of t h i s 

19 l e t t e r ? 

20 A. I asked one of our Township Supervisors i f he 

21 had ever heard any more from the insurance--! thought they 

22 were underwriters, but the company t h a t came i n and d i d 

23 t h i s . He said he had, and I asked him i f we could have a 

24 copy of the r e s u l t s . 

25 Q. And what i s your understanding of what i s 
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1 presented i n the l e t t e r and the attachment t o i t ? 

2 A. That based on the system of applying c r e d i t s i n 

3 a Class 6 township, which West Pike Run would be, the water 

4 supply gets a 15.78 percent c r e d i t against the maximum of 

5 40 percent. 

6 Q. Now, during yesterday's testimony, there are a 

7 couple of items t h a t I want t o ask you about concerning 

8 testimony t h a t occurred yesterday by customer 

9 Complainants. There was a discussion concerning the 

10 removal of a f i r e hydrant near Mrs. Caeti's house? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Do you r e c a l l t h a t testimony? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Could you r e l a t e the circumstances about the 

15 removal of t h a t hydrant? 

16 A. A f t e r we i n s t a l l e d a two-inch l i n e , as 

17 Mrs. Caeti said, through the f o u r - i n c h l i n e , t h i s two-inch 

18 l i n e extended approximately 20 yards past--or 20 fe e t past 

19 where t h i s f i r e hydrant was. The hydrant had been located 

20 on t h i s s e c t i o n of l i n e t h a t we had the repeated f r a c t u r e s 

21 on i n l a s t January. I d i d n ' t f e e l as though the l i n e was 

2 2 s t r u c t u r a l l y sound, and we removed t h a t hydrant. 

23 Q. I s there another hydrant located--

24 A. Yes, there i s . 

25 Q. Where would t h a t be? 
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1 A. Approximately 250 fe e t away. I t would be north 

2 of her house. 

3 Q. And what size l i n e i s th a t hydrant located on? 

4 A. The hydrant i s on a s i x - i n c h l i n e . May I look 

5 at t h i s f o r a second? 

6 Q. Sure. 

7 A. Yes, t h a t hydrant i s on a s i x - i n c h . 

8 Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you r e c a l l — t u r n i n g t o another 

9 t o p i c . 

10 A. Pardon me? 

11 Q. Turning t o a d i f f e r e n t t o p i c , yesterday, 

12 Mrs. B a l l a t a l k e d about her exploding hot water tank. Do 

13 you r e c a l l that? 

14 A. Yes, I do. 

15 Q. Were you aware of her problems w i t h her water 

16 tank? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And what were the circumstances concerning the 

19 water tank? 

2 0 A. The water tank? 

21 Q. Yes. 

22 A. One day on one of Mr. Fought's v i s i t s , I asked 

23 my employees t o go w i t h Mr. Fought, t h a t I would l i k e t o 

24 know where he went and what h i s purpose f o r v i s i t i n g was. 

25 He got very o f f e n s i v e about i t and said t h a t he d i d n ' t want 
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1 any of us around. They saw him go t o Mrs. Balla's house. 

2 He l a t e r came up to our o f f i c e and said t h a t he d i d n ' t f e e l 

3 t h a t he r e a l l y could do h i s job w i t h us there, but th a t her 

4 complaints had been about a d e f e c t i v e hot water tank. I t 

5 r e a l l y had nothing t o do w i t h our pressure or our company, 

6 t h a t she had been reimbursed f o r t h i s d e f e c t i v e tank. 

7 Q. She f e l t , as I understood her testimony, t h a t 

8 the d i f f i c u l t y w i t h her tank was somehow r e l a t e d t o the 

9 water company. I s t h a t p l a u s i b l e ? 

10 A. No, i t i s n ' t . She t e s t i f i e d t h a t men were i n 

11 her backyard--our men were i n her backyard on J u l y 3rd 

12 di g g i n g , and l a t e r t h a t n i g h t at one o'clock i n the 

13 morning, her water tank exploded. We looked at our 

14 records. J u l y 3rd was a Saturday. Our men don't work on 

15 Saturdays. The l i n e she was t a l k i n g about had been 

16 i n s t a l l e d over a p e r i o d of time. I t ' s new f o u r - i n c h l i n e 

17 t h a t goes past her house. I t was i n s t a l l e d over a period 

18 of time i n May and was hooked up to her system on 

19 June 9th. I can r e f e r t o t h a t . There would be no reason 

20 f o r any of our employees t o be i n her backyard on July the 

21 3rd. I t was a new l i n e . I t had been i n service f o r more 

22 than a month. H y p o t h e t i c a l l y , l e t ' s suppose w i t h her 

2 3 service o f f the new l i n e , she t h i n k s something t h a t we d i d 

24 t o the pressure would have blown up her water tank. 

25 Mr. Fought, Mr. Wolbert, and Mr. Shrader w i l l t e s t i f y t h a t 
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1 we have a g r a v i t y system. Our pressure i s regulated by the 

2 height of water i n our tank, and there i s n ' t anything we 

3 can do t o increase what at her house i s approximately 70 

4 pounds of pressure. 

5 Q. There was also testimony yesterday concerning 

6 your water tank and when i t was covered. When was the tank 

7 covered? 

8 A. The water tank was covered i n 1972. This was a 

9 r e s u l t of an order t h a t we got from the D.E.P. Did I say 

10 1972? 

11 Q. Yes. 

12 A. I meant 1992. I n the l a t e 1980's, I believe i t 

13 was a r e s u l t of the Safe D r i n k i n g Water Act, the storage 

14 f a c i l i t i e s were r e q u i r e d t o be covered. They gave us I 

15 b e l i e v e a f i v e - y e a r p e r i o d i n which t o set aside funds, 

16 make plans, get designs, and have the tanks covered. We 

17 were t o have our tank covered by 1993. We completed i t a 

18 year e a r l y at a cost of almost $40,000.00. 

19 Q. There was--

20 A. There was no order of any k i n d t h a t I ever heard 

21 of t h a t Mr. Rohaley said about the judge o r d e r i n g us 

22 20 years e a r l i e r t o cover the tank. The tank i s 24 f e e t 

23 t a l l . He also t e s t i f i e d about people throwing dogs i n i t 

24 and k i d s would go i n t o the tank and swim. There i s a 

25 ladder t h a t doesn't s t a r t u n t i l a f t e r the f i r s t 15 f e e t . 
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1 The only way you can get to t h a t tank would be i f you 

2 brought a f l a t bed t r u c k , put a ladder on i t t o th a t 

3 ladder, and then climbed the remaining tank. Never has any 

4 problem l i k e t h a t been brought t o my a t t e n t i o n of any kind 

5 of dead animals or c h i l d r e n or kids or anybody i n t h a t 

6 tank. 

7 Q. There was also some testimony yesterday about a 

8 coffee can t h a t ' s used or has been seen t o cover a curb 

9 box? 

10 A. I'm not aware of t h a t , but t h a t wouldn't be an 

11 uncommon occurrence. A curb box i s merely a conduit, a 

12 piece of pipe t h a t goes from the ground down t o a curb 

13 stop, which i s a valve. I f you are t u r n i n g o f f the service 

14 t o a house, you s t i c k what we r e f e r t o as a s t r e e t key down 

15 through the opening t o the valve and t u r n the service on or 

16 o f f . Occasionally, a snowplow or i f i t ' s i n someone's 

17 yard, they might h i t i t w i t h a lawn mower, kids might break 

18 i t w i t h a stone, there are many ways t h a t the very top of 

19 t h a t curb stop, which i s a piece of i r o n about a quarter of 

20 an inch t h i c k , could end up missing. They could unscrew 

21 the screw and throw i t i n . Probably, and I'm only 

22 spec u l a t i n g what happened was somebody broke o f f the l i d , 

23 and maybe a neighbor t h a t broke i t o f f or the homeowner 

24 t h a t broke i t stuck a t i n can over i t so d i r t wouldn't go 

25 down and f i l l up the hole. Again, i t ' s a common 



415 

1 occurrence. I t has nothing t o do w i t h water q u a l i t y . I f 

2 we had been c a l l e d or t o l d about i t , we would have replaced 

3 the l i d on the curb box. 

4 Q. The coffee can i s n ' t something t h a t the water 

5 company placed on the curb box? 

6 A. No. No. 

7 Q. There was also testimony yesterday about service 

8 outages i n 1999. Does the company keep a record of service 

9 i n t e r r u p t i o n s , outages? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. How many outages were there i n 1999? 

12 A. I reviewed our record there, and we can go over 

13 i t i n more d e t a i l . I believe there was one scheduled 

14 i n t e r r u p t i o n i n service--!'m sorry, '99? 

15 Q. Yes. '99. 

16 A. Well, we had a p e r i o d of q u i t e a few days i n 

17 January w i t h t h a t problem. There was a l o t of outages. 

18 But since t h a t time, since we took care of t h a t problem, 

19 the r e s t of the year, I t h i n k there was one t h a t occurred 

20 on December--I t h i n k i t was December 13th. I got a c a l l at 

21 my house from a man who was going t o work and he said he 

22 saw water i n the road. We responded and we d i d have a 

23 leak, and i t was on a s i x - i n c h main l i n e down by the post 

24 o f f i c e where Mrs. B a l l a works. And a car was parked 

25 d i r e c t l y over the leak w i t h the water shooting r i g h t up 
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1 underneath the car. The owner of the car had also gone to 

2 work w i t h someone. We had no way of g e t t i n g i n the car, 

3 tow the car or anything. I t took about an hour before we 

4 could manually move t h a t car f a r enough away t o f i x t h a t 

5 leak. And during t h a t p e r i o d of time, from sometime a f t e r 

6 s i x o 1 clock t o almost e i g h t o 1 clock, some of those f a m i l i e s 

7 i n t h a t area would have had low pressure, and a couple on 

8 the very highest e l e v a t i o n s might have been out of water, 

9 although we d i d n ' t have anybody c a l l . And i t wasn't u n t i l 

10 I t h i n k Mrs. Caeti mentioned t h a t yesterday t h a t I looked 

11 and i t was December 13th we had a problem. We had two or 

12 three other outages, but they were scheduled. They were 

13 adve r t i s e d . 

14 Q. What do you mean by scheduled? 

15 A. We went to the p o s t a l a u t h o r i t i e s , Mrs. S t i s h 

16 c a l l e d the newspaper, made many c a l l s from our o f f i c e t o 

17 people she knew at key l o c a t i o n s i n the community. This 

18 would have been done over maybe a two-day or three-day 

19 per i o d , l e t ' s say Thursday and Friday, in f o r m i n g the people 

20 t h a t on Tuesday, the water would be o f f f o r several hours. 

21 One occasion was i n June when we put the new l i n e past 

22 Mrs. Balla's and we had to t i e t h a t l i n e i n t o our o l d 

23 l i n e . We had shut water o f f and make those t i e - i n s . 

24 Another occasion was a man one n i g h t knocked out a f i r e 

25 hydrant on Main St r e e t , and we were able t o shut t h a t o f f . 
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1 But when we had t o go replace the hydrant, we couldn't 

2 replace i t under pressure. So, we had the hydrant, the new 

3 hydrant, and we had t o shut the system down i n order t o 

4 make t h a t replacement. But we had time t o n o t i f y the 

5 p u b l i c t h a t we were going t o do t h i s , and i t was scheduled 

6 and we d i d i t . That's what I meant by n o t i c e d 

7 i n t e r r u p t i o n s . 

8 Q. There was also testimony yesterday concerning 

9 customers attempting t o telephone the company. What 

10 procedure do you have i n place f o r handling customer c a l l s ? 

11 A. Our normal business hours are 9:00 t o 4:00. At 

12 f o u r o'clock, Mrs. S t i s h w i l l set a c a l l forwarding on the 

13 telephone t h a t w i l l forward a l l c a l l s from t h a t time u n t i l 

14 8:30--8:30 t o four o'clock i s our normal operating o f f i c e 

15 hours. From four o'clock u n t i l 8:30 the next morning, 

16 those c a l l s would come t o my house. On weekends, depending 

17 on which employee i s on c a l l and v i s i t s the various 

18 l o c a t i o n s on Saturdays and Sundays, making meter readings, 

19 checking water l e v e l s , depending on t h a t employee, on 

20 Friday n i g h t , the phone i s forwarded t o h i s residence. And 

21 he also has--our employees have beepers and we can get i n 

2 2 touch w i t h them t h a t way. 

23 Q. Now, the continuous recording pressure gauge 

24 t h a t was discussed e a r l i e r today, where was t h a t located on 

25 the system? 
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1 A. That was located, i n accordance w i t h the 

2 i n s t r u c t i o n s from the Consumer Advocate, at the highest 

3 hydrant i n the system. I be l i e v e these numbers have been 

4 changed because of the new 911 d i a l i n g system. I s i t 

5 95 Main Street? 

6 MRS. DENISE STISH: I believe so. 

7 A. 95 Main S t r e e t . That's the house immediately 

8 adjacent t o the highest hydrant on the system, which I 

9 t h i n k o r i g i n a l l y they wanted i t i n s t a l l e d on a hydrant. I t 

10 was w i n t e r . We got the order I t h i n k i n January. There 

11 wouldn't be any way of p r o t e c t i n g i t t here. But t h i s house 

12 was unoccupied and i t s owner was on vacation, and we were 

13 able t o put the gauge i n h i s home. 

14 Q. Where was i t l ocated i n the home? 

15 A. I n h i s basement. 

16 Q. And what was the address of the person's home? 

17 A. 95 Main Stree t . 

18 Q. And what was the d i f f e r e n c e i n the--you then 

19 took a measurement of the d i f f e r e n c e i n the e l e v a t i o n - -

2 0 A. Yes. 

21 Q. --between where the continuous recording 

22 pressure gauge was and the highest hydrant? 

23 A. That was a l i t t l e less than 10 f e e t , because our 

24 l i n e s bury 10 f e e t . 

25 Q. You took t h a t measurement y o u r s e l f ? 
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1 A. Yes, I d i d . 

2 Q. And how d i d you take t h a t measurement? 

3 A. A t r a n s i t . 

4 Q. A surveyor 1s t r a n s i t ? 

5 A. No. The i n i t i a l arrangement, I took i t w i t h a 

6 lock l e v e l , which i s a l e v e l which you can view through. 

7 The man's sidewalk i s only about 20 f e e t long. The l i n e 

8 was close t o t h a t and I thought t h a t would be s u f f i c i e n t . 

9 Their next i n q u i r y wanted i t t o be done by a surveying 

10 method. We used a t r a n s i t and took the e l e v a t i o n at the 

11 end of our main. 

12 Q. How many homes are located above the hydrant? 

13 A. I t h i n k three. 

14 Q. Three. 

15 A. I believe the home the pressure gauge was i n 

16 would be the f o u r t h home. 

17 Q. And what's the d i f f e r e n c e i n e l e v a t i o n from the 

18 hydrant t o the end of the main? 

19 A. About 13 f e e t . 

20 Q . I see you brought some water samples w i t h you. 

21 A. This was an a f t e r t h o u g h t , Your Honor. A f t e r 

22 watching the testimony and l i s t e n i n g t o i t yesterday, i t 

23 occurred t o us l a s t n i g h t t h a t everyone brought samples of 

24 water out of t h e i r hot water tank, but no one had any out 

25 of t h e i r s p i g o t . And I d i d n ' t t h i n k i t was f a i r t h a t we 
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1 should have t o r e l y on the q u a l i t y of water t h a t comes from 

2 d r a i n i n g a hot water tank. And I c a l l e d Tom and he said, 

3 w e l l , go get some samples. So, at seven o'clock l a s t 

4 n i g h t , 7:30, we went t o three homes, two of them on 

5 Crescent Heights and one at the end of the system on 

6 Walkertown H i l l . I went along w i t h another man, and we 

7 label e d and c o l l e c t e d the water. Denise provided the j a r s 

8 and I handed them t o the owner of the house, who we c a l l e d 

9 p r i o r t o coming there, and asked them i f they would go and 

10 p e r s o n a l l y take the water from t h e i r c o l d water faucet. I 

11 accompanied them and watched them do t h a t . We labeled them 

12 and I brought them i n today. We would r e a l l y appreciate i t 

13 i f Your Honor could look at t h i s water. I also brought a 

14 clean glass, and you are welcome t o smell i t the way we 

15 smelled the samples yesterday. 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: Show them t o counsel f i r s t . 

17 (Item handed t o counsel.) 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Should we mark these? I know we 

19 have taken p i c t u r e s . We do not have a camera w i t h us 

2 0 today. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: I d e n t i f y them by the l a b e l s t h a t you 

2 2 have. 

23 ATTORNEY NIESEN: A l l r i g h t . We w i l l mark as 

24 Redstone E x h i b i t 3 the j a r t h a t ' s marked Michael S t i s h , and 

25 i t ' s dated A p r i l 4, 2000. And we w i l l mark as Redstone 
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1 E x h i b i t 4 the j a r marked W i l l i a m K e l l y , 43 Main Street, 

2 Daisytown, Pennsylvania, A p r i l 4, 2000. And we w i l l mark 

3 as Redstone E x h i b i t 5 the j a r marked Frank Shemansky, 47 

4 Walkertown H i l l Road, Daisytown, Pennsylvania, A p r i l 4, 

5 2000. 

6 (Whereupon, the items were marked as 

7 Redstone E x h i b i t Nos. 3, 4, and 5 f o r 

8 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) . 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Now, who i s Michael Stish? 

10 THE WITNESS: Michael S t i s h i s Denise Stish's 

11 husband. Mr. K e l l y i s on Main S t r e e t . He i s not r e l a t e d 

12 t o anybody i n the water company, but he was someone th a t 

13 was home. And Mr. Shemansky i s a Township Supervisor who 

14 l i v e s i n the end of our system i n Walkertown. 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. The Michael S t i s h sample 

16 appears t o be c l e a r . I don't detect any odor. Of course, 

17 again, I have a l l e r g i e s , so my s n i f f e r i s h i g h l y suspect. 

18 Michael K e l l y , i s t h a t the second one? 

19 THE WITNESS: Your Honor, would you l i k e t o put any 

20 i n the glass? 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: No. This i s q u i t e c l e a r enough. 

22 Again, i t seems t o be s i m i l a r . No detectable odor t o me. 

23 And Frank Shemansky, i t seems s i m i l a r , also c l e a r and 

24 undetectable odor. 

25 THE WITNESS: Your Honor, each of those i n d i v i d u a l s 
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1 s a i d i f anybody wanted t o c a l l them t o v e r i f y t h a t I was at 

2 t h e i r home l a s t n i g h t , they would be more than happy t o 

3 accept the c a l l . 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

5 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

6 Q. Do you have anything else t h a t you want t o add 

7 before I t u r n you over f o r Cross-examination? 

8 A. Can I q u i c k l y look through here? 

9 ( B r i e f pause.) 

10 A. Yes. Mr. Rohaley yesterday t e s t i f i e d t h a t he 

11 knew f o r a f a c t t h a t before our l a s t increase, we were 

12 g e t t i n g $185.00 per hydrant from the township and tha t that 

13 p r i c e went up. The f a c t i s , we get $100.00 per year — I'm 

14 sorry, $185.00 per year, and he said t h a t p r i c e went up. 

15 We get $100.00 per year f o r 16 f i r e hydrants, and there are 

16 33 i n the system. I wanted t o c o r r e c t t h a t . 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: You get $100.00 per year per hydrant? 

18 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

19 THE COURT: For 16 hydrants? 

20 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: From? 

22 THE WITNESS: West Pike Run Township. 

23 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

24 Q. 18. 

25 A. I'm sorr y . That's 18 hydrants. 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: Your testimony i s t h a t you maintain 

2 more than 18? 

3 THE WITNESS: We maintain--

4 AUDIENCE MEMBER: Can I give him t h i s ? 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: What i s i t you are r e f e r r i n g t o , s i r ? 

6 THE WITNESS: We maintain 33. 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: But what i s t h a t was j u s t handed t o 

8 you? 

9 THE WITNESS: Our hydrant t e s t sheet. When the 

10 hydrants are worked on or painted or flushed. 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: So, you are paid $100.00 a year by 

12 West Pike Run Township f o r 18 hydrants, and you a c t u a l l y 

13 have, ser v i c e , and maintain 33? 

14 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: I vaguely r e c a l l something from the 

16 r a t e case t o the e f f e c t t h a t there was some s o r t of dispute 

17 between the company and the m u n i c i p a l i t y regarding payments 

18 of f i r e p r o t e c t i o n service fee and t h a t the--

19 ATTORNEY NIESEN: That would be i n the other 

2 0 township. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: That was not w i t h West Pike Run 

22 Township, then? 

23 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I be l i e v e so. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Anything else? 

2 5 THE WITNESS: No. 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

2 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

3 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

4 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Yablonski. 

5 A. Good afternoon. 

6 Q. As you know, I'm Dianne Dusman here f o r the 

7 O f f i c e of Consumer Advocate, an in t e r v e n e r i n support of 

8 the Complainants. On the subject of f i r e s e r v i c e , would 

9 you t u r n t o your Redstone E x h i b i t No. 2? I no t i c e t h a t the 

10 second t o l a s t sentence i n the l e t t e r says, we are 

11 a t t a c h i n g copies of our grading sheet and the r e s u l t s of 

12 the hydrant flow t e s t witnessed during our survey. Now, 

13 when you asked f o r something from I.S.O. f o r Mr. Hajdu, d i d 

14 he j u s t g ive you these two pages? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would make an on the 

17 record data request f o r the r e s u l t s of the hydrant flow 

18 t e s t t h a t are referenced i n t h i s l e t t e r . Because on our 

19 review of t h i s l e t t e r and the attachment, we cannot 

20 a s c e r t a i n t h a t any of the numbers on the attachment 

21 a c t u a l l y p e r t a i n t o the Redstone Water Company hydrants. 

22 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

23 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: My f e e l i n g i s i f we have the other 

24 attachments t h a t show the flow t e s t s - -

2 5 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 
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1 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: - - t h a t we may be able t o determine 

2 t h a t . U n t i l such time as we have t h a t t o review, I would 

3 obj e c t t o moving i n t o evidence of t h i s e x h i b i t . 

4 JUDGE NEMEC: Were there any other attachments t o 

5 t h i s ? 

6 THE WITNESS: Not t h a t I know of. Your Honor. 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Mrs. Denise S t i s h i s an employee of 

8 the company? 

9 THE WITNESS: She i s our secretary. 

10 JUDGE NEMEC: Yeah. Now, your testimony, I know, 

11 was t h a t you obtained t h i s from West Pike Run Township, but 

12 I guess my question i s , what happened t o the copy t h a t they 

13 p u r p o r t e d l y sent t o Mrs. S t i s h which i s referenced on the 

14 f r o n t page of E x h i b i t 2? 

15 THE WITNESS: I see. We may have i t , then. 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: Would you be w i l l i n g t o check your 

17 f i l e s t o see i f there might be some a d d i t i o n a l 

18 documentation t h a t goes along w i t h t h i s ? 

19 THE WITNESS: Yes. I n a d d i t i o n , I w i l l check w i t h 

2 0 West Pike Run, because I probably asked--we probably 

21 couldn't f i n d the l e t t e r , and I'm sure I must have r e c a l l e d 

22 one coming t o our o f f i c e , but t h a t ' s why I went t o him and 

2 3 they had a copy. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Well, there i s a l o t of thin g s t h a t 

25 are going t o happen i n the next 30 days, so l e t ' s check f o r 
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1 t h a t and see i f there i s some a d d i t i o n a l documentation t h a t 

2 you could provide t o the O.C.A. I f there i s and you wish 

3 t o make an e x h i b i t of i t , you can do so as a l a t e f i l e d 

4 e x h i b i t . 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Thank you, Your Honor. And I 

6 would also ask t h a t Mr. Yablonski search h i s f i l e s f o r any 

7 other r e p o r t s t h a t may have come t o I.S.O., because i n past 

8 cases where f i r e service has been an issue, the companies 

9 are u s u a l l y provided d i r e c t l y w i t h I.S.O. r e p o r t s from 

10 I.S.O. 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: This i n d i c a t e s t h a t t h a t was the case 

12 here. 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Right. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: Otherwise, i t wouldn't have 

15 Mrs. Stish's name on the cover l e t t e r . I assume t h a t ' s why 

16 they d i d i t . 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Okay. I f t h i s i s dated '97, i f 

18 there i s a more recent s i m i l a r l e t t e r w i t h other pressure 

19 t e s t s , we would l i k e t o have them as w e l l . 

2 0 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

21 Q. Again, on the subj ect of f i r e s e r v i c e , I would 

22 l i k e t o present you w i t h - -

23 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I have t h i s marked 

24 as O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t No. 1? 

25 JUDGE NEMEC: I t may be so i d e n t i f i e d . 
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1 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

2 O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t No. 1 

3 f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

4 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

5 Q. Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s document, the copy of t h i s 

6 document, Mr. Yablonski? 

7 A. This would be a check from West Pike Run 

8 Township F i r e Hydrant Fund f o r $1,300.00 on June l l t h , 

9 1999. 

10 Q. And does the memo r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s payment 

11 f o r f i r e hydrants f o r the year 1999? 

12 A. 1999. 

13 Q. And I t h i n k you t e s t i f i e d p r e v i o u s l y t h a t you 

14 pay $100.00 per year f o r 18 hydrants? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Or you are paid t h a t , r a t h e r . So, can you 

17 e x p l a i n the discrepancy--

18 A. No, I can't. 

19 Q. --between those two numbers? 

2 0 A. No. 

21 Q. Now, i f you would t u r n your a t t e n t i o n f o r a 

22 moment t o t h e - - I believe you p u l l e d out a map e a r l i e r . 

23 These copies t h a t we had marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n e a r l i e r 

24 i n the case today O.C.A. E x h i b i t s 1-A, B, and C, are they 

25 photocopies of the maps t h a t you were r e f e r r i n g t o that you 
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1 took out of your f i l e s ? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. I n your testimony, you go through a l i s t of the 

4 vari o u s lengths of the various diameters of pipe t h a t e x i s t 

5 i n your system. Taking these three e x h i b i t s together, do 

6 these three maps show a l l of the l i n e s t h a t e x i s t i n your 

7 system? 

8 A. I believe they do. I'm not sure about the 

9 Walkertown map. I wouldn't--! wouldn't know t h a t . The 

10 other two should. 

11 Q. Okay. Now, d i d you have a chance t o take a look 

12 at O.C.A. E x h i b i t 2? 

13 A. No. 

14 Q. Would you take a moment t o look at i t now? Do 

15 you r e c a l l Mr. Fought's testimony t h a t he took the 

16 i n f o r m a t i o n from your maps and placed i t upon t h i s 

17 topographical map? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And do you see the l i n e s t h a t are black and 

20 r e f l e c t the boundaries of Redstone Water Company's service 

21 t e r r i t o r y ? Can you p i c k them out of the mass of color? 

22 A. I see black l i n e s . 

23 Q. Do those l i n e s , t o the best of your knowledge, 

24 a c c u r a t e l y represent the balance of Redstone Water 

25 Company's service t e r r i t o r y ? 
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1 A. I r e a l l y don't know i f i t represents the area--

2 i t represents the area we serve, i t looks l i k e , but I don't 

3 know how f a r our t e r r i t o r y - -

4 Q. Well, perhaps when you and Mr. Niesen review the 

5 map f o r accuracy f u r t h e r i n the next 3 0 days, you can po i n t 

6 t h a t out. Do you see the area t h a t ' s j u s t above the b i g 

7 word Daisytown? I s t h a t the West Maiden Drive area? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. What area i s t h a t known as? West Pike Run? Do 

10 you serve the West Pike Run area? 

11 A. I don't see West Pike Run marked on here. 

12 Q. I t ' s not marked there, but you sa i d t h a t above 

13 the word Daisytown was the West Pike Run Road area. 

14 Between the b i g word Daisytown and underneath the word 

15 Mine, i n t h a t l i t t l e s o r t of peninsula shaped area, i s th a t 

16 your service t e r r i t o r y ? 

17 A. West Maiden Drive? What about i t ? 

18 Q. I said t h a t and you sa i d I was i n c o r r e c t . I'm 

19 asking, do you serve i n t h a t area t h a t ' s shown on t h i s 

2 0 topographical map? 

21 A. I n t h i s e n t i r e area? 

22 Q. Let me p o i n t i t out. Between the word Daisytown 

23 and the word Mine, do you serve customers i n t h a t area? 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. Do you know the l o c a t i o n of l i n e s t h a t 
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1 interconnect the Crescent Heights system w i t h the Daisytown 

2 Walkertown system? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Okay. On t h i s topographical map, i f you no t i c e , 

5 Walkertown and Daisytown do not appear t o be 

6 interconnected? 

7 A. On t h i s map? 

8 Q. Yes. Do you no t i c e t h a t the red l i n e s do not 

9 j o i n between Walkertown and Daisytown? 

10 A. Okay. 

11 Q. To the best of your knowledge, how do those two 

12 areas of the system interconnect? 

13 A. New f o u r - i n c h l i n e . 

14 (Whereupon, the document was marked as 

15 O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t 2-Y f o r 

16 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I remarked t h i s 

18 e x h i b i t Cross-examination E x h i b i t 2-Y. 

19 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

20 Q. So, Mr. Yablonski, i f you would l i k e t o draw on 

21 there and make a l i t t l e i n i t i a l by where you show the 

22 i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n , you may do so. 

23 A. Providing, you know, t h a t i t ' s not going t o be 

24 measured f o r exact accuracy, I can give you a rough idea 

25 l o o k i n g at t h i s map, which I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h . 
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Q. That would be f i n e . 

A. With j u s t a blue p e n c i l or red pencil? 

Q. Blue would be f i n e . Just put your i n i t i a l s by 

where you mark i t . 

A. And you are asking how the l i n e from Daisytown 

goes t o Walkertown? 

Q. Yes. How do those two areas of your system 

interconnect? 

A. Right there w i t h a f o u r - i n c h PVC l i n e and a 

brand new f i r e hydrant ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

Q. Do you know, do any of these maps marked f o r 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as O.C.A. 1-A, B, and C, do they show the 

l o c a t i o n of valves and service l i n e s ? 

A. Yes. These two do ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . I don't know 

about the Walkertown map. 

Q. When you say these two, you are t a l k i n g about 

1-B and 1-C, 1-B being the P i t t s b u r g h Coal Company map and 

t h i s one being the Daisytown Plan of Lots map? 

A. Yes. Yes. 

Q. What i s i t on t h i s map t h a t i n d i c a t e s a valve? 

A. I w i l l look at mine since I'm more f a m i l i a r w i t h 

i t . 

Q. They are i d e n t i c a l , s i r . 

ATTORNEY NIESEN: They are not i d e n t i c a l . 

ATTORNEY DUSMAN: They should be i d e n t i c a l , except 
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1 f o r h i s has colored l i n e s . 

2 A. These have red l i n e s . And t h i s i s not the map 

3 t h a t has valves marked. 

4 Q. Do you mean there i s another map t h a t has valves 

5 marked t h a t we haven't been provided? 

6 A. No. I see there i s a f o u r - i n c h valve here. I f 

7 I could have f i v e minutes, I can s t a r t from where we go 

8 over the h i l l and j u s t look at t h i s . 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: I have a suggestion. Let's take f i v e 

10 minutes, and maybe you can i n f o r m a l l y show them. See i f 

11 you can work i t out i n f o r m a l l y . 

12 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. I don't understand, 

13 Your Honor. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: So t h a t you can get together, look at 

15 i t and see i f you can loc a t e the items t h a t you want t o 

16 l o c a t e on t h i s map. 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: We don't need t o take the time t o 

18 do t h a t , Your Honor. I'm j u s t t e s t i n g h i s l e v e l of 

19 knowledge about h i s own system and what these maps a c t u a l l y 

20 represent. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . Go ahead. 

22 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

23 Q. I s there anything on the map t h a t i n d i c a t e s 

24 where service l i n e s are? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And what i n d i c a t e s a service l i n e ? 

2 A. These would be--do you want t o come over? 

3 Q. Well, you need to describe f o r the record. I t ' s 

4 not j u s t t o show me. Describing f o r the record, what i s i t 

5 on t h i s map, what symbol represents the existence of a 

6 service l i n e ? 

7 A. A red l i n e goes going from a s i x - i n c h cast i r o n 

8 l i n e i n t o House 589, which at one time was a row house 

9 which now would be a s i n g l e house. A red l i n e going i n t o 

10 595, 638, 643, 649, 656, and on and on. 

11 Q. However, i f you don't have the l o c a t i o n s of a l l 

12 of the mains on these maps, you can't p o s s i b l y have the 

13 l o c a t i o n s of a l l the service l i n e s , e i t h e r , can you? 

14 A. Well--

15 Q. Did you not j u s t p o i n t out t o us t h a t there i s a 

16 missing main on the topographical map t h a t interconnects 

17 Daisytown and Walkertown? 

18 A. That's your map. That's not our map. 

19 Q. Okay. Can you show me on your map where there 

20 i s an i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n between Daisytown and Walkertown? 

21 A. Let's see. No. 

22 Q. So, again, i f not a l l of the mains are 

23 represented, we don't know i f a l l the service l i n e s are 

24 represented, e i t h e r , do we? 

25 A. That was a main t h a t was put i n three years ago, 
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1 and we haven't updated the map. 

2 Q. Okay. Do you know where the l o c a t i o n of the 

3 main t h a t interconnects w i t h the Tri-County Municipal 

4 A u t h o r i t y system is? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Can you p o i n t t h a t out on t h i s O.C.A. e x h i b i t ? 

7 And again, i n i t i a l where t h a t i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n e x i s t s . 

8 A. This map doesn't go up t o where the 

9 i n t e r c o n n e c t i o n i s , but i f t h i s road were t o continue--

10 Q. When you say t h i s road, which road are you 

11 r e f e r r i n g to? 

12 A. Right here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) , i f t h i s road would 

13 continue. 

14 Q. Do you know the name of the road? 

15 A. That's the one we r e f e r t o as Maiden Road, but I 

16 t h i n k i t ' s more acc u r a t e l y State Route 1066. We can f i n d 

17 i t . I n the service area, everybody j u s t c a l l s i t Maiden 

18 Road. 

19 Q. Okay. Now, I no t i c e t h a t i n your testimony, you 

20 have s t a t e d at Page 3, Lines 21 and 22, t h a t Redstone has 

21 not received any no t i c e from the Department of 

22 Environmental P r o t e c t i o n t h a t treatment i s necessary f o r 

23 e i t h e r TDS or s u l f a t e s . I s t h a t accurate? 

24 A. Where i s that? 

25 Q. Page 3, Lines 21 t o 23. Do you remember th a t 
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testimony? 

A. Yes. I don't r e c a l l r e c e i v i n g any n o t i c e from 

them t h a t we had t o do anything about t r e a t i n g t o t a l 

d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s or s u l f a t e s . 

Q. Did you review Mr. Fought's testimony and 

e x h i b i t s i n preparing f o r the hearing today? 

A. Probably. 

Q. Do you remember seeing t h i s l e t t e r , which i s the 

l a s t page of O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1, which i s a l e t t e r from the 

D.E.P., then the D.E.R., t o the Public U t i l i t y Commission? 

Have you seen t h a t document before? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And you have s t a t e d you have been employed by 

Redstone Water Company since 1957, i s t h a t c orrect? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you have been v i c e president from 1979 t o 

81? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And the president since '81? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l seeing t h a t l e t t e r - -

A. No. 

Q. --during the time p e r i o d i n which i t was 

w r i t t e n ? 

A. No. 



436 

1 Q. Do you remember ever conversing w i t h Ms. Sweda 

2 when she was s a n i t a r i a n i n charge of monitoring Redstone 

3 Water Company? 

4 A. Oh, no. You mean when she would stop by? 

5 Q. Do you remember conversing w i t h her at a l l ? 

6 A . I vaguely remember her. 

7 Q. You don't r e c a l l conversing w i t h her about the 

8 recommendation t h a t she made concerning the f e a s i b i l i t y 

9 study? 

10 A. No. Absolutely not. May I comment? This 

11 l e t t e r i s not t o Redstone Water Company. This l e t t e r i s to 

12 the Public U t i l i t y , the person on the Public U t i l i t y 

13 Commission, and I don't believe we ever received the 

14 l e t t e r . I t h i n k i f she had w r i t t e n us a l e t t e r , you would 

15 probably have a copy out of her f i l e s . I c e r t a i n l y don't 

16 r e c a l l ever seeing a l e t t e r , and a l l I can say i s maybe she 

17 d i d n ' t w r i t e i t or f o r g o t t o w r i t e i t . But t h i s l e t t e r 

18 i s n ' t t o me and I shouldn't have any knowledge of t h i s 

19 l e t t e r . 

2 0 Q. Okay. Did anyone from the Public U t i l i t y 

21 Commission ever c a l l you about the f e a s i b i l i t y study 

22 recommendation? 

23 A. Not t h a t I can r e c a l l . 

24 Q. Okay. Now, on Page 7 of your testimony, you 

25 have a statement concerning pressure at the pumping 
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1 s t a t i o n , and what I would l i k e t o know, s i r , i s what the 

2 s i g n i f i c a n c e i s of the pressure at the pumping s t a t i o n i n 

3 your system. 

4 A. I don't f o l l o w . What's the s i g n i f i c a n c e of 

5 t a k i n g pressure--

6 Q. I s there some p a r t i c u l a r s i g n i f i c a n c e t o 

7 pressure at the pumping s t a t i o n ? 

8 A. Well, f o r us, on a day-to-day basis, every day 

9 we take pressures at places t h a t we know what those d a i l y 

10 pressures should be w i t h i n a c e r t a i n p s i . And they are 

11 taken d a i l y at the pump house. I t ' s j u s t another way of 

12 checking our system. You look at the tank, and l e t ' s 

13 suppose instead of having 18 fe e t i n the tank t h a t morning, 

14 you have 16. Where d i d t h a t water go? A l l of a sudden, 

15 you say, oh, w e l l , my pressure down at the pump house i s 

16 only 120 pounds and i t should be 130 or 135. 

17 Q. So, there i s no p a r t i c u l a r s i g n i f i c a n c e t o th a t 

18 placement? I t ' s simply something you use as a check? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 JUDGE NEMEC: I want t o ask a c l a r i f y i n g question. 

21 The pressure t h a t you are recording here, i s t h i s - - I assume 

22 at the pumping s t a t i o n , t h a t ' s where the water i s pumped up 

23 the h i l l t o the--

24 THE WITNESS: Tank. 

25 JUDGE NEMEC: --tank? 
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

2 JUDGE NEMEC: And the pressure i s taken p r i o r t o the 

3 water going i n t o the pump? 

4 THE WITNESS: No. Generally, when they get there at 

5 8:30 i n the morning, the pump hasn't been running f o r 

6 several hours. We pump through the evening hours. So, i t 

7 would j u s t be a s t a t i c pressure i n the l i n e from the 

8 pumping s t a t i o n t o the tank. Now, there i s a T p r i o r t o 

9 the tank t h a t i t could go up. Am I answering your 

10 question, Your Honor? 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: No. 

12 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 

13 JUDGE NEMEC: I t sounds l i k e the gauge i s between 

14 the pump and the tank, though? 

15 THE WITNESS: That's r i g h t . 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . Thank you. That was my 

17 question. 

18 THE WITNESS: I t ' s at the pump house. 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: But i t ' s between the pump— 

20 THE WITNESS: Right a f t e r the pump. 

21 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . 

22 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

23 Q. Are there any customers t h a t are served w i t h 

24 water t h a t doesn't f i r s t go to the tank? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And where do they reside? 

2 A. There i s a T on the way t o the tank i n 

3 Daisytown. 

4 Q. Do you have a s t r e e t name? 

5 A. Pardon? 

6 Q. Do you know the s t r e e t name? 

7 A. C i r c l e Drive, I be l i e v e . 

8 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would j u s t l i k e t o 

9 p o i n t out t h a t the witness i s look i n g at a map t h a t r e a l l y 

10 hasn't been provided t o us i n discovery. 

11 THE WITNESS: May I use yours? 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I would l i k e t o ask t h a t we be 

13 provided a copy of tha t map, because i t was our 

14 understanding t h a t we had a l l of the maps t h a t e x i s t e d . 

15 A. I don't t h i n k t h a t was any understanding. I 

16 t h i n k you asked us f o r maps of the system and we gave you 

17 the best maps we had. But we di d n ' t give you a l l - -1 mean, 

18 as the one man said, there i s a box of maps. I don't know 

19 what you mean of a l l the maps. You mean maps t h a t show 

2 0 coal and show everything from the coal company? 

21 Q. Well, what par t of the system i s represented by 

22 the map t h a t you were j u s t l o o k i n g at? 

2 3 A. Let me look. This would be Crescent Heights, 

24 and t h i s would be Crescent Heights. And I bel i e v e i f you 

25 set t h i s r i g h t l i k e t h a t , i t would be i d e n t i c a l 
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1 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

2 Q. Okay. I understand. You thought i t would have 

3 been d u p l i c a t i v e t o provide t h a t one i n addi t i o n ? 

4 A. Pardon me? 

5 Q. You f e l t i t would have been d u p l i c a t i v e t o 

6 provide t h a t i n a d d i t i o n t o the other? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o understand. 

9 A. I t ' s e x a c t l y what t h i s i s ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

10 Everything i s exact. 

11 Q. Have you located the area where there are 

12 customers t h a t are served w i t h water t h a t doesn't come from 

13 the tank? 

14 A. Yes. That would be these customers i n t h i s area 

15 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

16 Q. When you say t h i s area, can you give i t a name 

17 or name a s t r e e t t h a t i s associated w i t h what you are 

18 p o i n t i n g to? 

19 A. No. 

20 Q. You don't know what the name of the s t r e e t is? 

21 A. No. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h the name of the 

22 s t r e e t . I be l i e v e i t ' s C i r c l e Drive, and i t comes down 

2 3 past our o f f i c e and then e v e n t u a l l y i n t o Daisytown. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Let me i n t e r r u p t again. I f I 

25 understand your testimony, t h a t p o r t i o n , then, of the 
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1 service t e r r i t o r y would be pressure fed? 

2 THE WITNESS: Pardon me? 

3 JUDGE NEMEC: That would be pressure fed from the 

4 pump? 

5 THE WITNESS: No. I t ' s s t i l l from the tank, because 

6 i t e v e n t u a l l y goes t o the tank. I t ' s not an uncommon 

7 p r a c t i c e , at l e a s t I don't t h i n k so. We had i t at 

8 Redstone, t h a t o l d system. You have a tank here and you 

9 have a pumping s t a t i o n here, and you are pumping i n t o the 

10 tank ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . I t would be nice t o i d e a l l y put 

11 everything i n t h a t tank and have your r e s i d u a l held there 

12 f o r a wh i l e , but i f there are homes on the way, so tha t you 

13 don't have d u p l i c a t e p i p i n g and two main l i n e s where the 

14 run i s long, homes on the way t o t h a t may be fed. 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: A l l r i g h t . 

16 THE WITNESS: But the pressure of the pump would be 

17 released at the e l e v a t i o n of the tank. I t ' s not a pressure 

18 system. 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: So, the water can--when the pump i s 

20 turned o f f , i t feeds back down. 

21 THE WITNESS: When the water i s turned o f f , i t feeds 

22 through the tank and goes through the system. 

23 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

24 Q. Do you know what the normal f l u c t u a t i o n of the 

25 water l e v e l i n your tank i s d a i l y ? 
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1 A. Normally? 

2 Q. Yes. 

3 A. I mean, l i k e r i g h t now? Toward the end of the 

4 day, i t may be down around 18 f e e t . At f i v e o'clock i n the 

5 morning, i t would be 24 f e e t . Recently, i t ' s been 22 i n 

6 the day, 20 i n the day t o 24. Somewhere between 18 and 

7 24. 

8 Q. How about eleven o'clock at night? 

9 A. What night? I mean--

10 Q. Just g e n e r a l l y . 

11 A. The pump would k i c k on at 4:00 i n the 

12 afternoon. At 11:00, i f there had been 18 fe e t i n the tank 

13 when the pump kicked i n , maybe 21 f e e t . I don't know how 

14 you can say t h a t every n i g h t . During our outage i n 

15 January, we were t r y i n g t o hold our own f o r those few days 

16 w i t h two and three f e e t i n the tank. 

17 Q. Okay. On another--!'m so r r y . 

18 A. Go ahead. 

19 Q. Was your answer fi n i s h e d ? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. On another t o p i c , i n response t o discovery, you 

22 t o l d us t h a t you have s i x customers t h a t use water only 

23 from--from Tri-County on a d a i l y basis? 

24 A. Yes. 

2 5 Q. Do you know who those s i x customers are? 
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1 A. Their names? 

2 Q. Yes. 

3 A. We can provide them t o you. 

4 Q. Okay. Can you give us a l i s t of names and 

5 addresses--

6 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: We w i l l make t h a t an on the record 

7 data request, Your Honor. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 

9 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

10 Q. Now, again, on the subject of pressure--

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would ask t h i s 

12 I n t e r r o g a t o r y Response be marked O.C.A. Cross-examination 

13 E x h i b i t No. 2. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: We have a 2-Y. 

15 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Yes. That's Cross-examination 

16 E x h i b i t 2-Y. This i s Cross-examination E x h i b i t 2. 

17 {Whereupon, the document was marked as 

18 O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t No. 2 

19 f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

2 0 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

21 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s discovery response, 

22 Mr. Yablonski? Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t response? 

23 A. I haven't read i t y e t . Yes. 

24 Q. I no t i c e i t was signed by Mr. Niesen, your 

25 counsel? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Do you agree w i t h the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s 

3 contained i n t h a t response? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. I s i t s t i l l c o r r e c t today t h a t Redstone does not 

6 have a continuous pressure recording gauge? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Are you now aware, Mr. Yablonski, t h a t P.U.C. 

9 r e g u l a t i o n s r e q u i r e pressure surveys at periods of maximum 

10 and minimum usage and at r e p r e s e n t a t i v e p o i n t s i n the 

11 system? 

12 A. I am now. 

13 Q. When d i d you f i r s t become aware of that? 

14 A. A f t e r you began asking us about how our records 

15 are as f a r as pressures. Even though we take pressures 

16 every day, our records apparently weren't i n the form t h a t 

17 was re q u i r e d . And we s t i l l don't have a continuous 

18 recording gauge. I t h i n k you are i n s i n u a t i n g t h a t we are 

19 supposed t o . Am I - - I mean, do I understand you to be 

20 saying — 

21 Q. I was j ust c l a r i f y i n g t h a t you don't have one, 

22 but t h a t you are now aware t h a t you have to do the pressure 

2 3 surveys? 

24 A. Those are two d i f f e r e n t questions. 

2 5 Q. Yeah, they are two d i f f e r e n t questions. 
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1 A. We do not have a recording pressure gauge, but I 

2 am aware t h a t we have t o keep surveys, but they don't go 

3 together. 

4 Q. I d i d n ' t mean t o i n s i n u a t e a s e c t i o n of i t 

5 sounded t h a t way. 

6 A. Okay. 

7 Q. So, consequently, you don't have pressure 

8 surveys f o r three years or any p e r i o d of time? 

9 A. No. Other than pressures t h a t we take d a i l y and 

10 record them i n a l o g book, we do not, and we w i l l from now 

11 on keep a separate f i l e according t o the r e g u l a t i o n and we 

12 w i l l f o l l o w i t . But I wasn't aware of t h a t r e g u l a t i o n . 

13 Even though we had been doing i t , I d i d n ' t know we were 

14 supposed t o . 

15 Q. Just going back t o the maps f o r a moment, I 

16 guess t h a t I j u s t want t o confirm t h a t you continue t o 

17 b e l i e v e t h a t the maps t h a t you have t h a t represent your 

18 water system, you be l i e v e these maps t o be adequate? 

19 A. I believe they could be updated and gone over 

20 w i t h a f i n e t o o t h comb. I don't b e l i e v e you would have to 

21 have a topographer- come i n and do the whole system, but I 

22 be l i e v e I should s i t down w i t h my people and update them. 

23 Q. So, at l e a s t t o t h a t extent, you agree w i t h 

24 O.C.A.'s recommendation? 

25 A. To t h a t extent, yes. 
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1 Q. Okay. What i s the highest p o i n t served by 

2 Redstone Water Company's system elevation-wise? 

3 A . I don't know. 

4 Q. I would l i k e t o ask you j u s t a couple of 

5 questions about your testimony concerning f i r e s ervice, and 

6 t h a t appears at Page 8, where you s t a t e t h a t , as you 

7 understand the matter, f i r e p r o t e c t i o n service i s the 

8 s t a t u t o r y r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the township and the borough, 

9 not Redstone. I s t h a t an accurate r e c i t a t i o n of your 

10 statement? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. What i s the basis f o r your understanding t h a t 

13 there i s a s t a t u t o r y r e s p o n s i b i l i t y on the p a r t of the 

14 township and the borough t o take care of f i r e p r o t e c t i o n ? 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I t ' s done on the advice of 

16 counsel. 

17 A. From my at t o r n e y . 

18 Q. So, there i s nothing else t h a t you base th a t 

19 understanding on other than what your counsel t o l d you? 

20 A. That's r i g h t . 

21 Q. Okay. But we have es t a b l i s h e d t h a t Redstone 

22 does get paid f o r f i r e hydrants, have we not? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. You also s t a t e a l i t t l e b i t l a t e r on i n t h a t 

2 5 answer, on Page 8, t h a t the standard f i r e f i g h t i n g procedure 
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1 which I have seen includes use of a tanker t r u c k . 

2 F i r e f i g h t e r s use the tanker's water then put up a portable 

3 swimming pool type f a c i l i t y which they f i l l from the 

4 hydrant and use as a supplement t o the tanker. I s t h a t 

5 accurate? 

6 A. No. I shouldn't--

7 Q. You are saying i t ' s not accurate? 

8 A. Well, l e t me read t h i s . What I've seen includes 

9 the use of a pumper t r u c k , the i n i t i a l use of the tanker 

10 t r u c k . F i r e f i g h t e r s use the tanker's water t o f i g h t the 

11 f i r e , t h a t ' s r i g h t , and then put up a p o r t a b l e swimming 

12 pool f a c i l i t y . They f i l l t h a t from hydrants, and then 

13 pumper tr u c k s pump out of t h a t swimming pool canvas. I t ' s 

14 l i k e a canvas p o r t a b l e swimming pool and they hook t h e i r 

15 hoses and f i g h t f i r e s from t h a t pool. 

16 Q. Okay. I f the hydrant on Main Street i s f u l l y 

17 opened, what i s the pressure i n the main at the highest 

18 p o i n t on Main Street? 

19 A. I don't know. 

2 0 Q. Do you know how many houses are between t h a t 

21 f i r e hydrant and the highest p o i n t on Main Street? 

22 A. Between the hydrant where we took the pressure 

2 3 t e s t and the end of the main? 

24 Q. Yes. 

25 A. I believe three. 
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1 Q. Okay. On Page--

2 A . I ' m sorry. Four. There would be the place 

3 where you borrowed our--you borrowed our pressure gauge t o 

4 take the t e s t , the house at the very end of Main Stree t . 

5 MR. TERRY FOUGHT: There i s the house at the very 

6 end. 

7 A. There would be four, i n c l u d i n g t h a t house. 

8 Q. Okay. Now, I t h i n k t h a t on the next page of 

9 your testimony, you t a l k about your recent system 

10 improvements? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. And I t h i n k by now, i t must be c l e a r t o you tha t 

13 a r e g u l a t i o n e x i s t s t h a t requires no less than a s i x - i n c h 

14 main where a replacement i s longer than 250 f e e t and not on 

15 a cul-de-sac? 

16 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I w i l l o b j e c t t o t h a t . Are you 

17 presenting t h a t as a requirement? 

18 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I'm asking him--

19 JUDGE NEMEC: Where does t h a t come from? I don't 

2 0 remember t h a t being--

21 ATTORNEY NIESEN: You said by now you are aware 

22 t h a t . 

23 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I bel i e v e t h a t i t was i n 

24 Mr. Fought's testimony and t h a t i t had come up i n the 

25 context of questions t o Mr. Wolbert e a r l i e r . 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: I r e c a l l some questions t o Mr. Wolbert 

2 about s i x - i n c h mains being r e q u i r e d . 

3 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I w i l l rephrase the question, 

4 Your Honor. 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: My understanding was h i s response was 

6 t h a t t h a t - - I thought I was paying a t t e n t i o n at the time. I 

7 bel i e v e h i s response was t o the e f f e c t t h a t s i x - i n c h mains 

8 are a minimum f o r new c o n s t r u c t i o n . That 1s the same as the 

9 P.U.C. requirements. But I believe he also t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

10 where there i s an e x i s t i n g l i n e being replaced, t h a t they 

11 permit the smaller diameter l i n e t o be used i f a smaller 

12 diameter l i n e was the one t h a t ' s being replaced. 

13 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Yes. I bel i e v e he s t a t e d t h a t , 

14 t h a t D.E.P. permits t h a t . However, we w i l l reserve t h a t 

15 f o r argument, Your Honor. 

16 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

17 Q. S u f f i c e i t t o say t h a t many of your replacement 

18 mains have been less than s i x - i n c h , i s n ' t t h a t correct? 

19 A. Yes. 

2 0 Q. Okay. At Page 10 i n your testimony, you st a t e 

21 t h a t , the company also plans t o loop i t s only two dead end 

22 mains at Mount Zion Church and at 393 Pike Run Drive. I s 

23 t h a t accurate? 

24 A. No. 

2 5 Q. Okay. Are you changing--
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1 A. 3 93 Pike Run Drive, we d i d loop. So, t h a t 

2 should have been up above, new improvements. We are s t i l l 

3 planning t o loop the dead end main at Mount Zion Church, 

4 which i s the church t h a t Mr. Wolbert r e f e r r e d t o at the end 

5 of a l i n e and they only use t h e i r water on Sunday 

6 mornings. They use about 30 or 40 g a l l o n s of water. But 

7 since they only use i t i s once a week, i t gets a stagnant 

8 odor, and we want to t r y t o loop t h a t . 

9 Q. Okay. Taking a look at t h i s system map, again, 

10 the one t h a t was drawn by Mr. Fought on the topographical 

11 map, can you p o i n t t o where the two dead end mains are t h a t 

12 you r e f e r t o i n your testimony? 

13 A. Yes. One would be i n t h i s area ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

14 Q. Can you say where t h a t i s on the map? I t ' s 

15 underneath the word Zion? 

16 A. Underneath the word Zion. And the other one 

17 which has since been completed would be underneath the word 

18 N on Walkertown, approximately an inch and a quarter below 

19 the l e t t e r N. 

20 Q. Okay. I s n ' t there also a dead end main at the 

21 highest p o i n t on Walkertown Road? 

22 A. At the highest p o i n t on Walkertown Road? Oh, 

23 yes. On t h a t h i l l , yes. 

24 Q. Okay. So, there i s at l e a s t one other dead end? 

25 A. Walkertown i s a unique system. I'm not sure 
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1 what we are supposed to do there. Those were l i n e s t h a t 

2 people i n Walkertown wanted t o put i n , and they bought the 

3 pipe and they put most of those i n , t o my knowledge, before 

4 I r e a l l y became the president of t h i s company. So, I'm not 

5 sure what we should do i n Walkertown. 

6 Q. I s there also a dead end main at the highest 

7 p o i n t on Main Street? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. So, you c u r r e n t l y have at l e a s t four dead end 

10 mains i n the system? 

11 A. Yes. Three. We looped t h i s system i n . Are you 

12 saying they have t o be--they are supposed t o be looped? 

13 Q. I'm j u s t asking you whether there are other dead 

14 end mains i n the system. 

15 A. Well, one at the end of Main S t r e e t . One at 

16 Mount Zion, which i s not a main. I t ' s a service l i n e . The 

17 end of Walkertown. And way down here at the end of 

18 Daisytown Road ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

19 Q. Okay. 

2 0 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: May I approach the witness, 

21 Your Honor? 

2 2 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

2 3 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

24 Q. Mr. Yablonski, t u r n i n g your a t t e n t i o n t o an area 

2 5 t h a t we t a l k e d about e a r l i e r which i s on O.C.A. Cross 
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1 E x h i b i t 2-Y, a map t h a t you have now marked, above the word 

2 Daisytown and t o the r i g h t a l i t t l e b i t , you s t a t e d e a r l i e r 

3 t h a t you serve customers i n t h i s area, d i d you not? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Okay. Now, am I also c o r r e c t t h a t the nearest 

6 main t h a t 1 s shown on t h i s map stops about maybe h a l f an 

7 inch above the I i n Daisytown? So, my question t o you i s , 

8 how do you serve people i n t h i s area, T i p p l e Mine? That's 

9 r i g h t around the word Tipple on the topographical map? 

10 A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h the exact footage involved 

11 going through Daisytown, but t h a t would be--there would be 

12 a f o u r - i n c h l i n e t h a t would go. This i s a vacant f i e l d 

13 ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . I t would go through t h i s f i e l d and down 

14 along--

15 Q. Can you r e l a t e t h a t t o - -

16 A. (The witness i n d i c a t e s . ) 

17 Q. Can you also p o i n t out on t h a t e x h i b i t where the 

18 hydrant i s on which you took the continuous pressure 

19 reading? 

20 A. (The witness i n d i c a t e s . ) 

21 Q. May I see where you have marked? 

22 A. Approximately there ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

23 Q. Okay. Did you t e s t i f y e a r l i e r t h a t you thought 

24 there were three or fo u r houses higher than t h a t f i r e 

2 5 hydrant? 
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1 A. Did you ask me? 

2 Q. I asked you how many houses you thought were 

3 higher than t h a t . 

4 A. Yeah. There would be four, and t h i s would be 

5 the hydrant here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

6 JUDGE NEMEC: How much more do you t h i n k you have? 

7 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: None. 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Let's take--you are not asking a 

9 question at t h i s point? 

10 THE WITNESS: That would be the f o u r t h house where 

11 the hydrant i s . 

12 JUDGE NEMEC: Four houses above the hydrant? 

13 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: I need t o take a five-minute break 

15 r i g h t now t o make sure we don't get locked i n . 

16 (Whereupon, a recess was taken from 

17 5:29 P.M. t o 5:31 P.M.) 

18 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

19 Q. Can you be sure how many houses are at a higher 

20 e l e v a t i o n than the main at 95 Main Street? 

21 A. Yes. Four houses. And they were saying what 

22 the confusion was, and I wasn't t h i n k i n g t h i s way, the 

23 houses on the opposite side of the s t r e e t from where th a t 

24 hydrant i s have been t o r n out. There are no houses on the 

25 opposite. Do you f o l l o w what I'm saying? 
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1 JUDGE NEMEC: Where? 

2 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

3 Q. Yes, I do f o l l o w what you are saying. 

4 A. And there would be four houses. 

5 Q. Are they s i n g l e houses or double houses? 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: The t o r n down ones? 

7 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: No. The ones t h a t e x i s t . 

8 A. I t h i n k most of them at one time were double 

9 houses and are now s i n g l e . 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, j u s t t o c l e a r i t up so 

12 there i s no confusion, I w i l l JUST make an on the record 

13 data request t h a t we be provided w i t h the names and 

14 addresses of f o l k s t h a t l i v e at a higher e l e v a t i o n than 

15 t h a t hydrant at 95 Main S t r e e t . 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: That sounds easy. 

17 ATTORNEY NIESEN: You want the names and addresses? 

18 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Names and addresses of customers 

19 t h a t c u r r e n t l y reside up the s t r e e t from t h a t main. 

2 0 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, we don't have any 

21 f u r t h e r . I would l i k e t o move i n my O.C.A. Cross e x h i b i t s . 

22 JUDGE NEMEC: 1, 2-Y, and 2? 

2 3 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Yes. 

24 ATTORNEY NIESEN: What i s 1? 

2 5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 1 i s the copy of the cancelled 
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1 checks t o Redstone Water Company f o r f i r e s e r v i c e . 

2 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I have no o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t . 2 i s 

3 t h i s one ( i n d i c a t i n g ) ? 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 2 i s the one concerning the 

5 continuous recording pressure gauge. 

6 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I have no o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t . And 

7 t h i s one t h a t he was w r i t i n g on i s 2-Y? 

8 JUDGE NEMEC: Yes. 

9 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I w i l l have the same o b j e c t i o n t o 

10 t h a t t h a t I have t o the o r i g i n a l . 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. 1 and 2 are admitted. 2-Y i s 

12 going t o be admitted, also, subject t o o p p o r t u n i t i e s t o 

13 counsel and Mr. Yablonski and s t a f f t o review the accuracy 

14 of i t and r e p l y w i t h any problems they have w i t h i t . 

15 (Whereupon, the documents marked as 

16 O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t Nos. 1, 

17 2-Y, and 2 were admitted i n t o evidence.) 

18 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

19 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

20 Q. Mr. Yablonski, there was one question about 

21 whether you knew the e l e v a t i o n of the highest p o i n t i n the 

22 system, and I t h i n k you said you d i d n ' t know what t h a t 

23 e l e v a t i o n was? 

24 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. But you know where the highest p o i n t i n the 
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1 system i s , don't you? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. And where would t h a t be on the map, j u s t 

4 generally? 

5 JUDGE NEMEC: I t b e t t e r be where the water tank i s , 

6 because t h a t ' s h i s D i r e c t Testimony. 

7 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Very good. That's a l l the 

8 questions I have. There was a request f o r i n f o r m a t i o n 

9 concerning the names of the s i x customers. Did you want 

10 addresses, too, or j u s t names? I have the names. I don't 

11 have the addresses. 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Of the Tri-County customers or the 

13 ones t h a t are served w i t h Tri-County. 

14 ATTORNEY NIESEN: These are the Tri-County. 

15 JUDGE NEMEC: You b e t t e r do names and addresses and 

16 do t h a t i n w r i t i n g . Respond i n w r i t i n g and send me a 

17 copy. 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: And the other t h i n g i s concerning 

19 your O.C.A. Cross-examination E x h i b i t No. 1, which i s the 

20 $1,300.00 check, Mrs. S t i s h has advised me, and I can put 

21 her on the stand t o ask her one question, which would be 

22 t h a t i n a d d i t i o n t o t h a t check, there i s also a check from 

23 the General Fund f o r $500.00. So, i t comes not i n one 

24 check of $1,800.00, but i t comes i n two checks, one f o r 

25 $1,300.00 and one f o r $500.00. 
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1 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: That explains i t . I'm not going 

2 t o r e q u i r e her t o take the stand f o r t h a t . 

3 JUDGE NEMEC: The p o i n t of the e x h i b i t was to show 

4 t h a t there was payment, i s t h a t correct? 

5 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Right. Asking about the 

6 discrepancy was more a matter of c u r i o s i t y . 

7 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay? 

8 ATTORNEY NIESEN: Yes. We have nothing f u r t h e r . 

9 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. Thank you, s i r . 

10 (Witness excused.) 

11 JUDGE NEMEC: Do you have another witness? 

12 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: We have a r e b u t t a l witness, 

13 Your Honor? 

14 JUDGE NEMEC: And t h i s witness is? 

15 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Mr. David Danis. 

16 ATTORNEY NIESEN: What i s he going t o say? 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Mr. Danis i s being c a l l e d t o 

18 respond t o the statements made by Mr. Yablonski concerning 

19 the water t e s t s , the r e s u l t s of which were o f f e r e d by the 

20 O.C.A. i n connection w i t h Mr. Fought 1s testimony. 

21 (Witness sworn.) 

22 JUDGE NEMEC: State your f u l l name f o r the record. 

23 THE WITNESS: David Joseph Danis. 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Spell your l a s t name, please. I'm 

2 5 sorr y . 
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1 THE WITNESS: D-a-n-i-s. 

2 DAVID DANIS, a witness herein, c a l l e d i n 

3 Rebuttal on behalf of the Complainants, having f i r s t been 

4 duly sworn, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

5 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N 

6 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

7 Q. Mr. Danis, s t a t e your business address, please? 

8 A. I t ' s Microbac Labs, Incorporated, at 

9 100 Marshall Drive, Warrendale, PA, 15086. 

10 Q. And can you say what your educational background 

11 is? 

12 A. I have a B.S. i n chemistry from the U n i v e r s i t y 

13 of P i t t s b u r g h , and 23 years i n the water t e s t i n g , and 22 

14 years i n the a n a l y t i c a l t e s t i n g business. 

15 Q. And how long have you been employed by Microbac 

16 Labs? 

17 A. 22 years. 

18 Q. Now, have you reviewed the testimony o f f e r e d i n 

19 t h i s matter by Mr. Yablonski? 

20 A. I seen nothing p r i o r t o t h i s . 

21 Q. Okay. I t was my understanding t h a t h i s 

22 statement was faxed t o you, but be t h a t as i t may. Do you 

23 r e c a l l the O.C.A. advising you t h a t Mr. Yablonski had 

24 questioned the accuracy of the t e s t s provided by your lab 

25 t o Mr. Fought i n connection w i t h t h i s case? 
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1 A. Yes, I do. 

2 Q. And f o l l o w i n g t h a t conversation, d i d I ask you 

3 f o r documentation concerning the a c c r e d i t a t i o n of your 

4 l a b o r a t o r y b y - - a c c r e d i t a t i o n i s not the r i g h t word. 

5 A. C e r t i f i c a t i o n . 

6 Q. C e r t i f i c a t i o n by Department of Environmental 

7 Protection? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And d i d you subsequently provide me w i t h c e r t a i n 

10 documentation i n connection w i t h the t e s t s t h a t were done 

11 w i t h t h i s ? 

12 A. Yes, as w e l l as our c e r t i f i c a t i o n and 

13 performance studies t h a t we r e c e n t l y completed. 

14 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, may I approach the 

15 witness? 

16 JUDGE NEMEC: You may. 

17 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I would ask t h a t these two sets of 

18 documents be able to be marked O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 1-R and 

19 2-R. 

20 (Whereupon, the documents were marked as 

21 O.C.A. E x h i b i t Nos. 1-R and 2-R f o r 

22 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ) 

23 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

24 Q. Mr. Danis, do you recognize those documents? 

25 A. Yes, I do. 
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1 Q. Now, the f i r s t document which the judge has 

2 per m i t t e d us t o mark O.C.A. E x h i b i t No. 1-R, would you t u r n 

3 your a t t e n t i o n t o t h a t f i r s t ? 

4 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: Your Honor, I would j u s t note I 

5 numbered the pages so we can r e f e r t o them more e a s i l y . 

6 BY ATTORNEY DUSMAN: 

7 Q. Can you j u s t take a glance at the f i r s t e i g ht 

8 pages of E x h i b i t No. 1-R and t e l l the judge what they are? 

9 A. That's a photocopy of an invoi c e f o r t e s t i n g 

10 t h a t was performed f o r Mr. Fought. 

11 Q. Okay. Each of those pages represents an 

12 invoice? 

13 A. I t ' s an itemized i n v o i c e . 

14 Q. And then f o l l o w i n g those i n v o i c e pages, there 

15 are f o u r pages t h a t are e n t i t l e d C e r t i f i c a t e of Analysis? 

16 A. That's c o r r e c t . That's a copy of the f i n i s h e d 

17 r e p o r t t h a t was provided f o r an a l y s i s of samples we 

18 c o l l e c t e d at 9 Church Street, 49 Main S t r e e t , and 149 Pike 

19 Run Road. 

2 0 Q. Okay. And then f o l l o w i n g those C e r t i f i c a t e s of 

21 Analysis, there are three pages marked Chain of Custody 

22 Record. Can you e x p l a i n the s i g n i f i c a n c e of those 

23 documents i n connection w i t h your tests? 

24 A. Well, we had been contacted by Mr. Fought back 

25 i n October of '99 to conduct some water analyses, and 
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1 arrangements were made f o r one of our f i e l d t echnicians t o 

2 t r a v e l t o these l o c a t i o n s , c o l l e c t the water samples, and 

3 t h i s i s documenting e s s e n t i a l l y t h a t he took those and 

4 d e l i v e r e d them t o the l a b o r a t o r y on a p a r t i c u l a r date and 

5 time. 

6 Q. Okay. And then the f o l l o w i n g pages, the l a s t 

7 several papers of 1-R? 

8 A. 16 and 17 are copies of a Work Order Report 

9 which i s generated when a sample i s signed i n the at the 

10 l a b o r a t o r y . The page d i r e c t l y f o l l o w i n g t h a t i s a verbal 

11 quote sheet t h a t ' s kept by our sales and service 

12 r e p r e s e n t a t i v e who spoke w i t h Mr. Fought. And the l a s t i n 

13 the packet i s a record of what sample b o t t l e s were 

14 received, the temperature they were received a t , and 

15 whether there were preservatives added t o i t . 

16 Q. Now, would you t u r n your a t t e n t i o n t o O.C.A. 

17 E x h i b i t 2-R? Would you t e l l us the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the 

18 f i r s t two pages of t h a t document? 

19 A. Page 1 and Page 2 are our current c e r t i f i c a t e 

20 from PA D.E.P. i n d i c a t i n g t h a t we were c e r t i f i e d f o r 

21 organic analyses and inorganic analyses, and they are 

22 l i s t e d on the f r o n t . The second i s the one t h a t was i n 

23 e f f e c t at the time the sampling and analyses were done. 

24 Q. Okay. Now, the pages--the pages are marked i n 

25 t h i s e x h i b i t s t a r t i n g from 20 and going t o Page 30. And 
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1 can you t e l l us what the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the pages 

2 f o l l o w i n g the c e r t i f i c a t e s are? 

3 A. The f i r s t two are a copy of what's r e f e r r e d t o 

4 as a performance e v a l u a t i o n study. Part of the 

5 c e r t i f i c a t i o n process requires us t o receive a b l i n d sample 

6 and analyze t h a t . I t ' s known only t o the pr o v i d e r of the 

7 sample, and there are acceptable ranges t h a t the lab must 

8 f a l l w i t h i n i n order t o maintain c e r t i f i c a t i o n . I j u s t 

9 included t h i s t o demonstrate t h i s was our most recent 

10 t e s t . And f o r purposes of completing the packet, I 

11 included the reference method t h a t was used or followed t o 

12 do the s u l f a t e a n a l y s i s , the la b o r a t o r y ' s standard 

13 operating procedure, which i s more s p e c i f i c as t o how we 

14 a c t u a l l y do the t e s t . And also a copy of the technician's 

15 broad data sheets as they p e r t a i n . 

16 Q. Okay. Thank you. Now, would you j u s t take a 

17 moment--!'m going t o give you a copy of a couple of pages 

18 of Mr. Yablonski's testimony, and I be l i e v e I summarized i t 

19 f o r you, but I would l i k e you t o j u s t s p e c i f i c a l l y read the 

20 question and answer t h a t appears on Page 4 and then 

21 continue w i t h the remainder of the answer on Page 5 and l e t 

22 me know when you have read t h a t . 

23 A. Through here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) ? 

24 Q. Yes. 

25 A. Okay. I f i n i s h e d . 
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1 Q. Okay. Now, I'm sure t h a t you are already aware 

2 t h a t the t e s t r e s u l t s t h a t are being r e f e r r e d t o here are 

3 the ones t h a t Microbac Lab i s responsible for? 

4 A. Uh-huh ( a f f i r m a t i v e ) . 

5 Q. Mr. Yablonski makes the statements t h a t 

6 Mr. Fought's t e s t r e s u l t s which are i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h other 

7 t e s t r e s u l t s should not be r e l i e d upon. Do you r e c a l l t h a t 

8 statement? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Can you e x p l a i n why inconsistency i s not a 

11 reason i n and of i t s e l f t o doubt the r e l i a b i l i t y of a t e s t 

12 such as you have done? 

13 A. Well, I would l i k e t o say f i r s t o f f t h a t as p a r t 

14 of our c e r t i f i c a t i o n , we are r e q u i r e d t o maintain a q u a l i t y 

15 assurance program t o help minimize e r r o r s t h a t could occur 

16 i n a l a b o r a t o r y s i t u a t i o n . I am not s u r p r i s e d to see t h a t 

17 water q u a l i t y , both surface water and groundwater, can vary 

18 over time and under c o n d i t i o n s . I t h i n k t h a t these were 

19 done a f t e r a p a r t i c u l a r l y dry summer i n October when the 

20 water t a b l e may have been lower than at other times. There 

21 were many communities t h a t were i n d i f f i c u l t s i t u a t i o n s 

22 throughout the t r i - s t a t e area w i t h regard t o t h a t . That 

23 may account f o r some of the d i f f e r e n c e s w i t h i t . I n e i t h e r 

24 case, I have gone back and reviewed, i n p a r t i c u l a r , the 

25 s u l f a t e which we discussed. I looked at the raw data, I 
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1 looked at the q u a l i t y c o n t r o l t h a t was w i t h the batch, and 

2 I have no doubt t o be l i e v e t h a t those are not c o r r e c t . 

3 A d d i t i o n a l l y , though I have not seen the t a b l e t h a t 

4 Mr. Fought put together, there i s a r e l a t i o n s h i p between 

5 the t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s and the other minerals t h a t we 

6 t e s t e d f o r i n d i v i d u a l l y here, and I t h i n k we had some of 

7 the highest t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s numbers. And 

8 consequently, we are showing some of the highest s u l f a t e 

9 numbers and hardness numbers and sodium numbers, too. And 

10 t h a t would tend t o f o l l o w s u i t . Exactly why they are 

11 higher, I can't speculate. 

12 Q. Well, can you t h i n k of any other reasons why 

13 water t e s t s r e s u l t s from the same source might vary over a 

14 time period? 

15 A. The exact reason f o r why they vary, I can't be 

16 c e r t a i n . 

17 Q. Okay. 

18 A. I w i l l say there i s good agreement between the 

19 three. I f you looked at the three r e p o r t s and i f these 

2 0 were a l l from the same system, they look l i k e they are i n 

21 agreement. 

22 Q. I would l i k e you t o take a look at the summary 

2 3 page t h a t Mr. Fought prepared, and I would note t h a t the 

24 f i n a l three columns are the ones t h a t include the r e s u l t s 

25 from Microbac Lab. 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Can you t e l l us, you mentioned t h a t the hardness 

3 becomes p a r t of t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s . Can you look at 

4 the column on the l e f t and t e l l us what other elements t h a t 

5 are t e s t e d f o r c o n t r i b u t e t o high TDS? 

6 A. Well, as mentioned before, the t o t a l dissolved 

7 s o l i d s are the amount of minerals t h a t are i n a s o l u t i o n . 

8 I f you were to take a pot of water and b o i l i t away u n t i l 

9 a l l the water i s gone, the TDS i s e s s e n t i a l l y a l l t h a t 

10 residue and s a l t s t h a t are l e f t over i n the bottom of the 

11 tank. The t e s t t h a t i s performed i n the lab i s not much 

12 d i f f e r e n t than t h a t . So, i f we were t o add up the s a l t s or 

13 those p o r t i o n of s a l t s , i t would give a close estimate t o 

14 what the t o t a l d issolved s o l i d s would be. So, i f we took 

15 the hardness--if I run down here, i t ' s a l i t t l e b i t 

16 d i f f e r e n t . I can go from my re p o r t a l i t t l e b i t b e t t e r . 

17 Can I do that? 

18 Q. That's f i n e . 

19 A. I f I were t o take the hardness, the c h l o r i d e , 

20 the f l u o r i d e , the n i t r a t e , n i t r i t e , the s u l f a t e , a l l of the 

21 trace metals, t a k i n g the calcium out because t h a t ' s p a r t of 

22 the hardness, the i r o n r e s u l t , and the sodium r e s u l t , t h a t 

23 should give an estimate of what the t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s 

24 would be i n the sample. And I went ahead and t o t a l e d those 

25 up an hour or so ago. On the f i r s t sample, the t o t a l was 
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1 somewhere around 1,000, and we are showing--1,00 0 

2 m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r , and we are showing t e s t r e s u l t s at 

3 822. On the next sample, which was from 49 Main Street, 

4 also around 1,000, and we are showing a t o t a l d issolved 

5 s o l i d s at 850. So, I don't t h i n k i t ' s - - t h e c o r r e l a t i o n i s 

6 there t o i n d i c a t e the higher s u l f a t e , higher hardness 

7 r e s u l t s and so on. 

8 Q. Okay. And again, t u r n i n g your a t t e n t i o n t o 

9 TLF-1, d i d you s t a t e e a r l i e r t h a t you f e l t t h a t the t e s t 

10 r e s u l t s o v e r a l l were w i t h i n a range t h a t would be expected? 

11 A. Well, on 9/30/91, somebody provided r e s u l t s 

12 where TDS was 852 and the s u l f a t e content was 351. And 

13 when we are coming up w i t h t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s r e s u l t s 

14 i n t h a t 820 t o 850 range, we are also showing s u l f a t e s 

15 somewhere around 350 to 360. And, once again, we have seen 

16 w i t h not only surface water but groundwater t h a t there can 

17 be v a r i a t i o n s w i t h the amount of r a i n f a l l and d i f f e r e n t 

18 c o n d i t i o n s w i t h i n the system. Last year was a t e r r i b l e 

19 drought, and these samples were r i g h t around the end of the 

20 dry period. Samples taken perhaps i n March or e a r l i e r may 

21 not. 

22 Q. Do you stand by the accuracy of the t e s t s t h a t 

23 your lab d i d f o r us? 

24 A. Yes, I do. 

2 5 Q. Okay. 
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1 ATTORNEY DUSMAN: I have nothing f u r t h e r , 

2 Your Honor. And I would move i n O.C.A. E x h i b i t s 1-R and 

3 2-R. 

4 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I have a couple questions. 

5 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N 

6 BY ATTORNEY NIESEN: 

7 Q. Look at O.C.A. E x h i b i t 1, the summary page. Do 

8 you have that? As I understand what you j u s t d i d , d i d you 

9 look at the t o t a l - - u s e your number t h a t ' s over here on the 

10 ri g h t - h a n d side. You took the t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s and 

11 suggested t h a t i f you looked f a r t h e r down, you can add up 

12 c e r t a i n of the l i n e items and come close t o the t o t a l 

13 d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s ? 

14 A. As an estimate. 

15 Q. I t r i e d t o do t h a t t h i s morning and people said 

16 I was wrong t o do i t . 

17 A. No. I t h i n k i t ' s prudent, but I t h i n k what you 

18 need t o bear i n mind i s t h a t one of the missing--

19 Q. I t h i n k i t was t h i s morning. Maybe i t was 

20 yesterday. 

21 A. There are a couple t e s t s t h a t are missing t h a t 

22 would be included i n there, and one would be potassium 

23 which was not t e s t e d f o r and magnesium. The hardness i s 

24 expressed as calcium carbonate i t ' s a l i t t l e deceiving, so 

25 I don't t h i n k you can add i n a l l of t h a t . 
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Q. But there i s some r e l a t i o n s h i p between the l i n e 

items underneath and the--

A. C e r t a i n l y . There i s also another t e s t of 

c o n d u c t i v i t y t h a t there i s also a r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h . I f we 

were t o take on the spreadsheet here, i f we were t o take 

s t a r t i n g at the top the n i t r a t e and n i t r i t e n i t r o g e n - -

Q. I'm sorry. The n i t r a t e - -

A. Yeah. The N02. 

Q. N i t r a t e ? 

A. Right. The t o t a l hardness, t h a t ' s calcium 

carbonate, you can 11 add i n the calcium, then. 

Q. You can't. Okay. 

A. No. Because t h a t ' s already taken i n t o account 

above. Add the sodium i n , the c h l o r i d e , the s u l f a t e , 

f l u o r i d e , and the trace metals, which are of l i t t l e 

s i g n i f i c a n c e , i t should give you something t h a t ' s close to 

or an estimate of what the TDS would be. 

Q. I missed your t i t l e w i t h Microbac. 

A. I am l a b o r a t o r y d i r e c t o r and v i c e president of 

our P i t t s b u r g h operations. 

Q. Did you perform the t e s t s t h a t are l i s t e d here? 

My analyst d i d . 

Okay. But you d i d not? 

No. 

Okay. Now, you would recogni ze, though, t h a t 
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1 t e s t r e s u l t s on 10/21 are higher than most of the other 

2 t e s t r e s u l t s f o r the three items t h a t are being discussed, 

3 TDS, hardness, and s u l f a t e ? Just look across. You got 800 

4 l e v e l s . That's higher than the TDS l e v e l s f o r the other 

5 t e s t s . The same i s t r u e f o r hardness. The same i s tr u e 

6 f o r s u l f a t e . 

7 A. I would not disagree. 

8 Q. And you a t t r i b u t e d one p o s s i b i l i t y or one reason 

9 f o r t h a t might be the f a c t t h a t there was a major drought 

10 l a s t summer? 

11 A. I t h i n k t h a t could be t r u e . I'm speculating 

12 when I say t h a t . 

13 Q. And October i s about the end of the summer, so 

14 the end of the drought p e r i o d I t h i n k you said? 

15 A. Right. Also t h a t there i s a 10-year d i f f e r e n c e 

16 between the l a s t complete l i s t of t e s t s we have here, and 

17 i f anything has changed from a hydrogeology standpoint w i t h 

18 the a q u i f e r and the water supply, i t ' s a long period of 

19 time. 

20 Q. That's not t r u e f o r the s u l f a t e , though? 

21 A. Pardon? 

22 Q. The s u l f a t e t e s t s , there are t e s t s f o r s u l f a t e 

23 from March of 1999? 

24 A. Right. 

25 Q. Another reason could be t h a t your t e c h n i c i a n got 
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1 i t wrong and the r e s u l t s aren't q u i t e r i g h t ? 

2 A. Well, as p a r t of the v a l i d a t i o n process, I went 

3 back and looked at w i t h the raw data, we are required t o 

4 run q u a l i t y c o n t r o l checks w i t h each batch of samples t h a t 

5 we t e s t . And on the raw data sheets, we ran a known 

6 standard of 50 mi l l i g r a m s per l i t e r and recovered 99.6 

7 percent of t h a t . We also ran a d u p l i c a t e on the water 

8 supply, which was much, much lower i n s u l f a t e and had a 

9 r e l a t i v e d i f f e r e n c e between the two at less than 

10 10 percent. 

11 Q. So, t h a t means t h a t at the same time you were 

12 running these t e s t s , you ran other t e s t s and got what you 

13 f e l t were c r e d i b l e r e s u l t s ? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 ATTORNEY NIESEN: I don't have any more questions. 

16 Thank you. 

17 JUDGE NEMEC: Objections t o the e x h i b i t s ? 

18 ATTORNEY NIESEN: No. I don't o b j e c t t o them. 

19 JUDGE NEMEC: Okay. O.C.A. E x h i b i t s 1-R and 2-R are 

20 admitted. 

21 {Whereupon, the documents marked as 

22 O.C.A. E x h i b i t Nos. 1-R and R-2 were 

23 admitted i n t o evidence.) 

24 JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you, s i r . You are excused. 

25 (Witness excused.) 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

471 

JUDGE NEMEC: We are going t o take another 

five-minute break, and you can t h i n k about what else you 

need t o put i n the record here. 

(Whereupon, a recess was taken from 

5:54 P.M. to 5:59 P.M.) 

JUDGE NEMEC: I assume we have nothing f u r t h e r . I 

hope you understand what we have undertaken t o do. I do 

have one more question. Mr. Yablonski, can I c a l l you j u s t 

f o r a second? Consider y o u r s e l f s t i l l under oath. I t i s 

my understanding t h a t Daniel J. K r i l o s k y i s no longer a 

customer on your system, i s t h a t correct? 

MR. TERRY YABLONSKI: Yes. 

JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you, s i r . That's a l l I have. 

I f something occurs t o anybody i n the next couple of days 

t h a t we have f o r g o t t e n or t h a t you f e e l has been overlooked 

or neglected, l e t ' s do an inf o r m a l conference c a l l and we 

w i l l s t r a i g h t e n i t out t h a t way. Okay? Good luck and safe 

t r i p s home. We w i l l adjourn at t h i s time. 

(Whereupon, at 6:00 P.M., the hearing was 

concluded.) 
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